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ADDENDUM
TO
AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, APRIL 3, 2017

7:00 p.m.
City Council Chambers, City Hall - 45 Lyon Terrace
Bridgeport, Connecticut

ADDED:
COMMUNICATION TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEE:

Communication from Housing and Community Development re: (Ref. #37-
12 & #96-15) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
Proposed Amendment to the City’s Consolidated Plan for Housing &
Community Development (2013-2018) and PY 42 Annual Plan, including
fund balance from FY 2012, referred to Special Committee on CDBG
Program.
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AGENDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, APRIL 3, 2017

7:00 P.M.
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL — 45 LYON TERRACE
BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT

Prayer
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Mayoral and City Council Citation(s): Commending Bassick High School
and Honoring its various teams, for an exemplary program of
extracurricular activities provided to students.

MINUTES FOR APPROVAL:
Approval of City Council Minutes: March 6, 2017
COMMUNICATIONS TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEES:

Communication from Board of Education re: Proposed Resolution
concerning Grant Application Authorization for School Construction Work
and Design Initiation for the Catholic Center located at 238 Jewett Avenue,
referred to Education and Social Services Committee.

Communication from Labor Relations re: Proposed Tentative Agreement
with the School Crossing Guards Association regarding their Bargaining
Unit Contract for the term of September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2021,
referred to Contracts Committee. '

Communication from WPCA re: Final Audit Report for the Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 pursuant to Ordinance Section 13.04.160, ACCEPTED AND MADE
PART OF THE RECORD.

Communication from Central Grants re: Grant Submission: State of
Connecticut Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration
Section 5310 Program - Bus Purchase (Project #17230), referred to
Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee.

Communication from City Attorney re: Proposed Settlement of Pending
Litigation with Lonnie Blackwell, referred to Miscellaneous Matters
Committee.

Communication from City Attorney re: Proposed Settlement of Pending
Litigation with Jesus Manuel Perez, referred to Miscellaneous Matters
Committee.
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MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON (CONSENT CALENDAR):

*35-16 Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee
Report re: Grant Submission: University of Connecticut for a SURDNA
Green Infrastructure Sub-Grant (Project #16263).

*42-16 (PHO) Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee
Report re: Public Hearing Ordered for April 17, 2017: Disposition of Certain
City-Owned Properties (6) by Auction, Sale to Abutter or by Sale to
Community Based Housing Development Corporations.

*45-16 Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee
Report re: Grant Submission: Small Business Administration for the Aspire
challenge Grant (Project #18243).

*70-15 Miscellaneous Matters Committee Report re: Appointment of Clement
Young (D) to the Water Pollution Control Authority Commission.

*48-16 Miscellaneous Matters Committee Report re: Settlement of Pending
Litigation with Jane Doe.



THE FOLLOWING NAMED PERSON HAS REQUESTED PERMISSION TO ADDRESS THE CITYy
COUNCIL ON MONDAY, APRIL 3, 2017 AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY
HALL, 45 LYON TERRACE, BRIDGEPORT, CT.

NAME SUBJECT

Clyde Nicholson Taxes.
54 Wallace Street
Bridgeport, CT 06604

Jorge Cruz Community Rally.
251 Black Rock Avenue, Apt. 2-R
Bridgeport, CT 06605

Cecil C. Young Asking that James Holloway resign his
99 Carroll Avenue position as councilman or retire from
Bridgeport, CT 06607 city job as Tom McCarthy had to do.
John Marshall Lee City Finances.

30 Beacon Street
Bridgeport, CT 06605

Adrienne F. Houel, Greater Bpt. CDBG Contract: delays and
Community Enterprises, Inc. non-communication.

459 Iranistan Avenue
Bridgeport, CT 06605

Luis Luna Support of Sanctuary City Initiative.
Make the Road CT

850 State Street

Bridgeport, CT 06604



CITY COUNCIL MEETING
PUBLIC SPEAKING
MONDAY, APRIL 3, 2017
6:30 PM
City Council Chambers, City Hall
45 Lyon Terrace
Bridgeport, CT

CALL TO ORDER

Majority Leader Martinez called the Public Session to order at 6:38 p.m. She reviewed the
procedure for public speakers.

An informal attendance was taken.

The following members were present:
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130" District: Kathryn Bukovsky, Scott Burns «% : ::

131% District: Jack O. Banta :ﬁ; B

132" District: M. Evette Brantley .~ ety

133" District: Jeanette Herron - w

134" District: Michelle Lyons, AmyMarie Vizzo-Paniccia =g o 2

135" District: Mary McBride-Lee, Richard Salter @ M

136" District: José Casco, Alfredo Castillo w2
137" District: Aidee Nieves, Milta Feliciano -

138" District: Anthony Paoletto, Nessah Smith
139" District: Eneida Martinez, James Holloway

A quorum was present.

THE FOLLOWING NAMED PERSON HAS REQUESTED PERMISSION TO
ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL ON MONDAY, APRIL 3, 2017 AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 45 LYON TERRACE, BRIDGEPORT, CT.

NAME

SUBJECT
Clyde Nicholson Taxes.
54 Wallace Street

Bridgeport, CT 06604

Mr. Nicholson came forward and said that tonight was Bassick High School night and that it
showed Bridgeport pride. He said that he was happy to see all the Bassick students present.

City of Bridgeport
City Council
Regular Meeting

April 3, 2017 Page 1



Mr. Nicholson said that the City does not need a second City Hall and that Bridgeport was the
only city in the nation that had two city halls. Greenwich, the richest town in Connecticut, only
has one Town Hall. He added that it wasn't fair to the school students to go without while the
City was paying for two City Halls. It is also important to have a gun free zone and provide the
students with activities after school. There should be jobs available to anyone who needs one.
Mr. Nicholson said that he was asking the City Attorney to look into these problems because the
school buildings need a lot of work. He said that tonight he wasn't going to yell or scream, but it
is wrong to take money away from the kids who need the services and programs.

Jorge Cruz Community Rally.
251 Black Rock Avenue, Apt. 2-R
Bridgeport, CT 06605

Mr. Cruz came forward and announced he was a member of the 131st District and the Vice
President of an organization. A few months ago, he distributed flyers to everyone on the Council
to come and support his Rally for Peace, but only a few Council Members attended. He said that
he was a man of his word and that if you can't take the heat, get out of the kitchen. Mr. Cruz
reminded everyone that he ran for Council in 2015, but did not win the election. He said that he
had spoken with Council Member Banta prior to run in the primary but that Council Member
Banta had betrayed his trust. He went on to give the details of the issue.

Cecil C. Young Asking that James Holloway resign his
99 Carroll Avenue position as councilman or retire from
Bridgeport, CT 06607 city job as Tom McCarthy had to do.

Mr. Cecil Young came forward and said that he was a community activist for the last 50 years
and had been in the City service for many years. He encouraged everyone to visit his website to
find out all the details. Mr. Young said that Council Member Holloway should resign. He said
that Council Member Holloway had been his supervisor and fired him on March 13, 2006. Mr.
Young stated that his wife became ill because of this. Mr. Young then turned to address the
audience and gave the details of the situation. He displayed an enlarged copy of a document that
was turned towards the audience and claimed that he cared about people.

John Marshall Lee City Finances.
30 Beacon Street
Bridgeport, CT 06605

Mr. Lee came forward and read the following statement into the record:

Women and men of the City Council, let’s revisit the operation of the City Print Shop and
its financial operation. City Financial Director Kenneth Flatto wrote to you regarding my
last Council address on Friday past with his observations to Council President Tom
McCarthy. and copies to you.

First he questioned the source of my information and then said that the amounts referred
to don’t reflect the way the shop works. Is it that simple? The info, I used, comes from
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Purchasing Order records, available in the City Clerk office during the past six years.
Purchasing Order records show the amounts spent by a Department over a year through
Purchase Orders and from 2011 to 2015 the excess of those orders to Print Budget were
$830,000 in excess of those balanced budgets....chart is attached to my report for
Finance to mull over, reconcile and explain to the public.

Monthly financial reports and purchasing reports should balance, be easy to understand,
and be available to the taxpaying public in electronic and/or print form for others to
pursue as I have until we have better check and balance practices and official watchdogs.

The fact is that the Print Shop is in the Finance Department chain of command. You
reviewed their budget and their Mission Statement last year as did Mr. Flatto who is the
responsible supervisor overall:

o City services were selectively provided to some citizens or groups without informing
anyone else. To what purpose do you suppose? Those human, capital equipment, and
paper/ toner services were paid for fully by taxpayers. Why was public money spent on
private work? Who authorized this? How long has this been going on? City Department
records?

e Mr. Flatto can find no authority for the private business of the Print Shop. Why is this
authority for what is a private and illegal practice, according to their own Mission,
difficult to find? Is this subject worthy of City Council investigation on behalf of
taxpayers?

e Finance goes on to report that outside work is a small part of the Print Shop activity,
perhaps $15,000 in the recent year. But he quickly has doubled the charges for Shop
services, though neither past nor current pricing takes into consideration the total cost of
personnel, capital equipment and necessary operational items and services as a private
printer would require, so Finance control of “costs” relative to “pricing” is not reliable at
this time. Was any work done gratis??

e A glance at other Purchase Orders shows City departments making requests for printing
services to private companies. I am researching amounts at this time. However, is there a
policy, protocol, or process to be sure that any and all possible Print Shop services are
used in house if, as Mr. Flatto answers me, “The Print Shop is of course only a City
municipal operational service. The Print Shop does saves (sic) the City budget a
significant amount through its much lower print costs (than if the city and BOE had to
seek to print all materials outside by private printers)....."” Why is there any outsourcing if
this is so? When was the last time a study was done to see whether the Print Shop is as
cost efficient as stated remembering to factor in all personnel, fringe benefit, capital and
operating expenses?

e BOE print orders are minimal according to info I have accessed, probably less than the
work that has been performed for private individuals and groups. Should the names of the
private customers and groups be released with the costs they have paid historically? Why
should these be a select protected group going forward?

e The BOE may have a school-to-work program going on at one of the high schools that
may be receiving some of the BOE work. Is it possible for all parties to back that forward
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looking use of educational training with far less personnel expense to save taxpayer
dollars?

e Where do the dollars earned show up in City records as Revenue? Why have they been
unseen or unknown by so many for so long?

Does this activity, right under the nose and practical supervision of Finance Department
create a deeper trust in City operations by taxpayers? What is the Council to do, without
staffing to continue such research? Aren’t these questions reasonable as we face another
budget season? Will you ask for and receive all the important and necessary baseline info
you request upon which to make your decisions and choices? Time will tell.

Adrienne F. Houel, Greater Bpt. CDBG Contract: delays and
Community Enterprises, Inc. non-communication.

459 Iranistan Avenue

Bridgeport, CT 06605

Majority Leader Martinez called Ms. Houel to come forward three times. There was no response.

Luis Luna Support of Sanctuary City Initiative.
Make the Road CT

850 State Street

Bridgeport, CT 06604

Mr. Luna came forward and introduced a young woman who said that she resided on Laurel
Avenue. The young lady spoke about making Bridgeport a sanctuary city. There were several

people holding up signs saying “Resist Trump”, “Cuidad sanctuary Ahora” and others during her
remarks.

Bridgeport is an incredible city to call home and there is great diversity where everyone could
tell their own stories. These voices should be heard. She asked the local law enforcement
officers to protect the residents and not report them to ICE despite what they are being told by
the government. She claimed that only 83% of the residents were citizens, but everyone needs to
be protected. The City could have applied to become a sanctuary city months ago and the
Congressional representatives have already supported the move. She then asked those to support
sanctuary cities to stand. Approximately 20 people in the audience stood in response to her
request.
ADJOURNMENT.

Majority Leader Martinez adjourned the public speaking portion of the Council meeting at 7:08
p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

S. L. Soltes
Telesco Secretarial Services

City of Bridgeport

City Council

Regular Meeting

April 3, 2017 Page 4



CITY OF BRIDGEPORT
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, APRIL 3, 2017
7:00 PM
City Council Chambers, City Hall - 45 Lyon Terrace

Bridgeport, Connecticut

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Ganim called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m.
PRAYER
Mayor Ganim led those present in prayer.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Ganim lead those present in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance.
ROLL CALL

Assistant City Clerk Frances Ortiz called the roll.

The following members were present:

130" District: Kathryn Bukovsky, Scott Burns

131* District: Jack O. Banta

132" District: M. Evette Brantley

133" District: Jeanette Herron

134" District: AmyMarie Vizzo-Paniccia, Michelle Lyons
135" District: Mary McBride-Lee, Richard Salter

136" District: José Casco, Alfredo Castillo

137" District: Aidee Nieves, Milta Feliciano

138" District: Anthony Paoletto, Nessah Smith

139" District: Eneida Martinez, James Holloway

A quorum was present.
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Mayor Ganim stated for the record that Council President McCarthy was absent due to family
obligations; Council Member Taylor-Moye was involved in a graduation; Council Member
Lyons had just been called away and Council Member Olson was out of town.

Mayoral and City Council Citation(s): Commending Bassick High School and Honoring its
various teams, for an exemplary program of extracurricular activities provided to students.

The Mayor and Council Member Martinez called the Bassick High School Sports Coaches
forward. All the members of the various teams present in the audience including the soccer,
basketball, volleyball, baseball, football, softball, lacrosse and cheer leading teams came
forward. Council Member Brantley announced that she was a Bassick graduate and spoke to the
athletes about their remarkable performance.

Council Member Martinez read the City Council Citation. Several of the sports coaches came
forward and thanked the Mayor and the Council for their recognition.

Mayor Ganim then presented the coaches with Mayoral Citations and congratulated them on
their exemplary program of extracurricular activities provided to students.

Following the conclusion of the recognition ceremony, Council Member McBride-Lee requested
a point of personal privilege. She said that when a black man disrespects a black woman, it is a
poor reflection on the entire black man’s family from his mother bringing him up to his
grandmother and so on. She then said that she would like to apologize to the Council and the
Mayor, but that she could not allow Mr. Young or Mr. Nicholson to be disrespectful. Their
comments from the previous week had been very disrespectful and reflected poorly on the black
community.

** COUNCIL MEMBER BURNS MOVED TO SUSPEND THE RULES TO ADD AN
ITEM TO THE AGENDA REGARDING REFERRING THE GENERAL FUND
BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 TO THE BUDGET AND
APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE.

** COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO SECONDED.

Mayor Ganim said that each Council member would receive a copy of the 2017-18 budget. His
proposed budget holds the line on taxes and in some cases improves the services for the
residents. It is a flat budget that based on the Governor's budget and that if the Governor's
budget remains stable, the BOE will get $10 million dollars. If the budget is passed as is, there
would also be a drop in the mill rate for automobiles.

Mayor Ganim said that he would like the Council to recognize the hard work that has gone into
the budget. The City's budget is predicated on the State's budget. He asked that they go through
the process slowly because they are running a parallel path with the State and the State budget is
far from certain at this time. Some items are enhanced while others are burdens.

** THE MOTION TO SUSPEND THE RULES TO ADD AN ITEM TO THE AGENDA
REGARDING REFERRING THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL
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YEAR 2017-2018 TO THE BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE PASSED
UNANIMOUSLY.

* COUNCIL MEMBER BURNS MOVED TO REFER THE PROPOSED MAYOR’S
GENERAL FUND BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 TO THE BUDGET
AND APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE.

** COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO SECONDED.

* THE MOTION TO REFER THE PROPOSED MAYOR’S GENERAL FUND
BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 TO THE BUDGET AND
APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. (ITEM #59-16)

MINUTES FOR APPROVAL:

Approval of City Council Minutes: March 6, 2017

** COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ MOVED THE MARCH 6, 2017 AS SUBMITTED.
** COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO SECONDED.

** THE MOTION TO CORRECT THE MARCH 6, 2017 AS SUBMITTED PASSED
UNANIMOUSLY.

COMMUNICATIONS TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEES:

# COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO REFER THE FOLLOWING
AGENDA ITEMS TO THE APPROPRIATE COMMITTEES:

46-16 COMMUNICATION FROM BOARD OF EDUCATION RE: PROPOSED
RESOLUTION CONCERNING GRANT APPLICATION AUTHORIZATION
FOR SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION WORK AND DESIGN INITIATION FOR THE
CATHOLIC CENTER LOCATED AT 238 JEWETT AVENUE, REFERRED TO
EDUCATION AND SOCIAL SERVICES COMMITTEE.

53-16 COMMUNICATION FROM LABOR RELATIONS RE: PROPOSED
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT WITH THE SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS
ASSOCIATION REGARDING THEIR BARGAINING UNIT CONTRACT FOR
THE TERM OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2021,
REFERRED TO CONTRACTS COMMITTEE.

54-16 COMMUNICATION FROM WPCA RE: FINAL AUDIT REPORT FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 PURSUANT TO ORDINANCE SECTION
13.04.160, ACCEPTED AND MADE PART OF THE RECORD.

55-16 COMMUNICATION FROM CENTRAL GRANTS RE: GRANT
SUBMISSION: STATE OF CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION SECTION 5310
PROGRAM - BUS PURCHASE (PROJECT #17230), REFERRED TO
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ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENT
COMMITTEE.

56-16 COMMUNICATION FROM CITY ATTORNEY RE: PROPOSED
SETTLEMENT OF PENDING LITIGATION WITH LONNIE BLACKWELL,
REFERRED TO MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS COMMITTEE.

57-16 COMMUNICATION FROM CITY ATTORNEY RE: PROPOSED
SETTLEMENT OF PENDING LITIGATION WITH JESUS MANUEL PEREZ,
REFERRED TO MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS COMMITTEE.

** COUNCIL MEMBER BRANTLEY SECONDED.
** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON (CONSENT CALENDAR):

Mayor Ganim asked if there was any Council Member who would like to remove an item from
the Consent Calendar. Council Member Martinez requested that Agenda Item 45-16 be removed
from the Consent Calendar.

Mayor Ganim requested that the Assistant City Clerk read the Consent Calendar into the record.

*# COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ MOVED THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ON THE
CONSENT CALENDAR:

#35-16 ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND
ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE REPORT RE: GRANT SUBMISSION:
UNIVERSITY OF CONNECTICUT FOR A SURDNA GREEN
INFRASTRUCTURE SUB-GRANT (PROJECT #16263).

*42-16 (PHO) ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND
ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE REPORT RE: PUBLIC HEARING ORDERED
FOR APRIL 17, 2017: DISPOSITION OF CERTAIN CITY-OWNED
PROPERTIES (6) BY AUCTION, SALE TO ABUTTER OR BY SALE TO
COMMUNITY BASED HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORPORATIONS.

*70-15 MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS COMMITTEE REPORT RE:
APPOINTMENT OF CLEMENT YOUNG (D) TO THE WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL AUTHORITY COMMISSION.

*48-16 MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS COMMITTEE REPORT RE:
SETTLEMENT OF PENDING LITIGATION WITH JANE DOE.

** COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO SECONDED.
* THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.
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MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON:

45-16 Economic and Community Development and Environment Committee Report re:
Grant Submission: Small Business Administration for the Aspire challenge Grant (Project
#18243).

** COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED AGENDA ITEM 45-16 ECONOMIC
AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE REPORT
RE: GRANT SUBMISSION: SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION FOR THE
ASPIRE CHALLENGE GRANT (PROJECT #18243).
** COUNCIL MEMBER HOLLOWAY SECONDED.

Council Member Martinez said that she had missed the committee meeting when this item was
discussed and wished to know what the grant funding was for. Council Member Brantley gave
her a brief overview of the scope of the Small Business Administration Aspire Challenge
program grant request.

*# THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

COMMUNICATION TO BE REFERRED TO COMMITTEE:

58-16 Communication from Housing and Community Development re: (Ref. #37-12 &
#96-15) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Proposed Amendment to
the City’s Consolidated Plan for Housing & Community Development (2013-2018) and PY
42 Annual Plan, including fund balance from FY 2012, referred to Special Committee on
CDBG Program.

** COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ MOVED TO REFER AGENDA ITEM 58-16
COMMUNICATION FROM HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT RE:
(REF. #37-12 & #96-15) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)
PROGRAM PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S CONSOLIDATED PLAN
FOR HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (2013-2018) AND PY 42 ANNUAL
PLAN, INCLUDING FUND BALANCE FROM FY 2012, REFERRED TO SPECIAL
COMMITTEE ON CDBG PROGRAM.

*# COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO SECONDED.

Attorney Anastasi stepped forward and explained that copies of the amended resolution had been
distributed to the Council Members earlier in the evening. He added that the Conflict of Interest
statements would be available in the Democratic Caucus Room following the conclusion of the
Council Meeting.

Council Member Feliciano asked if there would be any action on the item tonight. Attorney
Anastasi said that the only action would be referring the item to the Special Committee on the
CDBG program. The amended document would be reviewed by the Committee.

*# THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.
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ADJOURNMENT.

* COUNCIL MEMBER PAOLETTO MOVED TO ADJOURN.
** COUNCIL MEMBER BUKOVSKY SECONDED.
** THE MOTION TO ADJOURN PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

S. L. Soltes
Telesco Secretarial Services
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

City Hall - 45 Lyon Terrace ‘
- . MEMBERS OF THE BOARD t.
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604 o

ARESTA L. JOHNSON
Interim Superintendent of Schools

HOWARD GARDNER
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

DENNIS BRADLEY
JOE LARCHEVEQUE

MARIA PEREIRA
Chairperson

SAUDA EFIA BARAKA
Vice-Chairperson

BEN WALKER

ANNETTE SEGARRA-NEGRON
) “Changing Futures and Achieving Excellence Together”
JOHN R. WELDON

RAFAEL FONSECA JR.
Secretary

COMM. #46-16 Ref'd to Education & Social Services Committee
on 3726426+ Tablad b\/ Full Council and
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The Honorable City Council 2 > = o
c/o City Clerk L 2
45 Lyon Terrace 4 =

Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604

Reference: Grant Application Authorization for School Construction Work

Dear Honorable City Council Members:

The Board of Education respectfully requests that the City Council authorize the following school construction
projects application for State grants and the initiation of design for:

Catholic Center — 238 Jewett Avenue, Bridgeport, CT 06606 — Property Purchase / Renovate
Two Existing Facilities as New

Please forward this request to the Committee on Education and Social Services for their review at your earliest
convenience.

Sincerely,
(o]

Aresta L. Joh
Interim Superinténdent of Schools

cc: Alan Wallack



Proposed Resolution for Grant Application Authorization for School Construction Work

and Design Initiation for Catholic Center — 238 Jewett Avenue, Bridgeport, CT, 06606 —
Property Purchase/ Renovate Two Existing Facilities as New :

RESOLVED, that the Bridgeport City Council authorizes the Bridgeport Board of Education to apply to the

Commissioner of Education and to accept or reject a grant for the Property Purchase / Renovate as New
project at the Catholic Center — 238 Jewett Avenue.

RESOLVED, that the Bridgeport School Building Committee is hereby established as the building committee
with regard to the Property Purchase / Renovate as New project at the Catholic Center — 238 Jewett Avenue.

RESOLVED, that the Bridgeport City Council hereby authorizes at least the preparation of schematic drawings

and outline specifications for the Property Purchase / Renovate as New project at the Catholic Center — 238
Jewett Avenue.
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PROPOSED RESOLUTION - AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION STATE GRANTS AND
INITITIATION OF DESIGN — CATHOLIC CENTER, 238 Jewett Avenue, Bridgeport, CT 06606



CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
OFFICE OF LABOR RELATIONS

45 Lyon Terrace * Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604 « Telephone (203) 576-7610

JANENE HAWKINS
Director

JOSEPH P. GANIM
Mayor COMM.

#53-16 Ref'd to Contracts Committee on 04/03/2017.
March 27, 2017

Honorable City Council Members
Office of the City Clerk
City of Bridgeport

RE: Bridgeport School Crossing Guards Association

: 113
#4313 A toa1Ly

Dear Honorable Members:
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The City of Bridgeport and the Bridgeport School Crossing Guards Association ha\Le reached an
agreement regarding their bargaining unit contract for the term 9/1/2015 thru 8/3 1/2021. This

agreement is fair and equitable for both sides and provides the City with an important wage
concession in 2017.

Attached for your review is an executed Tentative Agreement between the parties.

Please note that Connecticut General Statute §7-474(b) imposes two (2) important time
constraints related to action by a legislative body on this type of agreement. These are:

1. [The agreement] shall be submitted by the bargaining representative of the municipality
within fourteen days of the date on which such agreement is reached to the legislative
body which may approve or reject such request as a whole ... [As this agreement was
fully signed on March 24, 2017, we have met this requirement.]

Such request [to approve the agreement] shall be considered approved if the legislative
body fails to vote to approve or reject such request within thirty days of the end of the
fourteen-day period for submission to said body. [Based on this language, if the City

Council does not accept or reject the agreement by Sunday, May 7, 2017, the agreement
will be considered approved by operation of law.]

This office respectfully requests the City Council approve the attached negotiated agreement.

Director of Labor Relations




Tentative Agreement

Between

City of Bridgeport

And

School Crossing Guards

e The duration of the contract will be from September 1, 2015 to August 31,

2021

e The Union agrees to the following wage increases effective upon signing of

this Agreement:

Effective September 1, 2015
Effective September 1, 2016
Effective September 1, 2017
Effective September 1, 2018
Effective September 1, 2019
Effective September 1, 2020

2.0 % (two percent)
2.0 % (two percent)
0.0 % (zero percent)
2.0 % (two percent)
2.0 % (two percent)
2.0 % (two percent)

e Article V — Hours of Work & Overtime will be changed to reflect the current
work schedule of 7:45 AM to 9:00 AM and 2:00 PM to 3:40 PM. This
represents a change to start and stop times only and does not change the
total hours worked per day: that remains fixed at 2 hours and 55 minutes.

e The wage tables in the CBA will be modified to show the hourly pay rate used
to calculate the daily pay rate at 2 hours 55 minutes worked per day.

This Tentative Agreement agreed to by all parties on this ﬁ day of March, 2017.

FOR TH Y FOR THE UNION

/]

J /‘iéﬁl\&a-yo
OV‘?HI,'

%

Aﬁgel Résto, President

Tentative Agreement School Crossing Guards 02-28-2017

Janene Hawkins, Jon
Director of Labor Relations

endron, Lead Supervisor

5¢hool Crossing Guards



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
for the City of Bridgeport

695 Seaview Avenue * Bridgeport, Connecticut 06607-1628
Telephone (203) 332-5550 = Fax (203) 576-7005

WILLIAM E. ROBINSON
Acting General Manager

COMM. #54-16 ACCEPTED AND MADE PART OF THE RECORD on 4/3/2017

MEMORANDUM

TO: Lydia Martinez n;
City Clerk ‘
FROM: William E. Robinson, Acti , 0 ; i al Manager
v
DATE: March 22, 2017
SUBJECT: City of Bridgeport Water Pollution Control Authority

Final Audit of Fiscal 2015-2016.

Attached are 21 copies of the City of Bridgeport Water Pollution Control Authority's Final Audit

Report for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 from BlumShapiro. The expressed opinion from

BlumShapiro is that the financial statements are presented fairly in all material respects. We are

filing at your office pursuant to Water Pollution Control Authority Bridgeport City Ordinance,
Section 13.04-160. Please distribute the copies to the Common Council member with the
original going to the President of the Council.

18311V

Attachments

HY31 ALLD
hEZ o ¢C Uvi LIl

Robinson: 17 0322 City Clerk -FISCAL 2016 APPROVED AUDIT

v

L s> 34
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29 South Main Street Tel 860.561.4000
P.O. Box 272000 Fax 860.521.9241
West Hariford, CT 06127-2000  blumshapiro.com

BlumShapiro

Accounting | Tax | Business Consulting

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors
Water Pollution Control Authority of
The City of Bridgeport, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Water Pollution Control Authority of the
City of Bridgeport, Connecticut (the WPCA) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the WPCA's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in .
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’'s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Blum, Shapiro & Company, P.C. An independent member of Baker Tilly Intemalional



Rpopmsmew:

Opinion

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the WPCA as of June 30, 2016 and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Water Pollution Control Authority of the City of
Bridgeport, Connecticut, are intended to present the financial position, the changes in financial position
and cash flows information of only that portion of the business-type activities of the City of Bridgeport,
Connecticut, that is attributable to the transactions of the WPCA. They do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the City of Bridgeport, Connecticut, as of June 30, 2016, or the
changes in its financial position or its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

g&"”’/ éz“"7“"“" "@"f‘vlec'

West Hartford, Connecticut
January 30, 2017



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2016

EXHIBIT |

Assets:

Current:

.. Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and liens receivable, net of allowances for
doubtful accounts of $5,298,140
Other receivables
Prepaid assets e,

Total current assets IR

Noncurrent:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net of depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Current:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Construction contracts payable
Due to other funds of the City of Bridgeport
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities
Net Position: .
Net investment in capital assets -

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

$ 5,436,605

8,268,041
1,353,949
190,000
15,248,595

13,839,812
117,909,435
131,749,247

146,997,842

4,169,087
2,593,418
220,555
812,916
139,312
7,935,288

36,558,584

44,493,872

91,021,576
11,482,394

$ 102,503,970

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY

EXHIBIT Il

OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Operating Revenues:
Sewer user fees
Miscellaneous income
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Operation and maintenance
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating Income -
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Net nonoperating revenue (expense)
Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions
Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning of Year

Net Position - End of Year

$ 35,481,622
1,114,924
36,596,546

28,711,057
7,741,045
36,452,102

144,444

9,231
(785,183)
(775,952)

(631,508)

4,353,922

3,722,414

98,781,556

$_102,503,370

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

EXHIBIT 1l

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Principal payments on debt
Interest paid on debt
Proceeds from notes payable
Proceeds received on capital grants

Purchase of capital assets
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received on investments

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable and unbilled usage charges

(Increase) decrease in other receivables
(Increase) decrease in prepaids

Increase (decrease) in provision for uncollectible accounts
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds of the City of Bridgeport
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ 37,602,573
(27,856,452)
(873,844)
(583,404)
8,288,873

(5,628,426)
(923,894)
4,491,868
4,353,922
(10,538,282)
(8,244,812)

9,231

53,292

5,383,313

5 5,436,605

$ 144,444

7,741,045

1,074,673
(192,160)
(190,000)

123,514
(583,404)
170,761

$ 8,288,873

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

5



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

Pursuant to an ordinance approved by the City Council (the Ordinance) of the City of Bridgeport,
Connecticut (the City) on April 18, 1988, the Water Pollution Control Authority of the City of Bridgeport,
Connecticut (the WPCA) was established, effective July 1, 1988, to operate and maintain the sewage
system of the City as a self-sustaining activity. The Ordinance requires the WPCA to adopt its own
budget and to be accounted for as a business-type activity of the City. The WPCA is governed by a
Board of Directors consisting of nine members, four of whom are City officials and five of whom are
appointed by the Mayor of the City and approved by the City Council. The financial statements present
only the Water Pollution Control Authority of the City of Bridgeport, Connecticut, and do not purport to,
and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Bridgeport, Connecticut, as of June 30,
2016, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Certain operations of the WPCA are conducted by the City and its employees in accordance with an
agreement of understanding. This agreement outlines the operating and financial responsibilities of the
WPCA and the City and also stipulates the methods by which certain overhead costs incurred by the
City for providing these services are to be reimbursed by the WPCA.

B. Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the WPCA are organized on the basis of an enterprise fund, which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of the fund are accounted for through a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues and expenses.

C. Basis of Accounting

The WPCA utilizes the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are recognized when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, the WPCA considers all unrestricted and restricted highly liquid
investments with an original maturity term of three months or less when purchased to be cash

equivalents.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

E. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are carried at the original amount billed less an estimate made for doubtful
accounts based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. Management determines
the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts and by using historical experience
applied to an aging of accounts. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously written off are recorded
when received.

F. Capital Assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Assets being constructed
over a period of time are classified as construction in progress. Interest expense incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. No depreciation is computed on these assets until they are complete and placed into
service. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the following estimated useful lives:

Facilities and improvements 20-50 years
Equipment 5-20 years

G. Compensated Absences

Vacations earned during the year and not taken can be, subject to certain restrictions, carried over to
the following fiscal year or partly paid in cash. A liability is accrued for that portion of vacation pay that
vests. Unused sick pay is accumulated, subject to certain limitations, for future absences or paid upon
death or retirement.

Vested sick leave and accumulated vacation leave is recognized as an expense and liability as the
benefits accrue to employees. Nonvested sick leave is recognized to the extent it is expected to be
paid. Compensated absences are recorded as short-term liabilities.

H. Due from Other Funds of the City of Bridgeport and Self-Insurance

The City's General Fund pays for all expenses on behalf of the WPCA and bills the WPCA monthly for
such expenses, as well as for certain overhead costs incurred by the City in connection with the
WPCA's operations. The City also makes the principal and interest payments on its outstanding debt,
and bills the WPCA for such payments.

The City self-insures for employee health benefits and workers’ compensation. The WPCA is charged
a premium for health benefits based on rates set by the City. Any underfunding at the City level will
result in increased premiums in later years, but is not believed to be material to the WPCA. The WPCA
is charged for the workers’ compensation claims attributable to its employees based on actual costs.
The WPCA recognizes a liability for workers' compensation claims payable and for claims incurred but
not reported.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016 :

l. Revenues

Revenues are based on the WPCA authorized minimum charges and rates per hundred cubic feet
applied to customer consumption of water. The WPCA accrues an estimate for services delivered but
not billed at the end of each accounting period. The WPCA distinguished operating revenues and
expenses from nonoperating. Operating revenues result from charges to customers for sewer
treatment and related services. Operating expenses include the cost of operations, maintenance, sales
and service, administrative expenses and depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating or capital contributions.

Interest is levied on accounts that are 30 days past due. The WPCA has the authority to file liens on
past due accounts. The liens are payable second to property taxes upon transfer of the respective
properties.

J. Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. - Net investment in capital assets

“consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by any outstanding balances of
any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the WPCA or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws
or regulation of other governments. Restricted resources are used first to fund appropriations.

K. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and
expenditures during the reporting period. The WPCA currently has no assets under restrictions.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of June 30, 2016, cash and cash equivalents, including balances restricted for repayment of
principal and interest on State loans and for capital improvements, consist of the following:

Demand accounts $ 5,433,905
Petty cash 2,700

$__5436.605_

Responsibility for custodial credit risks of deposits rests with the City; accordingly, separate disclosure
is not possible.

Disclosure of the City's custodial credit risk of deposits is contained in the City’s basic financial
statements.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Beginning Additions/ Disposals/ Ending
Balance Transfers Transfers Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ 18,754,074 $ 9824576 $ (14,538,838) $ 13,839,812
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 115,181,892 3,915,672 119,097,664
Machinery and equipment 13,619,471 477,474 13,996,945
Distribution and collection systems 77,110,100 11,706,964 88,817,064
Vehicles 2,727,281 33,300 2,760,581
Total capital assets being depreciated 208,538,844 16,133,410 - 224,672,254
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings-and improvements (66,463,318) (4,695,696) (71,159,014)
Machinery and equipment (8,495,288) (1,219,522) (9,714,810)
Distribution and collection systems (21,744,560) (1,6998,795) (23,444,355)
Vehicles (2,318,608) (126,032) (2,444,640)
Total accumulated depreciation (99,021,774) (7,741,045) - (106,762,819)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 109,517,070 8,392,365 - 117,909,435 -
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $§ 128,271,144 $ 18,016,941 $ (14,538,838) $ 131,749,247

Total depreciation expense was $7,741,045 for the year ended June 30, 2016.'

Construction in progress consists primarily of costs for storm and sanitary sewer separation,
rehabilitation of pump stations and rehabilitation of generators on the West and East Sides.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
| NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
’ JUNE 30, 2016

4. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt at June 30, 2016 consists of the following:

2007 General Obligation Bonds issued by the City on behalf of the

WPCA, bearing interest at 4% to 6% $ 115,000
2009 General Obligation Bonds issued by the City on behalf of the
WPCA, bearing interest at 2% t0 5.7% 1,420,117
2011 General Obligation Bonds issued by the City on behalf of the
WPCA, bearing interest at 1.68% to 6.388% 334,836
2012 General Obligation Bonds issued by the City on behalf of the
WPCA, bearing interest at 3% to 5% 1,397,847
State of Connecticut Clean Water Fund loans, bearing interest at 2% 37,347,850
40,615,650
Less current portion : 4,169,087

$_36446,563

The WPCA does not have the authority to issue debt on its own behalf. All debt issued on behalf of the
WPCA is considered debt of the City. The WPCA pays the principal and interest due on its allocable
portion of the City’s debt.



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

The annual debt service requirements on the above debt at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2017 $ 4,169,087 § 748,661 § 4,917,748

2018 3,912,042 663,212 4,575,254
2019 3,891,943 822,397 4,714,340
2020 3,878,510 625,959 4,504,469
2021 2,348,710 555,292 2,904,002
2022 2,291,633 503,578 2,795,211
2023 2,289,963 450,175 2,740,138
2024 2,122,605 400,810 2,523,415
2025 2,117,187 349,230 2,466,417
2026 2,050,424 300,950 2,351,374
2027 1,853,314 253,802 2,207,116
2028 1,922,484 207,380 2,129,864
2029 1,774,094 . 160,773 1,934,867
2030 1,562,079 117,211 1,679,290
2031 904,655 85,929 990,584
2032 868,870 65,155 924,025
2033 519,095 46,241 565,336
2034 499,113 36,255 535,368
2035 445,860 26,437 472,297
2036 324,008 18,007 343,105
2037 322,711 12,581 335,292
2038 322,711 6,157 328,868
2039 134,462 670 135,132

Total $ 40615650 $§ 6,457,862 $ 47,073,512

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Bonds and notes payable:
General obligation bonds $ 3,475,867 $ 3 208,067 § 3,267,800 $ 213,306
Bond premium 119,515 7,494 112,021
Notes payable 38,276,341 4,491,868 5,420,359 37,347,850 3,955,781
Long-Term Liabilities $ 41871723 $ 4491868 $ 5635920 $ 40727671 $§ 4,169,087
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WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

5. INTEREST COST

The total interest cost incurred during the year ended June 30, 2016 was $785,183. Of this amount,
$152,107 was included as part of the cost of capital assets under construction in connection with
wastewater treatment facilities’ construction projects.

6. RISK MANAGEMENT

The WPCA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The WPCA and the City
~have implemented a program to account for and finance their uninsured risks of loss. Under this
program, the City provides coverage for general liability insurance and employee health insurance, and
the WPCA finances its own risks for workers’ compensation. The WPCA purchases insurance
coverage for its other insurable risks. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of
the past three years.

The WPCA makes payments to the City for employee health claims based on actuarial estimates. The
WPCA does not share in the exposure for the difference between payments to the City and actual
claims paid; thus, no claim liability is reported by the WPCA.

For workers' compensation claims, the WPCA makes payments to the City based on actual claims paid
by the City relating to WPCA employees. The WPCA recognizes a liability for workers’ compensation
claims payable and for claims incurred but not reported, based on an actuarial valuation.

Changes in claims liabilities, primarily workers’ compensation, during the past two years are as follows:

Fiscal Claims Claims and Claims
Year Ended Payable Changes in Claims Payable
June 30, July 1 Estimates Paid June 30
2015 $ 13,358 § 3,000 § 8858 § 7,500
2016 7,500 - - 7,500

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employees of the WPCA are entitled to certain benefits through the City. These benefits include health
care benefits and pension benefits. Information with respect to these benefits is contained in the City’s

basic financial statements.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The WPCA is a defendant in various legal actions principally involving property damage and other
miscellaneous claims. Based upon the advice of legal counsel, management believes that the ultimate

resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of
operation of the WPCA.

12



WATER POLLUTION CONTROL AUTHORITY
OF THE CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

Under various consent decrees issued by the State of Connecticut Department of Environmental
Protection (consent decrees), the WPCA is required to bring both of its treatment facilities in
compliance with Federal standards and eliminate certain combined storm and sanitary sewers. The
estimated cost of these improvements is $244,000,000. As of June 30, 2016, $201,061,105 relating to
these projects, including capitalized interest, has been incurred and included in property, plant and
equipment. Based on current engineering estimates, completion of these projects will be within the
next six years. Funding for these improvements is being provided by the State of Connecticut's Clean
Water Fund in the form of loans and grants. As of June 30, 2016, the State is committed to providing
the WPCA additional funding in the form of loans and grants of $3,624,141 and $3,592,153,
respectively.

9. PRIVATIZATION AGREEMENT

On October 8, 2013, the WPCA entered into a ten-year agreement (the Agreement) with a new
independent contractor (the Contactor) to provide operations, maintenance and management services
to its two wastewater treatment facilities and collection system. This agreement took effect on
January 1, 2014. This Agreement replaced the previous contractor who had agreed to stay through
December 31, 2013.
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City of Bridgeport, Connecticut

CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE

999 Broad Street
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604
Telephone (203) 332-5662
Fax (203) 332-5657

ISOLINA DeJESUS
Administrative Manager
Central Grants

JOSEPH P. GANIM
Mayor

COMM. #55-16 Ref'd to ECD&E Committee

April 3,2017 on 04/03/2017

Office of the City Clerk
City of Bridgeport
45 Lyon Terrace, Room 204
Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604 = _ 2
—i = —
™m = <
nﬁ F DQep
Re: Resolution — State of Connecticut Department of Transportation¥ederal %an;"ﬁm
Administration Section 5310 Program — Bus Purchase (#17230) 'f) _*‘g »;FJ:?‘ :
= <
Attached, please find a Grant Summary and Resolution for the State of Connecticut partmght obg :
Transportation Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 Program — Bus Purchase (#ﬂ,jZS@to
be referred to the Committee on Economic and Community Development and Environmentyf t6o
City Council. -‘ c ™
Grant: City of Bridgeport application to the State of Connecticut Department of
Transportation Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 Program — Bus

Purchase (#17230)

If you have any questions or require any additional information please contact me at 203-576-7732 or
gabriel filer@bridgeportct.gov.

Thank you,

Gabit] Fite,

Gabriel Filer
Central Grants Office



GRANT SUMMARY

M

PROJECT TITLE: State of Connecticut Department of Transportation Federal Transit
Administration Section 5310 Program — Bus Purchase (#17230)

NEW x RENEWAL CONTINUING
DEPARTMENT SUBMITTING INFORMATION: Central Grants Office
CONTACT NAME: Gabriel Filer

PHONE NUMBER: 203-576-7732

PROJECT SUMMARY/DESCRIPTION: The City of Bridgeport Department on Aging is seeking
funding for the purchase of a new service bus to transport clients to each of the city’s four senior centers.
The current bus is eight years old and has reached the end of its “useful life” as defined by the Section
5310 Program.

The Senior Transportation Program is currently operated by the Department on Aging. This program
transports seniors from their permanent address to the Eisenhower Senior Center. Under this grant
proposal, the Department on Aging intends to expand transportation service to each of the city’s four
senior centers.

CONTRACT PERIOD: October 2017 — October 2022

IF APPLICABLE

FUNDING SOURCES (include matching/in-kind funds):
Federal:

State: $52,000

City: $13,000 (Cash)

Other: N/A

FUNDS REQUESTED
Salaries/Benefits: N/A
Supplies: N/A

Equipment: $65,000



A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council
Regarding the
State of Connecticut Department of Transportation

Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 Program

WHEREAS, the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation is authorized to extend financial
assistance to municipalities in the form of grants; and

WHEREAS, this funding has been made possible through the Federal Transit Administration Section
5310 Program; and

WHEREAS, funds under this grant will be used to purchase a replacement bus for the Department on
Aging Senior Transportation Program; and

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the public interest that the City of Bridgeport, Office of Central
Grants, submits an application to the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation to purchase
a service bus

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL:

1. That it is cognizant of the City’s grant application to and contract with the State of Connecticut
Department of Transportation for the purpose of the Federal Transit Administration Section
5310 Program; and

2. That it hereby authorizes, directs and empowers the Mayor or his designee, the Director of the
Central Grants, to execute and file such application with the State of Connecticut Department
of Transportation Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 Program (#17230) and to
provide such additional information and to execute such other contracts, amendments, and
documents as may be necessary to administer this program.



CITY OF BRIDGEPORT
CITY ATTORNEY OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

R. Christopher Meyer 999 Broad Street
Bridgeport, CT 06604-4328

DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY

ASSOCIATE CITY ATTORNEYS

John P. Bohannon, Jr.
ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEYS
Eroll V. Skyers
Mark T. Anastasi Tamara J. Titre
Richard G. Kascak, Jr.
Bruce L. Levin
Russell D. Liskov
John R. Mitola
Lawrence A. Ouellette, Jr.
Ronald J. Pacacha
Tyisha S. Toms

Lisa R. Trachtenburg  COMM. #56-16 Ref’d to Miscellaneous Matters Committee
On 04/03/2017

Telephone (203) 576-7647
Facsimile (203)576-8252

March 28, 2017

The Honorable City Council
of the City of Bridgeport
45 Lyon Terrace
Bridgeport, CT 06604

Re: Proposed Settlement in the Matter of Lonnie Blackwell v. City of Bridgeport, et al.
Federal District Court Docket No: 3:15-cv-00046 (JBA)

Dear Councilpersons:
The Office of the City Attorney respectfully recommends the following pending matter be settled as set

forth below. It is our professional opinion that resolving this matter for the consideration agreed to
between the parties is in the best interests of the City of Bridgeport.

Plaintiff Nature of Claim Plaintiff's Attorney Consideration
Lonnie Blackwell Civil Rights Thomas Bucci, Esq. $ 65,000.00

Kindly place this matter on the agenda for the City Council meeting on April 3, 2017 for referral to the
Miscellaneous Matters Committee only. Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

Very truly yours,

). CRoe Mrypan

R. Christopher Meyer
City Attorney

cc: Lydia Martinez, City Clerk
Richard G. Kascak, Jr., Esq.
Danielle Kripps, Paralegal



CITY OF BRIDGEPORT
CITY ATTORNEY OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

R. Christopher Meyer 999 Broad Street
Bridgeport, CT 06604-4328
DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY
John P. Bohannon, Jr.
ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEYS
Eroll V. Skyers
Tamara J. Titre

ASSOCIATE CITY ATTORNEYS
Mark T. Anastasi
Richard G. Kascak, Jr.

Bruce L. Levin

Russell D. Liskov
John R. Mitola

Lawrence A. Quellette, Jr.

Ronald J. Pacacha

Tyisha S. Toms

Lisa R. Trachtenburg  COMM. #57-16 Ref’d to Miscellaneous Matters Committee
On 04/03/2017

Telephone (203) 576-7647
Facsimile (203)576-8252

March 28, 2017

The Honorable City Council
of the City of Bridgeport
45 Lyon Terrace
Bridgeport, CT 06604

Re: Proposed Settlement in the Matter of Jesus Manuel Perez v. City of Bridgeport, et al.
Federal District Court Docket No: 3:15¢v01590 (JCH)

Dear Councilpersons:

The Office of the City Attorney respectfully recommends the following pending matter be settled as set
forth below. It is our professional opinion that resolving this matter for the consideration agreed to
between the parties is in the best interests of the City of Bridgeport.

Plaintiff Nature of Claim Plaintiff's Attorney Consideration
Jesus Manuel Perez Police Misconduct Thomas E. Minogue, Esq. $42,500.00

Kindly place this matter on the agenda for the City Council meeting on April 3, 2017 for referral to the
Miscellaneous Matters Committee only. Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

Very truly yours,

T S Lyt

R. Christopher Meyer
City Attorney

cc: Lydia Martinez, City Clerk
Richard G. Kascak, Jr., Esq.
Danielle Kripps, Paralegal



City of Bridgeport
OFFICE OF PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
OFFICE OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Margaret E. Morton Government Center
999 Broad Street, Bridgeport, Connecticut 06604

Phone: (203) 576-7221 Fax: (203) 332-5611 Thomas Gill
Director
Ginne-Rae Clay
Joseph P. Ganim  COMM. # 58-16 (Ref. #37-12 & 96-15) Ref'd to Deputy Director
Mayor Special Committeee on CDBG Proggam.
TO: Honorable Members of the Bridgeport City Council
FROM: Thomas Gill, Director, Office of Planning and Economic Development
Ginne-Rae Clay, Deputy Director OPED/Housing and Community Development
RE: Community Development Block Grant Program Proposed Amendment to the City of
Bridgeport's Consolidated Plan for Housing & Community Development (2013 - 2018)
and PY 42 Annual Plan, including fund balance from FY 2012 = .
- = =
m o R
Date: March 31, 2017 QC_"’ = ';:;o
oy 29 .’“m
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Please be advised the City of Bridgeport will issue a Request for Public Comment and Notice of _':_'1
Community Development Block Grant Program fund availability in the amount of $ 2 7,833.4Z on gpril

4, 2017 in order to amend the City's Consolidated Plan for Housing & Community Developmed 2019-
2018 (Con Plan) and funding from FY 2012. These funds are disbursed locally in accordance with the
City's Citizen Participation Plan which requires a public comment period; meeting of the Citizen’s Union and City
Council action on the proposed amendment.

The amendment includes a request to reprogram $ 217,833.47 of CDBG funds from previously approved
activities that did not advance, were completed for amounts less than originally approved by the City of
Bridgeport or are recommended to be moved forward to the same activity in PY42 for accounting
purposes. The reprogramming results from the reconciliation of the federal IDIS (Integrated
Disbursement Information System) and included the reconciliation of 14 accounts overall. See detailed
on the attached document.

The Department is recommending the redistribution of these funds to two (2) City of
Bridgeport departments. The city’s Department of Health and Social Services (HSS) and the
Department of Public Facilities (PF). The department of HSSS was unsuccessful in its bid to
secure continued funding for the Bridgeport Lead Hazard Control Program formerly known
as the Bridgeport Lead Free Family’s Program, which provides clean and safe living
environments for families with children under the age of six. These are allocated to low/mod
income property owners who rent to families with young children who are at risk of lead
exposure or have elevated lead levels. These funds will allow the HSS to continue to abate
homes. In addition the HSS will purchase carbon dioxide/smoke detectors that will further
create safe living environments for low/moderate Bridgeport residents. The department of PF
will use funds to continue neighborhood streetscape improvements, and beautification



throughout the NRZ'’s, cleanup, purchase of trash receptacles, creating safe corridors, park
improvement etc. The department will make these recommendations to the Citizens Union.

Generally speaking, the goals of the CDBG program are to develop viable urban communities
through the provision of decent, safe, and sanitary housing, a suitable living environment and
expanded economic opportunities primarily for low and moderate income persons. The
recommended activities meet of the following national objectives:

® Provide a benefit to low/moderate income persons.

More specifically, these recommendations meet a need identified within the City's current
Con Plan:

o (Citywide Lead Prevention

®  Public Improvement/Infrastructure

e  Public Facility

® Rental Acquisition and Housing Rehabilitation

Please be further advised public service and planning/administration activities are not eligible
for consideration as part of this reprogramming amendment given that the City's previously
approved activities for the current federal program year already meet the maximum
guidelines established by CDBG regulations. It is also important to keep in mind that the City
is mandated to have no more than 1.5 times its current CDBG grant award available on its
federal line of credit as of May 1, 2017 so it is important to fund activities that will allow the
City to continue to meet this timeliness standard established by HUD.

Staff will be available at all of the upcoming meetings to answer questions and to provide you with
additional information. For your consideration, attached please find a draft resolution authorizing the
allocation of these funds. Please keep in mind that additional information will be provided to you as it
becomes available but, in the meantime, it is necessary to submit this resolution to you for initial
consideration in order to allow the recommended agencies as much time prior to May 2017 deadline to
spend all funds approved.

Thank you for your consideration.

cc: Daniel Shamas, Chief of Staff
Kimberly Staley, CAO
Nestor Nkwo, OPM Director



CITY OF BRIDGEPORT PROPOSED SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT TO THE CITY'S CONSOLIDATED PLAN
FOR HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

DRAFT RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bridgeport previously authorized Community Development
Block Grant funding for program activities during various CDBG Program years; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to reprogram $217,833.47 of funds from previously approved activities that:
did not advance, were completed for amounts less than originally approved by the City of Bridgeport or
will be moved forward to the same activity in PY42; and

WHEREAS, this request constitutes a substantial amendment and, as such, requires public notice, Citizen
Union consideration, and City Council authorization; and

WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for Public Comment and Notice of Fund Availability; and

WHEREAS, the Department recommended the redistribution of these funds to two (2) City of Bridgeport
departments. The city’s Department of Health and Social Services (HSS) and the Department of Public
Facilities (PF); and

WHEREAS, the department of HSS was unsuccessful in its bid to secure continued funding for the
Bridgeport Lead Hazard Control Program formerly known as the Bridgeport Lead Free Family’s Program,
which provides clean and safe living environments for families with children under the age of six. These
are allocated to low/mod income property owners who rent to families with young children who are at
risk of lead exposure or have elevated lead levels. These funds will allow the HSS to continue to abate
homes. In addition the HSS will purchase carbon dioxide/smoke detectors that will further create safe
living environments for low/moderate Bridgeport residents; and

WHERESAS, the department of Public Facilities will use funds to continue neighborhood streetscape
improvements, and beautification throughout the NRZ’s, cleanup, purchase of trash receptacles,
creating safe corridors, park improvement etc. The department will make these recommendations to
the Citizens Union.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Bridgeport accepts the proposal for expenditures of
Community Development Block Grant funds;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor of the City of Bridgeport or the designated individual
(Director of Housing and Community Development) is hereby authorized and empowered to sign all
contracts, documents, and/or agreements necessary to implement the activities listed above in an
expedient fashion and in accordance with all of HUD's Community Development Block Grant Program
rules, regulations, and requirements.




LIST OF ALLOCATIONS WITH BALANCES AVAILABLE TO REPROGRAM

FY 2012-2016

Year PY Agency Council Approval Available to
Reprogram
2012 38 COB - OPED $50,000 $50,000
Business Loan
Fund
2013 39 COB - $25,000 $1,185
Lead Program
2014 40 COB - Dept on $37,820 $4002.46
Aging
40 City of Bridgeport $90,000 $1884.09
Mayor’s
Conservation Corp
40 S. End Community $6,200 $6,200
Center
40 Cardinal Shehan $17,000 $875
Center
40 COB - $20,000 $2,225
Health & Social
Services
Healthy Corner
40 COB - HCD $140,000 $35,108.31
Housing Delivery
40 Grtr Bport Comm. $25,000 1,327.80
Enterprise
2015 41 COB - HSS — Utility $15,000 3,882.77
Shut off
41 Hollow NRZ $12,045.40 > $1,04§j
a1 COB -HCD $140,000 —  $32935714
" 5 m _—
Housing Delivery b =
41 Kennedy Center $33,900 = $33,900° e
< [k o
Beacon House W o
a1 COB - HCD $540,215 ]| $77,130.903&
Planning & Admin = U QS
£ m
& ®




Ortiz, Frances

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Castillo, Gloria

Friday, March 31, 2017 4:02 PM
Clay, Ginne-Rae

Ortiz, Frances

Letter to City Council - Revised
Ltr to City Council_001.pdf

Hi Ginne, as requested, please see attached revised letter to the City Council Members. Thank you.
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Htem# *35-16 Consent Calendar

Grant Submission: re University of Connecticut for
a SURDNA Green Infrastructure Sub-Grant. (Project
#16263)

Committee
on

CECP and Envbironment

City Council Meeting Date: April 3, 2017

Lydia N. Martinez, City Clerk
o

Approved py: \\ \

Qommﬁ\rn. Ganlim, Mayor
Date Signed: \M\ /4 N\\\ “
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City of Bridgeport, Connecticut
Office of the City Clerk

Co the Gity Gouncil of the Gity of SBridgeport.

The Committee on Economic and Community Development and
Environment begs leave to report; and recommends for adoption the following
resolution:

ItmNo *35-16 Consent Calendar

A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council
Regarding the
University of Connecticut
SURDNA Green Infrastructure Grant

WHEREAS, the University of Connecticut is authorized to extend
financial assistance to municipalities in the form of grants; and

WHEREAS, this funding has been made possible through the SURDNA
Green Infrastructure Grant; and

WHEREAS, funds under this grant will be used to implement a grant to
create a model of green infrastructure that incorporates public education,
civic engagement, community building, youth involvement and artful design
and place-making into stormwater management efforts; and

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the public interest that the City of
Bridgeport Office of Planning and Economic Development submits an

application to the University of Connecticut to create a model of green
infrastructure.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY
COUNCIL:

1. That it is cognizant of the City’s grant application to and contract with
the University of Connecticut for the purpose of its SURNDA Green
Infrastructure Project; and

2. That it hereby authorizes and empowers the Mayor or his designee,
the Director of Central Grants, to execute and file such application
with the University of Connecticut and to provide such additional
information and to execute such other contracts, amendments, and
documents as may be necessary to administer this program.



City of Bridgeport, Connecticut
Office of the City Clerk

Report of Committee on ECD and Environment
Item No. *35-16 Consent Calendar

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,
THE COMMITTEE ON

ECONOMIC AND ’,OMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIR J ENT
\ / S /
‘ M Il %M 7Mv€ A 1%
J

Milta I. Feliciano, D/ 7th, Co-Chair M. Evette Brantley, b-13lénd, Co-Chair

Michelle A. Lyons, D-134th

Y24

Eneida L. Martinez, D-139th

ﬂzette Herr;n, D-133rd

City Council Date: April 3, 2017



Jtem#t ¥*42-16 PHO Consent Calendar
Public Hearing Ordered for April

il 17, 2017: re
Disposition of Certain City Owned properties (6) by
Auction, by Sale to Abutter or by Sale to Community
Based Housing Development Corporations

Committee
on

ECD and Enbironment

City Council Meeting Date: April 3, 2017

Attest: &u\k\r\( J)%M\M

h@&:n

BASNW O&@rﬁ.\?ln

Approved by:

7

Date Signed:

Qom&u \0 nim, Mayor
\

wiad A NLSBXN



City of Bridaeport, Connecticut
Office of the City Clerk

Co the Gity Gouncil of the Gity of SBridgeport.

The Committee on Economic and Community Development and
Environment begs leave to report; and recommends for adoption the following
resolution:

Item No *42-16 PHO Consent Calendar

BE IT RESOLVED, that a Public Hearing be held before the City Council
on Monday evening, April 17, 2017 beginning at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council
Chambers, City Hall, 45 Lyon Terrace, Bridgeport, Connecticut, relative to the
Disposition of Certain City-Owned properties by Auction Sale to Abutter or by
Sale to Community Based Housing Development Corporations.

33 Washington Place

59 Highland Avenue

156 North Washington Avenue

280 Grandview Avenue

377 Nichols Street

120-148-160-174 Bishop Avenue aka 1225 CT Avenue

CTFULLY SUBMITTED,
THE COMMITTEE ON
OMIC AND COGMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND ENV;

- Evette Brantley,

Milta ¥F ﬁé/ﬁéiano, Dﬂ}: Co-Chair

die /.

Mary Mc\Bjid

Michelle A. Lyons, D-134th

et #~

Eneida L. Martinez, D-139th

P

_ Jeanette Herrén, D-133rd
City Council Date: April 3, 2017




Htem# *45-16 Consent Calendar

Grant Submission: re Small Business
Administration for the Aspire Challenge Grant.
(Project #18243)

Committee
on

CECP and Environment

City Council Meeting Date: April 17, 2017

Attest: K.\*“Pl\( J) /b\_n(ﬂﬁ“ruﬂ

Mm&n N. Martinez;\City €lerk
\WNJ <)
Approved by: \\/ \\ \

Joseph 3\ Mayor
Z -
Date Signed; \\\ 47
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City of Bridgeport, Connecticut
Office of the City Clerk

Co the Gity Gouncil of the Gity of SBridgeport.

The Committee on Economic and Community Development and

Environment begs leave to report; and recommends for adoption the following
resolution:

Item No. *45-16 Consent Calendar

A Resolution by the Bridgeport City Council
Regarding the
Small Business Administration
Aspire Challenge

WHEREAS, the Small Business Administration is authorized to extend
financial assistance to municipalities in the form of grants; and

WHEREAS, this funding has been made possible through the Aspire
Challenge; and

WHEREAS, funds under this grant will be used to support the
implementation of an entrepreneurship development program targeted
toward formerly incarcerated and non-violent ex-offenders; and

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the public interest that the City of
Bridgeport Small and Minority Business Resource Office submits an
application to the Small Business Administration to support the
implementation of an entrepreneurship development program targeted
toward formerly incarcerated and non-violent ex-offenders.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY
COUNCIL:

1. That it is cognizant of the City’s grant application to and contract with
the Small Business Administration for the purpose of its Aspire
Challenge.

2. That it hereby authorizes, directs and empowers the Mayor or his
designee, the Central Grants Director, to execute and file such
application with the Small Business Administration and to provide
such additional information and to execute such other contracts,
amendments, and documents as may be necessary to administer this
program.



City of Bridaeport, Connecticut
Office of the City Clerk

f Committee on ECD and Environment
. *45-16 Consent Calendar

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,
THE COMMITTEE ON
ECONOMIC AND MMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENT

W 1 bt /4,

Milta I Feliciano, %//5 7th, Co-Chair M’ Ryette Brantley, D-182nd, Co-Chair
Mary McBride- D-135th Michelle A. Lyons, D-134th
Aidee Nieves, D-137th e ‘ Eneida L. Martinez, D-139th

et 2

_ Jédnette Herron, D-133rd

\

City Council Date: April 3, 2017
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tem# *70-15 Consent Calendar

Appointment of Clement Young (D) to the Water
Pollution Control Authority Commission.

Committee
on

Mliscellaneous Matters

City Council Meeting Date: April 3, 2017

Attest: Ku\%(? n fx.nsHMZx

Lydia N. Martinez, City Clerk

3
wororstn S ST

Qm.mmﬁ% m, Mayor

Date Signed: \\\\\X I
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City of Bridaeport, Connecticut
Office of the City Clerk

Co the Gty Gouncil of the Gity of OBridgeport.

The Committee on Miscellaneous Matters begs leave to report; and
recommends for adoption the following resolution:

ItemNO *70-15 Consent Calendar

RESOLVED, That the following named individual be, and hereby is,
Appointed to the Water Pollution Control Authority Commission in the City
of Bridgeport and that said appointment, be and hereby is, approved,
ratified and confirmed.

NAME TERM EXPIRES

Clement Young (D) December 31, 2019
50 Ridgefield Avenue
Bridgeport, CT 06610

*This will replace the seat held by Jose Ortiz.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,
THE COMMITTEE ON
MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

() X

' Alg.-g‘uvll Y oY 7 .
hhiteia; D er, St D-135% Co-chair

2134 Co-Chair

John W. Olson, D-132nd

City Council Date: April 3, 2017



Item# *48-16 Consent Calendar

Settlement of Pending Litigation with Jane Doe

Committee
on

Miscellaneous Hatters

City Council Meeting Date: April 3, 2017

Attest: NJ\E\,&( n. gD\HW\/UU

N.ME&.Q N. Martinez, City Clerk

Approved by: Q
. seph P.

7
% w\@ow
Date Signed: v \\ \ /7
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City of Bridgeport, Connecticut
Office of the City Clerk

Co the Gity Gouncil of the Gity of SBridgeport.

The Committee on Miscellaneous Matters begs leave to report; and
recommends for adoption the following resolution:

ItemNo . *48-16 Consent Calendar

WHEREAS, a lawsuit in the following name was filed against the City of Bridgeport
and/or its employees and investigation disclosed the likelihood on the part of the City for
which, in the event of suit and trial, the City might be held liable, and '

WHEREAS, negotiations with the Plaintiff’s attorney has made it possible to settle this
suit for the figure set forth below, and the City Attorney, therefore, recommends the
following settlement be accepted, Now, Therefore be it

RESOLVED, That the Comptroller be, and hereby is authorized, empowered and
directed to draw his order on the City Treasurer payable as follows:

NAME ATTORNEY NATURE of CLAIM  SETTLEMENT
Jane Doe Kevin Shea, Esq. Civil Rights $40,000.00
Clendenen & Shea
400 Orange Street

New Haven, CT 06511

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the amount set forth as above are paid to the
Plaintiff’s attorney in full payment, settlement, release and discharge of all rights and cause
of action described in the suit instituted by the above mentioned Plaintiff against the City and
known as docket numbers in the courts set forth; provided, however, that the City’s draft
shall not be delivered to the Plaintiff’s attorneys until the City Attorney has been furnished
with a full release and discharge in writing in each case, approved by the City Attorney or
Deputy City Attorney.



City of WBridgeport, Connecticut
Office of the City Clerk

Report of Committee on Miscellaneous Matters
Item No. *48-16 Consent Calendar

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,
THE COMMITTEE ON
MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS

i lNeeRae Dl lpts o

Ama e Vizzo-Pahi ia, D-134" Co-Chair /Richard D. Saltét, Sr., D-135" Co-chair

John W. Olson, D-132nd

City Council Date: April 3, 2017



OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
999 BROAD STREET
BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT 06604
TELEPHONE (203)576-7201
FAX (203)576-3913

JOSEPHP.GANIM COMM. #59-16 Ref'd to Budget & Appropriations Committee
on 04/03/2017 (OFF THE FLOOR).

Mayor

April 3, 2017

The Honorable City Council
City of Bridgeport

C/O Lydia Martinez, City Clerk ™
45 Lyon Terrace I3 =~ 9
Bridgeport, CT 06604 = ) :g

- =

. 5 = 2@

RE: Mayor’s Proposed General Fund Operating Budget for FY 2017-2018 ~ ; mg’:

FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE ON BUDGET & APPROPRIATIONS X o ::xo m

m <

) “5

Dear Honorable Council Members, a _3? _C,?'D

- ™

Pursuant to Bridgeport Charter, Chapter 9, Section 5 (c), | am pleased to submit the Mayor’s Ptﬂ)os@
2017-2018 Budget to the City Council. This proposed budget is a sound budget, a balanced budget, and

a lean plan for our next year in City Government.

I look forward to working with the City Council to achieve a budget that benefits the citizens of
Bridgeport.

This 2017-2018 Mayor’s Proposed Budget is aggressive and will be a well managed plan which keeps
spending at a minimum and almost flat year over year, totaling $542 million. (This past year’s budget
was $552 million.) Next year’s plan also includes almost $10 million in state aid appropriated directly to

the BOE.

Quality of Life & Cost of Living Expenses
| am proud to announce that Real Estate Taxes will hold the line. |am determined to continue to fight

to not raise property taxes.
We are projecting a tax DECREASE for all of our residents who own a motor vehicle. The automobile

taxes will drop by almost 14% per vehicle. This is a 5 mil decrease from 37 down to 32mils.

Quality of Life & Safety
297 Firefighters - with a strengthened Fire Department, and more firefighters due to our successful

efforts to secure federal grant funding.

430 Police Officers - this is inclusive of the next class of recruits for the BPD and will total our manpower
of almost 500 employees in our Police Department.



Page Two

Know that these budget projections for our City are predicated on the State of Connecticut Governor’s
Proposal, which includes up to $20 million in state funding. We are thankful for the support of our

Bridgeport State Delegation to seek out revenue opportunities, forge relationships, and secure state
resources.

o

Singefely,
e

enese Taylor-Moye, BAC Co-Chair

Scott Burns, BAC, Co-Chair

Daniel Shamas, Chief of Staff

Nestor Nkwo, Director of OPM

Kenneth Flatto, Director of Finance

R. Christopher Meyer, City Attorney
Mark T. Anastasi, Associate City Attorney
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY BUDGET & ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FISCAL YEAR
The City of Bridgeport’s Fiscal Year begins July 1 and ends June 30.

BALANCED BUDGET

The Charter of the City of Bridgeport mandates a balanced budget. For the purposes of meeting
this requirement, each year a budget is adopted in which the projected expenditures are equal to
the projected revenues.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The City of Bridgeport's accounting system is operated on a fund basis. A fund is a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts in which cash and other financial
resources or balances are recorded and segregated to carry on specific activities or attain certain
objectives in accordance with specific regulations and limitations. The operations of the general
fund are maintained on a modified accrual basis, with revenues recorded when measurable and
available and the expenditures recorded when the services or goods are received and liabilities
are incurred. In contrast, accounting records for the City’'s enterprise, pension and
nonexpendable trust funds are managed on the accrual basis of accounting. The types of funds
utilized by the City are as follows: general; special revenue; capital projects; enterprise; and trust
and agency. The type and number of individual funds established is determined by GAAP and
sound financial administration.

BUDGET PROCEDURE

The Mayor’'s annual budget is developed by the City’s Office of Policy & Management (OPM).
The budget is submitted to the City Council, which in turn makes additions aid changes~gs
necessary before turning it over to the Mayor for approval. The City maintains GfigetaBRcoatiol
through the Office of Policy & Management. The objective of budgetary canffdl is @_"enssre
compliance with the legal provisions embodied in the annual adopted budgef; pprovey byﬁﬂm
City Council. The level of budgetary control is established by organization, agefcy, appqopria‘m@
and object. The City of Bridgeport also utilizes an encumbrance accoun systedr as ~gf8
technique for accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbrances reserve appropfations whjch hég
been obligated through purchase orders or other contractual documents. ZEphcumbrarces=aes
reported as reservations of fund balance at the end of the year. Trapsfers ¢fi ce_%in
appropriations between departments require the approval of the City Council. Thg Cigp of
Bridgeport's Capital & General Fund Budgets must be adopted by the City Council'and=ppfdted
by the Mayor. '

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The management of the City of Bridgeport is maintained through a control structure designed to
ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. The control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that
these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from that cost and that the valuation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments be made by management. In addition, the
City of Bridgeport has an internal audit staff responsible for monitoring the various City
departments in compliance with the City Charter, ordinances, and all other policies and
procedures.

As a recipient of Federal, State and local financial assistance, the City of Bridgeport is
responsible for ensuring adequate internal control policies and procedures are in place to ensure

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT

al



FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY BUDGET & ACCOUNTING POLICIES

and document compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to these programs. This
internal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management as well.

LEGAL DEBT LIMIT

The total overall statutory debt limit for the City is equal to seven times annual receipts from
taxation, or $2.09 billion. All long-term debt obligations are retired through General Fund
appropriations or user charges. As of June 30, 2016, the City recorded long-term debt of $662.2
million related to Governmental Activities and $40.7 million related to Business-Type Activities,
well below its statutory debt limit. For more information on debt service, see the debt service
section.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City carries
commercial insurance for insurable risks of loss except for general liability, workers'
compensation and employee health and dental insurance. Coverage has not been materially
reduced, nor have settled claims exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three years.

The City carries no insurance coverage for losses arising out of workers' compensation claims.
These claims are paid from the General Fund. This is accounted for in the governmental
activities of the government-wide statements.

The City maintains a group health and dental self-insurance plan to pay for medical claims of
current and retired City employees and their covered dependents. Approximately 4,181 active
employees and 3,736 retirees receive their health coverage through this plan. Payments related
to these claims are made by an outside administrator under an administrative services contract
and are accounted for in the Internal Service Fund. The current contracts require that
approximately $2,461,540 be deposited with the amount being recorded as a prepaid asset in the
accompanying balance sheet. As of June 30, 2016, the amount of prepaid asset in the fund is
$2,461,540.

The liability for general liability, workers' compensation and group health insurance includes all
known claims reported plus a provision for those claims incurred but not reported, net of
estimated recoveries. The liability is based on past experience adjusted for current trends and
includes incremental claim expenditures. The liability for workers' compensation claims is
calculated using actuarial methods. Changes in the reported liability are as follows:

A reconciliation of changes in the aggregate liabilities for claims for the 2001-2016 fiscal years:

CURRENT YEAR
LIABILITY: START OF CLAIMS & CHANGES LIABILITY: END OF
FISCAL YEAR IN ESTIMATES CLAIM PAY MENTS FISCAL YEAR

2016 $ 76,149977 $ 89,186,492 $ 95,686,558 $ 69,649,911
2015 $ 100,760,078 $ 76,864,705 $ 101474806 $ 76,149,977
2014 $ 104770856 $ 109,095945 $ 113,106,723 $ 100,760,078
2013 $ 102,185796 $ 106,837,040 $ 104,251,980 $ 104,770,856
2012 $ 109,987,266 $ 99431453 $ 107,232,923 $ 102,185,796
2011 $ 83,701,474 $ 124650961 $ 98,365,169 $ 109,987,266
2010 $ 72277783 $ 119677303 $ 108253612 $ 83,701,474
2009 $ 67,301,000 $ 102263,079 $ 90,691,701 $ 72,277,783
2008 $ 65,740,860 $ 88,167,399 $ 86,607,259 $ 67,301,000
2007 $ 50,070,000 $ 95,669,180 $ 79,998,320 $ 65,740,860
2006 $ 54,076,619 $ 71,379,804 § 75,386,423 $ 50,070,000
2005 $ 62,045,079 $ 66,036,204 $ 74,004,664 $ 54,076,619
2004 % 61,964,745 § 66,974,067 $ 66,893,733 § 62,045,079
2003 § 65,787,386 $ 59,776,938 § 63,699,579 § 61,964,745
2002 $ 81,968,096 $ 42,867,583 § 59,048,293 $ 65,787,386

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY BUDGET & ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AUDIT

State Statutes require an annual audit conducted by independent certified public accountants.
Portions of these audits are included in the City’'s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, and
these can be accessed through the City’'s website,
http://www.bridgeportct.gov/filestorage/89019/89745/Bridgeport_FY2016_Financial_Statements.pdf

UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCE POLICY

PURPOSE

To maintain a balance of funds within the total unreserved, undesignated fund balance to be
available for unforeseen contingencies.

Definition: Unreserved, undesignated fund balance is the remaining balance available following
the reduction for “resources not available for spending” or “legal restrictions” (reservation) and
‘management’s intended future use of resources” (designation).

POLICY

The sum of all components identified for the undesignated fund balance level will be set at no less than
8.00% of annual operating expenditures and other financing uses (transfers out) of the prior audited fiscal
year with the annual approval by the City Council. In the event that the undesignated fund balance exceeds
12.00%, the amount exceeding this percentage may be available for appropriation at the discretion of the
Mayor with the approval of City Council.

RATIONALE

The City of Bridgeport recognizes the importance of maintaining an appropriate level of undesignated fund
balance on a Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) basis to withstand short-term financial
emergencies. After evaluating the City’s operating characteristics, its overall financial health, the diversity
and flexibility of its tax base, the reliability of non-property tax revenues sources, the City’s working capital
needs, the impact of state policies regarding tax exempt properties and PILOT reimbursements on City
revenues, Brownfield policies, the national, state and local economic outlooks, emergency and disaster
risks, other contingent issues and the impact on the City bond ratings of all these factors, the City of
Bridgeport hereby establishes goals regarding the appropriate handling and funding of the undesignated
fund balance.

The City of Bridgeport's formal undesignated fund balance policy shall be to maintain adequate
unencumbered reserves to accomplish the following objectives:
(1)  Have sufficient funds available for appropriation for unforeseen expenditures or unforeseen
shortfalls in revenue after adoption of the annual budget ; and
(2)  Avoid unexpected spikes in the mill rate caused by non-reoccurring revenues.

REPLENISHMENT OF SHORTFALL

The undesignated fund balance of the General Fund may fall below the approved minimum level due to
fluctuations between planned and actual revenues and expenditures, other financial emergencies or
catastrophic events of an unforeseen nature. When an audited shortfall is reported in the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR), it must be rebuilt during the following ensuing fiscal years. This will be
achieved by adding an annual appropriation, during the budgeting process of a minimum of 10% of the
difference between the fund balance policy level and the undesignated fund balance presented in the latest
audited statements.

When dealing with the unanticipated sale of municipal assets, no less than 50% of the “gain on sale of city
asset” must be deposited toward the undesignated fund balance until the 12.00% goal has been achieved.

The maintenance of undesignated levels is not to be construed as surpluses or over-taxation by the City.
Rather, it is an element of sound fiscal management required for sustaining a high credit rating and financial
management flexibility.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY BUDGET & ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DESCRIPTION OF FUND STRUCTURE

The accounts of the City of Bridgeport are organized on the basis of funds and account groups,
utilizing a fund structure in which fund activities are aggregated for specific purposes. A fund is a
combination of related accounts used to maintain control & accountability of resources that are
dedicated to specific activities or objectives. The City of Bridgeport, like other state & local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure appropriate fiscal control and to demonstrate our
compliance with accepted accounting principles set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board.

Detailed financial schedules for all of the funds described below are not contained within this
budget document. This document includes information on the General Fund, as well as some
detail on the Internal Service Fund, and Capital Project Funds. Of these funds, only the General
Fund is subject to appropriation. Detail on the other funds described below can be found in the
City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, prepared by the Finance Department, and can be
accessed through the City's website, http://www.bridgeportct.gov/finance Grateful
acknowledgement of the assistance of the Finance Department in providing certain schedules
and detail from the 2016 CAFR is noted here, and we have provided attribution for these
throughout the budget book, as is applicable.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
The City of Bridgeport maintains 19 individual governmental funds. The major funds of these
19 are discussed below.

THE GENERAL FUND is the primary operating fund of the city. It is the largest fund
which encompasses traditional governmental services, and is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is
primarily supported by the property tax. General Fund revenues are displayed by type in the
Revenue Summary section of this budget and by department in the Budget Detail section.
Appropriations are also listed by department in the Budget Detail section. Governmental
funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and
available.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS are used to account for revenues dedicated for a specific
purpose. These funds are prescribed by Federal or State program guidelines regarding the
distribution or use of revenues.

THE DEBT SERVICE FUND is used for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long term bonded debt to be issued in future years.

BOARD OF EDUCATION FUND This fund accounts for the operations of the Board of
Education, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS are utilized for various construction projects as well as the
purchase of the City’s fleet inventory. Capital Project Funds are used to account for the
proceeds of general obligation bonds and other financing sources for the planning,
acquisition and construction or improvement of major capital facilities such as new schools
and urban renewal projects.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS are used to report activities that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to a private business enterprise. In the case of the City of Bridgeport, the
Water Pollution Control Authority or WPCA, is one such fund which accounts for the activities
of the City’s two sewage treatment plants, sewage pumping stations, and collection systems

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY BUDGET PROCESS

for the City of Bridgeport. These funds are covered in the Finance Department's Annual
Financial Report, but not in this document.

THE INTERNAL SERVICE FUND was established by Ordinance to account for self-
insured health benefit activities of the City, Board of Education (BOE) and all other
departments. Governmental Accounting Standards allow for the use of Internal Service
Funds for risk financing activities. The Internal Service Fund is a proprietary type fund, which
utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. The use of a separate fund for self insured benefit
activities can help smooth the impact of severe claims fluctuations which can now occur in
the General Fund. Funding will be provided through the annual General Fund Budget which
will separately identify the City, BOE, BOE Grants and Nutrition portions. The amount
budgeted will be the amount transferred to the Internal Service Fund. Contributions will be
also be made by the WPCA and Grants. Employee contributions will be made directly to the
Internal Service Fund. Interest and investment income earned by the fund will be used to pay
expenses of the fund. Investment of available funds will be made by the City Finance
Director and Treasurer in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. These funds are not reflected in government-side financial statements because
the resources contained within these funds are not available to provide services for the City's
constituents. The City of Bridgeport has four pension trust funds that support the pensions of
City employees. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary
funds, and again, is covered in some detail in the Finance Department's Annual Financial
Report, but not in this document.

THE BUDGET PROCESS

MAYOR RECOMMENDED PREPARATION

City departments begin preparation and documentation processes for the budget in January. The
Office of Policy & Management reviews all submitted department requested documents; verifies
contractual obligation thresholds, calculates all formula-driven data, and presents a draft budget
to the Mayor and selected staff. In accordance with the City Charter, Chapter 9, Section 5(c) the
Mayor, no later than the first Tuesday in April of each year, must present to the City Council a
proposed budget for the ensuing fiscal year as prescribed in that same section.

CITY COUNCIL PROCESS

The City Council’'s Budget and Appropriations Committee, under City Council rules, will set a
schedule for budget deliberations and in accordance with City Charter, shall hold at least one
public hearing before taking final action on the proposed budget and mill rate. The City Council
Budgets & Appropriations Committee reports its changes to the Council as a whole in the form of
a budget amendment resolution. The City Council has the power to reduce or delete any item in
the budget recommended by the Mayor by a majority vote of the council members present and
voting. It shall have the power to increase any item in said budget or add new items to said
budget only on a two-thirds (2/3) affirmative vote of the entire membership of the council. The
budget adopted by the City Council shall be submitted to the Mayor not later than the second
Tuesday in May of each year. The Mayor shall sign the adopted budget or within fourteen days
after adoption of the budget, the Mayor may veto any action taken by the City Council. The veto
power of the Mayor shall be that of line item veto only, and any such veto may be overridden by a
two-thirds (2/3) vote of the entire membership of the City Council. If the Mayor shall disapprove
any action of the City Council, he shall, no later than the close of business of the fourteenth day,
return the proposed budget to the City Council with a statement of objections. Thereupon, the
President of the City Council shall call a meeting to be held no later than seven days after the
receipt of the Mayor’s veto. If the City Council fails to adopt a budget by the second Tuesday in
May of any year, the proposed budget of the Mayor shall become the budget of the City for the
ensuing year.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

BUDGET SUMMARY

BUDGET PROCESS

DATES

February 8, 2017

February 17, 2017

BUDGET TIMETABLE

FISCAL YEAR 2017 - 2018

DAY ACTIONS
Wednesday Departments submit capital project requests and back-up to OPM
Friday Departments (including BOE) data enter budget requests into MUNIS

February 17- March 17

DEPARTMENTS MUST SUBMIT STATUS OF FY 2017 GOALS
FOR FIRST SIX MONTHS TO OPM

Mayor formulates Ceneral Fund Budget; budget goes to final production

March 7, 2017 Tuesday Mayor Submits Capital Budget to the City Council

(no later than)

April 04, 2017 Tuesday Per City Charter, Mayor submits Proposed Budget

{no later than) to the City Council

TED BAC meetings and Public Hearings held

May 02, 2017 Tuesday Capital Improvement Program is adopted and

(no later than) submitted to Mayor for signature

May 09, 2017 Tuesday City Council submits Adopted Budget to the Mayor

{no later than)

May 23, 2017 Tuesday Last day for the Mayor to veto the City Council's

(no later than) Adopted Budget

May 30, 2017 Tuesday Last day for the City Council to vote on the Mayor's veto
(no later than) of the City Council's Adopted Budget

June 6, 2017 Tuezday City Council sets mill rate

(no later than) (mill rate is set no later than seven days after action on the budget

is complete}

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

BUDGET SUMMARY

APPROPRIATION SUMMARY

The General Fund is primarily funded by the property tax.

Governmental funds are reported

using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Revenues
are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period, or soon enough
thereafter, to pay liabilities of the current period.

GENERAL FUND

BY AGENCY CATEGORY
Function Function FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 Budget 2018 2018 Proposed Variance
description Actuals Actuals Requested
01 GENERAL GOVERNMENT 35,023,702 36,072,193 39603456 41,338,883 48,408,150  -8,804,695
02 PUBLIC SAFETY 169,102,117 169,128,002 171,657,010 177,846,234 176,700,357 -5,043,348
03 PUBLIC FACILITES 52,098,273 47,232,718 50,862,798 53,794,807 52,770,092 -1,907,294
04 OPED 10,762,363 11,431,772 11,932,634 12,126,968 11,867,194 65,440
o5 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES 4,975,365 5,162,244 5,578,308 5,578,417 5,233,565 344,743
o6 DEBT/ OTHER USES 3,353,099 1,152,038 8,418,008 11,243,008 9,678,492 -1,260,484
07 LIBRARIES 6,829,089 6,829,089 5,825,185 6,500,000 5,726,308 98,877
o8 EDUCATION * 222,689,025 227,497,134 227,578,914 256,168,986 198,908,471 28,670,442
0] FOOD SERVICE 14,095,810 14,301,185 14,545,305 15,739,380 15,739,380 -1,194,075
10 OTHER BOE 16,233,038 16,062,353 16,490,000 17,240,000 17,462,001 -972,001
TOTAL 525,161,882 534,868,729 552,491,617 597,576,683 542,494,011 9,997,606
General Fund by Agency Category GENERAL GOVERNMENT
FOODSERVICE , OTHERBOE 9%
3% \ 3%
Total: $542,494,011
LIBRARIES
1%
DEBT/ OTHER USES
2%  HEALTH & SOCIAL PUBLIC FACILITIES
SERVICES OPED 10%
1% 2%
GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BY APPROPRIATION TYPE
Char Code Char Code Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Mayor  Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested
'01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 215,506,902 216,268,936 219,741,884 232,597,019 231,496,005 -11,754,122
'02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 31,357,146 34,444,779 27,848,016 27,548,481 28,735,765 -887,750
'03 FRINGE BENEFITS 116,109,755 126,252,678 126,902,325 135,322,935 144,496,368 -17,594,042
'04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 39,023,641 35,705,362 43,098,739 45,626,356 44,219,757 -1,121,018
35 SPECIAL SERVICES 50,173,997 52,185,023 50,509,959 70,795,197 10,921,936 39,588,023
'06 OTHER FINANCING USES 72,990,440 70,011,951 84,390,694 85,686,694 82,624,179 1,766,515
525,161,882 534,868,729 552,491,617 597,576,683 542,494,011 9,997,606

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY REVENUE SUMMARY

The primary source of revenues in the City of Bridgeport is property taxes (66.089%). The second
largest source of revenue is Intergovernmental Revenue (32.38%)—which includes aid to public
schools, Education Cost Sharing, and funding for federal school lunch programming. Education
Cost Sharing funds from the state help to provide essential funding for schools in urban areas
where student need is great and local funding for schools can strain local budgets.

REVENUE SUMMARY

BY DEPARTMENT
Org# Object# FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 Budget FY2018 FY2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Requested Proposed
01010 COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE 4,807,527 6,407,043 4,372,694 1,703,500 7,046,853 2,674,159
01040 TAX COLLECTOR 298,856,441 300,471,502 327,556,714 324,248,630 328,390,945 834,231
01041 TAX ASESSOR 18,320,000 17,292,246 16,688,190 23,177,996 31,520,760 14,832,570
01045 TREASURY 33,020 62,160 27,000 27,000 27,000 0
01050 REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 75 27,240 100 100 100 0
01060 CITY ATTORNEY 100 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
01070 CIVIL SERVICE 63,338 60,899 5,200 5,200 1,200 4,000
01090 TOWN CLERK 1,637,608 2,090,671 1,487,200 1,487,200 1,707,200 220,000
01108 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICE 1,539 862 250 250 250 0
01250 POLICE ADMINISTRATION 5,325,806 6,666,160 6,389,200 6,389,200 6,483,700 94,500
01260 FIRE DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION 196,762 187,131 202,050 212,050 214,050 12,000
01285 WEIGHTS & MEASURES 81,450 80,030 92,000 92,000 92,000 0
01290 EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER 43,870 189,018 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
01300 PUBLIC FACILITIES ADMINISTRATI 956,382 821,474 903,300 904,450 1,084,450 181,150
01310 FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0
01325 SANITATION & RECYCLING 10,267 11,714 19,700 19,700 15,700 4,000
01341 BEARDSLEY ZOO / CAROUSEL 353,913 310,224 336,217 336,217 300,000 36,217
01350 RECREATION 62,093 64,177 9,000 12,000 12,000 3,000
01355 PARKS ADMINISTRATION 2,364,089 2,576,263 2,692,046 2,692,046 2,621,940 70,106
01375 AIRPORT 821,497 763,627 806,700 856,700 836,700 30,000
01385 ENGINEERING 4,885 2,967 5,000 5,000 5,000 0
01450 OPED ADMINISTRATION 920,530 599,370 510,650 373,650 523,650 13,000
'01455 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 4,792,647 3,964,871 5,678,800 5,774,800 3,974,800 1,704,000
'01456 ZONING, BOARD OF APPEALS 34,871 29,689 40,000 40,000 40,000 0
'01457 ZONING COMMISSION 246,045 270,807 288,100 288,100 288,100 0
01552 VITAL STATISTICS 433,741 416,202 487,200 509,700 457,200 -30,000
01554 COMMUNICABLE DISEASE CLINIC 28,238 29,066 25,000 25,000 25,000 0
'01555 ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 273,820 307,130 353,490 353,490 334,990 -18,500
01556 HOUSING CODE 14,605 19,890 46,500 46,500 46,500 0
01600 GENERAL PURPOSE BONDS PAYAB 2,831,946 2,568,708 1,978,137 1,812,047 1,812,047 -166,090
01610 OTHER FINANCING USES 877,136 6,972,624 450,000 250,000 250,000 -200,000
'01863 BOE ADMINISTRATION * 165,249,446 164,349,154 164,157,041 164,157,041 138,591,495 -25,565,546
01875 TRANSPORTATION 1,527,064 1,412,908 0 0 0 0
'01898 GENERAL FUND BOE ADMINISTRATIO 0 2,270,522 2,300,000 395,000 0 -2,300,000
01900 NUTR-NUTRITION 14,304,062 14,576,893 14,533,138 15,739,381 15,739,381 1,206,243
525,474,812 535,818,760 552,491,617 551,984,948 542,494,011 9,997,606
Note:

* The FY2018 Board of Education General Fund appropriation was reduced by $$25,958,442 in the Governor's FY2018 proposed budget; however, BOE
Excess Cost Grant is being increased from $4,885,909 to $39,109,458 which is a net State appropriation increase of Bridgeport Board Of Education
budget by $8.265m in FY2018.
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
REVENUE SUMMARY

BUDGET SUMMARY

REVENUE SUMMARY

BY AGENCY TYPE

The City of Bridgeport’'s revenues rely heavily on Property Taxes & Intergovernmental Revenue.

Rev Cat/Type FY 2015 Actuals FY 2016 FY 2017 FY2017 FY2018 FY2018 Variance
Actuals Budget Actuals to Requested Proposed
Date

Interfund 0 44,293 0 0 0 0 0
LICENSES/PERMITS 605,922 630,560 764,340 504,289 760,490 703,990 -60,350
CHARGE FOR SERVICES 6,090,342 9,167,739 8,380,221 4,254308 6,500,796 6,581,296 -1,798,925
FEES 19,518 18,841 35,200 22,697 45,200 55,200 20,000
FINES/PENALTIES 4,277,772 4,477,700 4,484,700 2466655 4294700 4,385,700 -109,000
INTERGOVERNMENTAL * 191,696,231 189,902,790 197,174,595 109,390,696 194,632,989 175,695,279 -21,479,316
INVESTMENTS 533,020 562,160 527,000 97,323 327,000 27,000 -500,000
NON BUSINESS LICENSE 5,260,836 4,422,304 6,248,400 3,498,370 6,366,900 4514400 -1,734,000
PYMNT IN LIEU OF TAX 14,944 509 13,731,095 13,457,573 13,277,461 20,389,537 29,027,301 15,569,728
PROPERTY TAX 293,608,340 295,058,392 312,546,911 294,414,972 311,195,223 304,238,433 -8,308,478
REIMBURSEMENTS 5,069,963 8502685 6,627,081 3,579,151 5645517 9,961,875 3,334,794
RENTS/LEASES 2,181,451 1,819,167 1,480,396 916,405 1,406,396 1,476,290 4106
SALE OF PROPERTY 1,008,532 7,046,696 585,000 287,348 385,000 330,000 -255,000
SHARED REVENUE 188,376 173,820 170,200 71,643 155,200 165,200 -15,000
BUSINESS LICENSES/PE 0 1,850 0 0 0 0 0
FEES, FINES, FORFEIT 0 257,667 0 6,500 0 0 0
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF 0 0 0 55,200 -120,000 5342,047 5342047
PROPERTY TAXES 0 0 0 53 0 0 0
RENTS/LEASES 0 0 0 500 0 0 0

525,474,812 535,818,760 552,491,617 432,843,573 551,984,948 542,494,011 -9,997,606
Note:

* The Governor's FY2018 proposed budget reduced General Fund Board of Education revenue appropriation by $25,958,442 ; however, BOE

Excess Cost Grant is being increased from $4,885,909 to $39,109,458 which is a net State appropriation increase of Bridgeport Board Of Educatio

budget by $8.265m in FY2018.

Please note that the $39,109,458 Board of Education Excess Cost Grant appropriation is not reflected in the General Fund, the funds will be sent

directly to the Bridgeport Board of Education.

REIMBURSEMENTS
2%

Revenue Summary
Total: $542,494,011

BUSINESS LICENSES/PE

SHARED REVENU
FEES, FINES, FORFEIT Qg

0%
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF

1%
FEES Interfund

0% 0%

FINES/PENALTIES

INVESTMENTS

0%

NON BUSINESS LICENSE

1%

PYMNT IN LIEU OF TAX

5%
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY PERSONNEL SUMMARY

PERSONNEL SUMMARY

FY 07-08 FY 08-09 FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 1112  FY 1213 FY 13-14 FY14-15 FY 1516 FY16-17 FY 1718 +l-
DEPARTMENTS Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 185.0 179.5 173.0 176.0 177.0 168.0 166.1 167.0 166.0 167.5 164.5 3.0
% OF TOTAL EMPLOYEES 13% 14% 15% 15% 15% 16% 16% 16% 15% 12% 12%
PUBLIC SAFETY 912 911 858 834 835 812 807 846 847 851 856 5.0
% OF TOTAL EMPLOYEES 60% 62% 63% 62% 62% 62% 62% 63% 63% 63% 64%
TOTAL: PUBLIC FACILITIES 215.0 2120 203.5 2035 2025 193.0 188.0 188.8 189.0 186.0 200.5 -14.5
% OF TOTAL EMPLOYEES 14% 14% 15% 15% 15% 15% 14% 14% 14% 14% 15%
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 40.0 44.0 38.0 375 39.5 385 395 398 41.5 36.0 35.0 1.0
% OF TOTAL EMPLOYEES 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 00
Total: HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES 109.0 60.0 29.0 33.0 345 400 420 423 445 46.5 435 3.0
% OF TOTAL EMPLOYEES 7% 4% 2% 2% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
LIBRARIES 69.0 60.0 52.0 52.0 53.0 53.0 54.0 53.0 53.0 57.0 47.0 10.0
% OF TOTAL EMPLOYEES 5% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 4% 3%
TOTAL: ALL CITY EMPLOYEES 1,630.0 1,466.5 1,353.5 1,336.0 13415 1,304.5 1,296.6 13368 13410 13435 13460 25

Total Employees

1,466.5

1353.5 13360 13415 13368 1,341.0 13435 1,346.0

1,304.5 1,296.6

FY 08-09 FY 09-10 FY 10-11 FY 11-12 FY12-13 Fy 13-14 FY 14-15 FY15-16 FY 16-17 FY17-18
PROPOSED
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

BUDGET SUMMARY

APPROPRIATION CATEGORY

PERSONNEL SERVICES
Full Time Earned Salaries
Part Time Earned Salaries
Temporary/Seasonal Earned Pay
Distributed Pay by Attendance /
Absences

OTHER PERSONNEL SERVICES
Overtime Pay
Outside Overtime Pay
Long Term Acting Pay
Temporary Acting Pay
Shift Differential Pay
Permanent Shift Pay
Holiday Pay
Longevity Pay
Compensatory Pay

FRINGE BENEFITS
Employee Allowance
Uniform
Laundry
Moving Expense Reimbursement
City-owned Vehicle Benefit
Health Related Employee Benefits
Health
Vision
Dental
Life insurance
Workers’ Compensation
Unemployment Compensation
Health Benefits Buyout
Retiree Benefits
Fringe Benefits and Pensions
Employee Assistance Program

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

(MAJOR CATEGORIES)

Office Supplies
Medical Supplies
Automotive Services and Supplies
Utilities

Electricity

Water

Natural Gas

Heating Oil
Copy Equipment and Supplies
Computer Equipment, Software and
Supplies
Advertising
Subscriptions
Building Maintenance
Membership/Registrations
Postage and Printing services
Vehicle Maintenance

SPECIAL SERVICES

Legal Services

Training Services

Actuarial Services

Computer Maintenance
Auditing Services

Office Equipment Maintenance
Contract Services

Legal / Property Claims
Tuition Reimbursements

OTHER FINANCING USES

Debt Service
Principal Payments
Interest Payments
Debt Service Refunding
Sewer Bonds
Pension Obligation Bonds
Fire Equipment Notes Payable
Attrition
Contingencies
Required Reserves
Supportive Contributions

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT



FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY BRIDGEPORT IN CONTEXT

BRIDGEPORT AT A GLANCE

FORM OF GOVERNMENT

Bridgeport is governed by its City Charter which was adopted by the state legislature in 1907 and
revised in 1912 and 1992. The city operates under a Mayor-City Council form of government. The
Mayor serves a four-year term. The Mayor sets policy, makes nominations and appointments to
boards and commissions, and presides at City Council meetings. In addition, the Mayor acts as
official City representative and liaison with various governmental and private agencies and
oversees the financial aspects of the City government. Mayoral authority comes from the City of
Bridgeport's charter, Municipal Code, and the State of Connecticut General Statues.

The City Council consists of 20 members elected to two-year terms. Each of the ten council
districts is represented by two council members. The City Council holds regular meetings twice
per month. Major responsibilities of the City Council include enacting ordinances necessary to
govern the City and adopting the budget. Together the Mayor and the City Council oversee the
five line divisions: City Clerk, Water Pollution Control Authority, Libraries, Department of
Education, and the Registrar of Voters.

The Chief Administrative Officer (CAQ), a mayoral appointee, is responsible for coordinating the
management and implementation of operational policies and practices for the Mayor. The CAO is
the liaison between the Mayor and the head administrators of the City’'s departments which
include: The Office of Policy & Management, Civil Service, the Fire Department, the Police
Department, Planning & Economic Development, Finance, Public Facilities, Health & Social
Services, Labor Relations, the City Attorney, Weights & Measures, and Information Technology.

The only elected board in the City, aside from the City Council, is the Board of Education. This
board consists of nine members elected to staggered four-year terms, and meets once a month.
In addition, there are 18 appointed boards and commissions whose members are volunteers who
have been appointed by the Mayor. These consist of the following: Board of Assessment
Appeals, Board of Public Purchases, Bridgeport Redevelopment Agency, Cable Advisory Board,
Civil Service Commission, Commission on Aging, Ethics Commission, Fair Housing Commission,
Fair Rent Commission, Fire Commission, Harbor Management Commission, Historic Commission
No. 1, Housing Authority, Housing Site Development Agency, Parks Commission, Planning &
Zoning Commission, Police Commission, Port Authority Commission, Stratfield Historic District
Commission, Water Pollution Control Authority Commission and the Zoning Board of Appeals.
Additionally, the City appoints members to serve on the boards of regional planning agencies
including the Greater Bridgeport Regional Planning Agency and the Greater Bridgeport Transit
Authority.

GEOGRAPHY

Bridgeport is Connecticut’'s largest city with a population estimated at 147,629 residents. Located
along Long Island Sound at the mouth of the Pequonnock River, the city has an area of 19.4
square miles. Bridgeport experiences warm to hot and humid summers and cold, snowy winters.
These seasonal extremes are somewhat moderated by Long Island Sound. This results in a
lower average temperature in summer and moderate snowfall, as compared to our neighbors
inland. The city receives 41.7 inches of precipitation and around 25.6 inches of snowfall in an
average year. The snowiest winter on record occurred in 1996 when Bridgeport received
76.8 inches in total accumulation. Bridgeport is located on Long Island Sound and is bordered by
Fairfield, Connecticut to the West, Stratford, Connecticut to the East, and Trumbull, Connecticut
to the North.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY BRIDGEPORT IN CONTEXT

Fairfield County

PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION
Total Area: 19.4 square miles
Land Area: 16 square miles
Water Area: 3.4 square miles

Mixiiuse Land Use by Type

Industrial
7%

Commercial
7%

Institutional
7% |

COMMUNITY PROFILE

Bridgeport was originally a part of the township of Stratford. The first recorded settlement here
was made in 1659. It was called Pequonnock until 1695, when its name was changed to
Stratfield, due to its location between the already existing towns of Stratford and Fairfield. In 1800
the borough of Bridgeport was chartered and in 1821 the township was incorporated. The city
was not chartered until 1836. The city's location on the deep Newfield Harbor supported
shipbuilding and whaling endeavors in the mid 19" century. Later, rapid industrialization and the
presence of the railroad made Bridgeport an ideal manufacturing center producing Bridgeport
milling machines, saddles, corsets, carriages, brass fittings, sewing machines and ammunition.
By 1930, Bridgeport was an industrial center with more than 500 factories and a thriving
immigrant population.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET SUMMARY BRIDGEPORT IN CONTEXT

In the early 21st century, Bridgeport is rebounding from a loss of jobs and population, and is
transitioning into a role as both a bedroom community for New York City, and as oasis of
relatively low-cost housing in the otherwise prohibitively expensive Fairfield County. Located just
60 miles from New York City and 60 miles from Hartford, CT, Bridgeport is accessible via a
variety of transportation modes, it is ideally suited to families seeking a refuge from the high cost
of living in lower Fairfield county.

Bridgeport supports two large hospitals—St. Vincent's and Bridgeport Hospital. It is located on
the Metro-North commuter line, which offers daily service to New York City, and regional service
to the shoreline of Connecticut and to the Waterbury area. Bridgeport is also a stop on Amtrak’s
train lines, including the high-speed Acela service. Ferry service to Port Jefferson, Long Island is
offered from Bridgeport's harbor, and local and interstate bus service is also available. The port of
Bridgeport is one of three deep-water ports in the state. Bridgeport owns Stratford’s Sikorsky
Memorial Airport. Bridgeport's location in the middle of a confluence of highways—among them
Interstate 95, the Merritt Parkway, Route 8 & Route 25, and Route 1 connect the City to many
other regions. Institutions of higher learning housed in the City include The University of
Bridgeport, Housatonic Community College, St. Vincent's College, and Bridgeport Hospital
School of Nursing. The Bridgeport School system educates more than 20,000 children, making it
the second largest school system in the state.

The Arena at Harbor Yard and the Klein Memorial Auditorium host regional and national
performances of musical acts and sporting events. Regional theater is in evidence at the
Downtown Cabaret Theatre and the Bridgeport Theatre Company. Additionally, the City of
Bridgeport is home to 45 parks which encompass 1,330 acres of open space.

DEMOGRAPHICS AND ECONOMICS
Bridgeport is Connecticut's largest city with a population estimated at 147,629 residents.

The Bridgeport economy, like the State economy, continues to be impacted by the effects of the
national, regional, and statewide recession that started in 2003. As of June 30, 2016 Audit report
the City’s annual average unemployment rate is 5.89%, down from the 7.1% annual average last
year.

Overall, the total assessed taxable grand list in Bridgeport stands at $6,048,898,983—-a figure
slightly higher than the total assessed taxable grand list property valuation for Bridgeport in 2015
which stood at $6,041,621,208. In raw dollars, the total assessed taxable property values in
Bridgeport increased by just over $7.29 million dollars. Here is a breakdown of the new taxable
grand list assessment:

All Taxable: 2016* 2015 Grand List
Real Property $ 4,750,398,651 $ 4,751,098,913
Personal Property $ 811,698,529 $ 830,236,504
Motor Vehicles $ 486,801,803 $ 460,265,791
Total Grand List: $ 6,048,898,983 $ 6,041,601,208
Change $2016 v $2015 $ 7,297,775

* The 2016 Grand List amounts does not include the Board of Tax Appeals amount because they have not
completed the Tax appeals process

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BRIDGEPORT IN CONTEXT

BUDGET SUMMARY

TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 2007-2016

ASCAL YEAR Real Estate Personal Property Motor Vehicle Total
2007 183,690,496 22,352,699 15,270,656 221,313,851
2008 183,892,848 27,243,385 15,891,974 227,028,207
2009 230,926,963 24,496,725 14,343,653 269,767,241
2010 224,429 907 31,097,659 15,181,089 270,708,655
2011 235,380,246 31,814,553 14,853,112 282,047,911
2012 231,147 846 31,242,492 17,044,538 279,434 876
2013 237,452 454 28,608,729 20,026,111 286,087,294
2014 247,634,510 29,273,456 20,620,272 297,528,238
2015 249,909,726 30,117,975 21,608,636 301,636,337
2016 251,167,365 31,015,137 22,335,890 " 304,518,392

CHANGE 2007-2016 36.73% 38.75% 46.27% 37.60%

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS IN BRIDGEPORT 2016 & 2006

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS Taxable Assessed Rank % of Total Taxable Rank % of Total City

Value City Taxable | Assessed Value Taxable

Assessed Assessed

Value Value
United llluminating Co. Inc. $ 287,401,220 1 4197%| $ 134,082,092 2 2161%
CRRAUS Bank NAT Assoc James R. Mogavero** § 112,000,000 2 16.35% $ 268,014,994 1 43.19%
Connecticut Light & Power $ 50,683,490 3 740%($ 13,272,850 9 2.14%
PSEG Power Connecticut LLC $ 47,187,434 4 6.89%| $ 44744289 4 7.20%
Southem Connecticut Gas UIL HOLD* $ 42,240,280 5 6.17%| $ 39,406,080 5 6.35%
Peoples United Bank $ 37,834,440 6 552%($ 12277928 10 1.98%
Dominion Bpt Fuel Cell LLC S 34,728,720 7 507% 0.00%
Aquarion Water Co of CT $ 25,411,070 8 371%| $ 20,366,625 8 327%
Success Village Apts Inc. $ 23,884,974 9 349%| % 20,396,463 6 331%
NHI-REIT of Axel LLC (formerfy Watermark 3030)* $ 23,443,650 10 343%|$ 20,383,060 7 3.28%
Bridgeport Energy, LLC *** * 0'%| $ 47595250 3 767%
Total $ 684,815,278 100.00%( $ 620,539,631 100.00%

*Change in business name occurred

**Court stipulation

***Top 10 account court settiment procedure pending
Source: City of Bridgeport Tax Assessor's Office

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

BUDGET SUMMARY BRIDGEPORT IN CONTEXT
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS IN BRIDGEPORT: 2016 & 2007
Principal 2016 2007
Employer Employees Rank Employees Rank
St. Vincent's Medical Center 3,238 1 2,200 3
Bridgeport Hospital, Inc. 2,005 2 2,700 1
People's United Bank 1,244 3 2,400 2
Uniwersity of Bridgeport 810 (419 FT/391 PT) 4 537 6
Prime Line Resources 569 (409 FT Reg./160 FT Temp.) 5 406 4
Bridgeport Health Care Center 525 6 1,100 4
Sikorsky Aircraft (United Technologies) 501 (3 Shifts) 7 600 5
Lacey Manufacturing Company 329 (238 FT Reg./91 FT Temp.) 8 350 8
Watermark 243 (102 FT/141 PT) 9 300* 9
Housatonic Community College 214 (201 FT/13 FT Grant Funded) 10 184 10
Total Employees 8,678 10,777

*2008 Data // Note: Rankings are based on full-time employees only

Sources: City of Bridgeport - Bridgeport CitiStat Office

POPULATION IN BRIDGEPORT/SURROUNDING AREA 1990-2016
Change 1990-2016

Area 1990 2000 2016 Number Percent
Bridgeport 141,686 139,529 147,629 5,943 4.2%
Fairfield County CT 827,646 882,567 944,177 116,531 14.1%

In terms of demographics, the population of Bridgeport is on the whole less affluent and more
diverse than the rest of Fairfield County. Median household income is lower than our Fairfield
County neighbors, and our population on the whole is younger, has completed less education,
and has a higher likelihood of speaking a language other than English at home. Our
unemployment rates are higher, and poverty impacts the lives of our residents in greater numbers
than in the rest of Fairfield County.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BRIDGEPORT IN CONTEXT

BUDGET SUMMARY

POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS

[ Population

Bridgeport Fairfield County Connecticut
Population estimates, July 1, 2016, (V2016) NA 944,177 3,576,452
Population estimates, July 1, 2015, (V2015) 147,629 948,053 3,590,886
Population estimates base, April 1, 2010, (V2016) NA 916,846 3,574,114
Population estimates base, April 1, 2010, (V2015) 144,236 916,850 3,574,118
Population, percent change - April 1, 2010 (estimates base) to July 1, 2016, (V2016) NA 3.0% 0.1%
Population, percent change - April 1, 2010 (estimates base) to July 1, 2015, (V2015) 2.4% 3.4% 0.5%
Population, Census, April 1, 2010 144,229 916,829 3,574,097
Race and Hispanic Origin
White alone, percent, July 1, 2015, (\/2015) (a) X 79.4% 80.8%
White alone, percent, April 1, 2010 (a) 39.6% 74.8% 77.6%
Black or African American alone, percent, July 1, 2015, (V2015) (a) X 12.4% 11.6%
Black or African American alone, percent, April 1, 2010 (a) 34.6% 10.8% 10.1%
American Indian and Alaska Native alone, percent, July 1, 2015, (V2015) (a) X 0.5% 0.5%
American Indian and Alaska Native alone, percent, April 1, 2010 (a) 0.5% 0.3% 0.3%
Asian alone, percent, July 1, 2015, (V2015) (a) X 5.6% 4.6%
Asian alone, percent, April 1, 2010 (a) 3.4% 4.6% 3.8%
Native Hawaiian and Other PacificIslander alone, percent, July 1, 2015, (V2015) (a) X 0.1% 0.1%
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone, percent, April 1, 2010 (a) 0.1% Z z
Two or More Races, percent, July 1, 2015, (V2015) X 2.0% 2.2%
Two or More Races, percent, April 1, 2010 4.3% 52.6% 2.6%
Hispanicorlatino, percent, July 1, 2015, (V2015) (b) X 19.1% 15.4%
Hispanicor Latino, percent, April 1, 2010 (b) 38.2% 16.9% 13.4%
White alone, not Hispanicor Latino, percent, July 1, 2015, (V2015) X 63.1% 68.2%
White alone, not Hispanicor Latino, percent, April 1, 2010 22.7% 66.2% 71.2%
[kpulation Characteristics
Veterans, 2011-2015 4,661 38,249 199,331
Foreign born persons, percent, 2011-2015 28.9% 20.9% 13.9%
IHouseholds
Housing units, July 1, 2015, (V2015) X 366,122 1,495,953
Housing units, April 1, 2010 57,012 361,221 1,487,891
Owner-occupied housing unit rate, 2011-2015 41.4% 68.3% 67.0%
Median value of owner-occupied housing units, 2011-2015 $169,100 $416,000 $270,500
Median selected monthly owner costs -with a mortgage, 2011-2015 $1,974 $2,698 $2,067
Median selected monthly owner costs -without a mortgage, 2011-2015 $827 $1,037 $833
Median gross rent, 2011-2015 $1,098 $1,348 $1,075
Building permits, 2015 X 2,598 6,077
Households, 2011-2015 50,367 334,320 1,352,583
Persons per household, 2011-2015 2.83 2.76 257
Living in same house 1year ago, percent of persons age 1year+, 2011-2015 80.4 88.2 87.8
Language other than English spoken at home, percent of persons age 5 years+, 2011-201" 47.2 29.0 219
Businesses
Total employerestablishments, 2014 X 27,022 88,555
Total employment, 2014 X 408,854 1,485,426
Total annual payroll, 2014 ($1,000) X 31,863,974 87,866,508
Total employment, percent change, 2013-2014 X 1.4% 0.8%
Total nonemployer establishments, 2014 : X 90,880 269,845
All firms, 2012 ) 10,452 107,557 326,693
Men-owned firms, 2012 5,149 60,955 187,845
Women-owned firms, 2012 4,352 34,959 106,678
Minority-owned firms, 2012 5,505 21,309 56,113
Nonminority-owned firms, 2012 4,343 81,744 259,614
Veteran-owned firms, 2012 692 8,715 31,056
Nonveteran-owned firms, 2012 9,152 93,696 281,182
Im’“i’"y
Population persquare mile, 2010 9,029.0 1,467.2 738.1
Land area in square miles, 2010 15.97 624.89 4,842 36

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

BUDGET SUMMARY BRIDGEPORT IN CONTEXT

FOOTNOTES TO PRIOR CHART:
This geographic level of poverty and health estimates are not comparable to other
geographic levels of these estimates

Some estimates presented here come from sample data, and thus have sampling
errors that may render some apparent differences between geographies statistically
indistinguishable. Click the Quick Info <img style="height:14pxwidth:14px"
src="/quickfacts/assets/images/info-grey2-selected_hover.png" alt="i"> icon to the left
of each row in TABLE view to learn about sampling error.

The vintage year (e.g., V2015) refers to the final year of the series (2010 thru 2015).
Different vintage years of estimates are not comparable.

(1) Includes data not distributed by county.
(2) Median of selected monthly owner costs--without a mortgage is $1,500 or higher.

(a) Includes persons reporting only one race

(b) Hispanics may be of anyrace, so also are included in applicable race categories
(c) Economic Census - Puerto Rico data are not comparable to U.S. Economic Census
data

D: Suppressed to avoid disclosure of confidential information

F: Fewer than 25 firms

FN: Footnote on this item in place of data

NA: Not available

S: Suppressed; does not meet publication standards

X: Not applicable

Z: Value greater than zero but less than half unit of measure shown

QuickFacts data are derived from: Population Estimates, American Community Survey,
Census of Population and Housing, Current Population Survey, Small Area Health
Insurance Estimates, Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates, State and County
Housing Unit Estimates, County Business Patterns, Nonemployer Statistics, Economic
Census, Survey of Business Owners, Building Permits.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISIONS

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

MISSION STATEMENT
To set the direction of City government and oversee the administration of all City Departments.

OBJECTIVES

* To set policy.

* To develop, communicate, and implement a long-term agenda that ensures the fiscal health
of the City and a high quality of life for its citizens.

* To act as a representative and liaison to the entire community, including the citizens, media,
public and private agencies, state and federal officials, and City departments.

* Todirect the receipt and resolution of constituent complaints.

* To serve as a liaison for other City departments in order to ensure that the citizens of
Bridgeport receive effective public service expeditiously and courteously.

* To provide guidance and direction to all Department Managers in order to improve services
offered to the City of Bridgeport.

* To serve as a liaison with various governmental agencies and to influence local, state and
federal legislation that is necessary and favorable to the City.

-1l CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

ALL CITY
DEPARTMENTS

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR BUDGET DETAIL
Honorable Joseph P. Ganim
Mayor
REVENUE SUMMARY
Not Applicable
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested  Proposed
01001 OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 747,918 693,396 623,966 624,770 621,461 2,505
'02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 20,659 5,677 1,950 2,100 2,100 -150
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 224,255 159,943 152,971 213,415 212,760 -59,789
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 19,758 25,875 25,481 27,150 27,150 -1,669
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 8,432 6,642 7,626 5,950 5,950 1,676
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 1,021,022 891,532 811,994 873,385 869,421 -57,427
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017 FY18 VAC. NEW  UNF. Title dified Req d Proposed Variance
1 1 0 0 0 MAYOR 147,640 146,920 146,920 720
1 1 0 0 0  CHIEF OF STAFF - MAYOR'S OFFIC 133,022 135,682 132,373 649
1 1 0 0 0  PROJECT MANAGER 87,459 87,033 87,033 a6
0.5 0.5 0 0 0  CLERICAL ASSISTANT (P/T) 25,000 25,000 25,000 0
1 1 0 0 0  RECEPTIONIST 41,426 41,426 41,426 0
1 1 ) 0 0  EXECUTIVE OFFICE MANAGER 53,300 53,040 53,040 260
1 1 0 ) 0 MAYOR'S AIDE 92,250 91,800 91,800 450
'01001000 1 1 0 0 0  SECRETARY (40HRS) 43,869 43,869 43,869 0
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 7.5 75 0 0 0 623,966 624,770 621,461 2,505

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

Eliminate the city’s financial deficit through short and long-term cost saving measures and
increased revenues.

Significantly increase government transparency through the creation and launch of Open
Bridgeport and the creation of an Office of Governmental Accountability.

Continue to grow the city’s tax base by increasing the city’s ability to attract and retain
sustainable economic and community development.

Continue to promote efficiency and accountability throughout city government through the
CitiStat program, the City’s online citizen service request system, TQM (Total Quality
Management) system, and employee training.

Continue to work together with the Board of Education to improve Bridgeport schools by
continuing our investment in building new state-of-the-art schools, including the capital
improvements being made to Central, Harding, and Bassick high schools.

Strengthen alliances with community groups and support initiatives that will benefit the City's
quality of life.

Support diversity at all levels in government through progressive hiring practices, human
resources and labor relations, and by supporting our Small and Minority Business Resource
Office which provides resources and support for local minority contractors, develops best
practices, policies and procedures to ensure that the City’s Minority Contracting Business
Enterprise Goals are achieved.

Focus efforts to combat blight and strengthen neighborhoods through a comprehensive city
program of neighborhood stabilization.

In partnership with the Police Chief, work together to formulate strategic initiatives that
combat crime and support successful neighborhood policing.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#  Org Description

'01001 OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
51000
01  PERSONNEL SERVICES
51140
51156
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
52360
52385
52504
52017
03 FRINGE BENEFITS
53605
53750
53905
54595
54675
54705
54720
55155
55530
04  OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
56110
56175
56180
56240
56250
05 SPECIAL SERVICES
'01001 OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

Object#

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY

LONGEVITY PAY
UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
TRAVEL EXPENSES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
MEETING/WORKSHOP/CATERING FOOD
OFFICE SUPPLIES

SUBSCRIPTIONS

PAPER AND PLASTIC SUPPLIES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS
OFFICE FURNITURE

FINANCIAL SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
OTHER SERVICES
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
TRAVEL SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

747,918
747,918
4,050
16,609
20,659
9,417
2,254
92,557
120,028
224,255
0

4,587
596
7,264
3,702

0

0

3,609

0
19,758
7,339
1,093

0

0

0

8,432
1,021,022

FY 2016
Actuals

693,396
693,396
4,850
827
5,677
9,132
1,528
71,602
77,680
159,943
0

2,167
1,082
11,795
6,036

0

0

4,796

0
25,875
6,255
80

297

0

10
6,642
891,532

FY 2017
Budget

623,966
623,966
1,950

0

1,950
8,666
2,073
65,560
76,672
152,971
0

4,715
798
6,751
7,680
783

0

4,734
20
25,481
4,500
2,010
719
218
179
7,626
811,994

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

624,770
624,770
2,100

0

2,100
8,344
9,181
73,127
122,763
213,415
1,000

0

6,000
9,200
5,000

0

350
5,600

0
27,150
4,000
1,500
250

100

100
5,950
873,385

621,461
621,461
2,100

0

2,100
8,296
8,976
72,725
122,763
212,760
1,000

0

6,000
9,200
5,000

0

350
5,600

0
27,150
4,000
1,500
250
100

100
5,950
869,421

Variance

2,505
2,505
-150

0

-150
370
6,903
7,165
-46,091
-59,789
-1,000
4,715
-5,202
2,489
2,680
783
-350
-866
20
-1,669
500
510
469
118

79
1,676
57,827

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISIONS

CENTRAL GRANTS

MISSION STATEMENT

To further the Administration’s mission to make Bridgeport the cleanest, greenest, safest, most
affordable city with schools and neighborhoods that improve every year by strategically applying for
funding and increasing community collaborations and regionalism where cost effective and
appropriate in order to provide quality services to the public without increasing the tax burden of city

taxpayers.

MAYOR — — —| CITY COUNCIL

I

l

I
CHIEF

ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

CENTRAL
GRANTS

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CENTRAL GRANTS

BUDGET DETAILS

Kimberly Staley

Director
Not Applicable
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed

'01005 CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 279,125 304,905 411,427 420,421 420,421 8,994
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 1,125 2,402 1,275 1,350 1,350 -75
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 77,636 85,911 188,001 184,304 184,304 3,697
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 8,754 5,337 21,395 21,395 21,395 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 1,637 382 13,500 13,500 13,500 0
06 OTHER FINANCING USES 0 0 2,000 2,000 2,000 0
CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE 368,177 398,937 637,598 642,970 642,970 5,372

FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017  FY18 VAC. NEW UNF. Title Modified q d Proposed Variance
3 3 0 0 0  GRANT WRITER 197,079 197,079 197,079 0
1 1 1 0 0  DIRECTOR CENTRAL GRANTS 91,549 98,975 98,975 -7,426
1 1 0 0 0  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 44,399 44,399 44,399 0
'01005000 1 1 0 0 0 OPM POLICY ANALYST 78,400 79,968 79,968 -1,568
CENTRAL GRANTS 6 6 1 0 0 411,427 420,421 420,421 -8,994
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTH ESTIMATED
SERMCE INDICATORS 2011-2012  2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
CENTRAL GRANTS

Number of Grant applications filed 67 33 55 36 41 60
Number of Grant Applications Funded 48 13 33 26 26 42
Number of Grant Applications Pending 0 1 1 0 4 0
Number of Grant Applications Denied 19 19 21 10 9 18
% of Grant applications funded 72% 39% 60% 72% 70% 70%
Total dollars awarded to the City of Bridgeport $11874776 $3,555055 $10,373,552 $8,382,045 $13,931,475 15,000,000
Total Dollars Pending N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total dollars awarded to Community Organizations N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
CENTRAL GRANTS PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

CENTRAL GRANTS FY 2017-2018 GOALS

Strategically apply for formula and competitive funding for city priority projects and programs
by confirming needs with department heads on a quarterly basis.

Strive to improve grant application success rate by 20% through more focused application
efforts.

Cultivate relationships with area and national foundations and partner to benefit Bridgeport
grant applications by participating in at least 12 meetings and events

Demonstrate our ability to effectively manage and spend awarded funds through quarterly
update to State and Federal entities and constituents

Work to ensure that procedures and processes are in place to assure compliance with
Federal, State and local requirements.

Work with departments to improve understanding of grant management and oversight
responsibilities by hosting workshops to review the various phases and responsible parties.

CENTRAL GRANTS FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CENTRAL GRANTS

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#

Org Description Object#

'01005 CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE

[4

05

06

51000
"51099
PERSONNEL SERVICES
51140
51156
OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
52360
52385
52504
52917
FRINGE BENEFITS
53605
53705
53725
53750
53905
54555
54595
54675
54700
54705
55155
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
"56085
56165
56175
56250
SPECIAL SERVICES
59500
OTHER FINANCING USES

'01005 CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY
CONTRACTED SALARIES

LONGEVITY PAY
UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
ADVERTISING SERVICES

TELEVISION SERVICES

TRAVEL EXPENSES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
COMPUTER SUPPLIES
MEETING/WORKSHOP/CATERING FOOD
OFFICE SUPPLIES

PUBLICATIONS

SUBSCRIPTIONS

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS

FOOD SERVICES

MANAGEMENT SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
TRAVEL SERVICES

SUPPORTIVE CONTRIBUTIONS

FY 2015
Actuals

263375
15,750
279,125
1,125

0

1,125
3,718
1,680
30,405
41,833
77,636
745

0

278

0

0

0

233
3,722

517
3,259
8,754

110

186

870
371
1,537

0

0
368,177

FY 2016
Actuals

304,905
0
304,905
1,200
1,202
2,402
4318
589
32171
48,833
85,911
60

0

128

0

0

0

112
1,536

3,502
5,337

144

194

aa

382

0

0
398,937

FY 2017
Budget

411,427
0
411,427
1,275

0

1,275
6,449
12,130
52,551
116,871
188,001
500
1,000

0

3,500
3,500
2,500
1,000
2,000
200
1,195
6,000
21,395
1,000
5,000
6,000
1,500
13,500
2,000
2,000
637,598

2018 2018
Requested PROPOSED

420,421 420,421
0 0
420,421 420,421
1350 1,350

0 0

1,350 1,350
5,568 5,568
12,181 12,181
51,245 51,245
115,310 115,310
184,304 184,304
500 500
1,000 1,000

0 0

3,500 3,500
3,500 3,500
2,500 2,500
1,000 1,000
2,000 2,000
200 200
1,195 1,195
6,000 6,000
21,395 21,395
1,000 1,000
5,000 5,000
6,000 6,000
1,500 1,500
13,500 13,500
2,000 2,000
2,000 2,000
642,970 642,970

Variance

1,306
1,561

w
o
©
~

4
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FINANCE DIVISIONS

COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Comptroller’s Office is to prepare and maintain all financial records of the City of
Bridgeport. The Department's objectives include receiving, recording and depositing all City
revenues, completing all expenditure transactions and producing all payroll payments, and preparing
monthly, quarterly and annual journal entries. Also, to monitor and establish procedures for grant
account fiscal activity and to maintain the financial records and books of entry for all capital
improvement projects. In addition, the Comptroller's Office analyzes and prepares monthly
reconciliations of all fiscal balance sheet accounts and handles all transactions in accordance with all
local, state and federal accounting standards.

CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

FINANCE
DEPARTMENT

COMPTROLLER

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE

BUDGET DETAILS

Kenneth Flatto

Manager
REVENUE SUMMARY
Orgtt Object# Object Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 Variance
. Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01010 COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE
‘a1277 RESTITUTION RECOVERY 5,391 13,099 5,000 5,000 5,000 0
'a1392 DEBT SERVICE PARENT CENTER 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 0
"a1538 COPIES 80,750 112,074 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
"a1551 O.T.B INCOME 344,964 280,910 400,000 350,000 250,000 -150,000
"a1552 STATE BINGO 52 20 200 200 200 0
}1553 BOOKS / MAP SALES 0 0 100 100 100 0
/1555 CAPITAL FUND INTEREST TRANSFER 500,000 500,000 500,000 300,000 0 -500,000
41559 COURT FINES 82,493 36,953 60,000 60,000 60,000 0
21560 PROPERTY RENTAL 143,745 568,431 25,000 25,000 25,000 0
"a1561 STATE LOCIP FOR DEBT SERVICES 203,409 2,453,563 1,031,564 0 4,352,575 3,321,011
"a1562 DEBTSERVICEINTERESTREIMBURSEME 182,202 174,703 188,000 188,000 188,000 0
:41554 ADMIN ISTRATIVEFEE/ OVERHEADALLO 45,928 8,444 15,000 15,000 15,000 0
41610 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION FEES 139 0 200 200 200 0
"aas50 TOWN AID 2,353,290 1,387,630 1,387,630 0 1,390,778 3,148
"a5354 WPCACOLLECTIONSERVICEREIMBURSE 805,164 811,217 650,000 650,000 650,000 0
'01010 COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE 4,807,527 6,407,043 4,372,694 1,703,500 7,046,853 2,674,159
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01005 CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 279,125 304,905 411,427 420,421 420,421 -8,994
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 1,125 2,402 1,275 1,350 1,350 -75
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 77,636 85,911 188,001 184,304 184,304 3,697
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 8,754 5,337 21,395 21,395 21,395 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 1,637 382 13,500 13,500 13,500 0
06 OTHER FINANCING USES 0 0 2,000 2,000 2,000 0
CENTRAL GRANTS OFFICE 368,177 398,937 637,598 642,970 642,970 5,372
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE  FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017  FY18 VAC. NEW UNF. Title Modified Requested Proposed Variance
5 5 0 0 0 ACCOUNTING CLERK| (35 HOURS) 205,738 208,692 208,692 -2,954
2 2 0 0 0  ACCOUNTING CLERK Il (35 HOURS) 9,452 97,557 97,557 -1,105
1 1 0 0 0 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SUPERVIS 84,063 83,653 83,653 410
1 1 0 0 0 ACCOUNTANT 83,750 83,341 83,341 409
1 1 0 0 0 CHIEF ACCOUNTANT 89,737 87,548 87,548 2,189
[ ) 1 1 0 0 0 CAPITOLPROJECTS FIXED ASSETS 84,490 84,490 84,490 0
COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE 1 1 0 0 0 644,230 645,281 645,281 -1,051

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL  ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6MONTH ESTIMATED

SERVICE INDICATORS 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE
Number of:
Accounts Payable Checks Issued 21,648 19,710 18,050 18,294 17,096 16,869 7,690 17,500
Manual checks processed 54 53 383 110 109 41 26 41
ACH Vendor Payments processed *** Notes 315 2340 8,939 1,230 2,500
Manual checks processed payroll 271 194 164 217 289 378 365 500
Travel requests processed 131 90 96 125 76 160 85 170
Payment Vouchers processed 49,599 46,447 48,762 51,903 49965 51,214 22,665 51,500
Scanned Back Pages for Inwices (2) 495990 464470 487,620 519,030 499,650 512,140 226,650 515,000
Capital Project checks processed 34 14 18 456 488 468 117 235
Capital Project wires processed 153 180 173 172 207 239 22 50
Cash Receipts processed 4,906 4971 4,945 5140 5234 6,426 3,016 6,500
Federal 1098 Forms issued 462 431 537 645 644 594 594
W-2 Statements issued 5670 5501 5,440 5590 5,650 5647 5647
Payroll Checks Issued (1) 48,335 43,269 32,454 30,136 23,486 18,477 10,322 20,644
Payroll Direct Deposit (1) 127,805 131884 137,001 141827 148,939 152,648 87,034 174,068
Payroll Vendor Checks Issued 4971 4926 4594 4028 3,526 3,522 2,086 4100
Payroll Vendor Direct Deposit 858 1,044 1,208 1321 1,406 1,527 956 1812
Pension checks issued (Police, Fire, Janitors) 10,842 10,560 10,546 10,054 9,580 9,131 4,381 8,762
Grants Administration:

number of new and recurring grants 125 123 128 126 128 133 n/a 135

number of grants closed 203 55 85 65 50 60 n/a 60
Financial report delivery date 31-Dec 31-Dec 31-Dec 31-Dec 15-Feb 31-Jan n/a 31-Dec
General ledger fiscal year end close 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun 30-Jun n/a 30-Jun

(1) Decreasel/increase in actual pay checks due to direct deposit

(2) Actual is based on an estimated

10 pages per invoice

(3) Increase due to annual account re-classes required

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1) Providing new training for MUNIS upgrade to assist all departments to implement upgrade.

2) Create further efficiencies to improve city wide departmental effectiveness and financial

functions.

3) Create multi-year reporting module with rating agency indicators and reports.

4) Develop deeper approaches within the department toward a work force of cooperation,
including cross training and the highest level of integrity and solid morale.

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1) Achieve new bond financing for capital projects.
6 MONTH STATUS: The process was completed, with Council approval, and the bonding

was managed with 30% less transaction costs than past years.

2) Completed updated CAFR for 2016 and seek Certificate of Excellence.
6 MONTH STATUS: The 2016 CAFR was completed by January 2017, with a clean audit

opinion rendered, and a certificate of excellence application has been sent to GFOA.

3) Initiate training of departmental MUNIS users.
6 MONTH STATUS: Several departments were re-trained in FY 2016-17, including OPED

and Health.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#  Org Description
'01010 COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE
"s1000
51099
01  PERSONNEL SERVICES
51140
51156
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
"52360
52385
52504
52917
03 FRINGE BENEFITS
"s3605
53705
53905
54555
"sa595
54675
"sa700
55155
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
"56100
56165
56175
05 SPECIAL SERVICES
'01010 COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE

Object#

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY
CONTRACTED SALARIES

LONGEVITY PAY
UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP /REGISTRATION FEES
ADVERTISING SERVICES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
COMPUTER SUPPLIES
MEETING/WORKSHOP/CATERING FOOD
OFFICE SUPPLIES

PUBLICATIONS

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS

AUDITING SERVICES
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS

FY 2015
Actuals

450,675
20,353
471,028
3,675
1,041
4,716
6,155
4517
49,675
107,869
168,216
0

0

90

192

84
3331
341

0

4,039
249,900
3672
7,443
261,015
909,013

FY 2016
Actuals

608,141
0
608,141
4,069

0

4,069
8,462
3378
60,284
114,956
187,081
145

0

0

0

229
2,939

0

as
3,358
254,900
20,694
7,651
283,245
1,085,893

FY 2017
Budget

644,230
0
644,230
2,700

0

2,700
8,881
14,397
70,579
104,863
198,720
437

57

237

544

750
4,500
700

202
7,827
275,000
40,000
9,199
324,199
1,177,276

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

645,281
0
645,281
2,850
400
3,250
8,627
14,397
78,747
145,789
247,560
437

57

237
544

750
5,500
700
202
8427
285,000
30,000
9,199
324,199
1,228,717

645,281
0
645,281
2,850
400
3,250
8,627
14,397
78,747
145,789
247,560
437

57

237
544

750
5,500
700

202
8,427
285,000
30,000
9,199
324,199
1,228,717

Variance

-1,051

-1,051
-150
-400
550

254

0
-8,168
-40,926
-48,840

oo ooo

-1,000

-1,000
-10,000
10,000

-51,441

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FINANCE DIVISIONS

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

MISSION STATEMENT

To plan and prepare all official statements for short and long term financing as well as the City's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and to oversee all financial departments. Our objectives
include ensuring adherence to all provisions of the Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB), preparing monthly financial reports on the fiscal condition of the City in relation to the
budget, acting as a liaison to all financial institutions on matters relating to City business, and
ensuring all debt obligations of the City are paid in accordance with borrowing provisions.

CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

FINANCE
DEPARTMENT

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET DETAILS

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Kenneth Flatto

Manager
REVENUE SUMMARY
Not Applicable
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01015 FINANCE ADMINISTRATION
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 427,091 620,022 508,267 490,671 490,671 17,596
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 8,374 14,547 6,675 3,975 3,975 2,700
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 145,410 148,091 168,733 110,342 110,342 49,391
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 3,051 2,220 9,909 10,214 10,214 -305
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 56 20 1,693 1,693 1,693 0
FINANCE ADMINISTRATION 583,982 784,900 686,277 616,895 616,895 69,382
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE  FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017  FY18 VAC. NEW UNF. Title Modified Requested Proposed Variance
1 1 0 0 0  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 127,213 126,592 126,592 621
1 1 0 0 0  EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT FINANCE 82,610 82,610 82,610 0
1 1 0 0 0  ASSISTANT INTERNAL AUDITOR 78,925 78,925 78,925 0
1 1 0 0 0  PROJECT MANAGER 87,125 101,272 101,272 -14,147
1 1 0 0 0 PAYROLLMANAGER 87,125 101,272 101,272 -14,147
01015000 1 0 0 0 -1 DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF F 45,269 0 0 45,269
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 6 5 0 0 -1 508,267 490,671 490,671 17,596
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FINANCE DEPARTMENT

FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTH ESTIMATED
SERVICE INDICATORS 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
FINANCE DEPARTMENT
Annual CAFR Report 1 1 1 1 1 0 1
Unresenved Fund Balance $12,720,514 $12,924,082 $13,395,816 $13,713,461 $14,619,142 $14,619,142 $14,619,142
Unresenved Fund Balance as % of General
Fund Expenditures 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50%
Fund Balance Appropriated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Qutstanding Debt $738,928,108  $704,991,981 $664,534,053 $645,979,133 $625,787,200 $689,851,400 $689,851,400
Debt per Capita $5,104 $4,828 $4618 $4,587 $4,340 $4,783 $4,783
reporting yes yes yes yes yes yes yes
comments 1 1 1 2 1 0 0

Gowemmental Activities Net Capital Assets $897,034,000  $967,164,000 $1,009,927,000 $1,197,629,000 $1,275,000,000 $1,275,000,000 $1,275,000,000

BOND AND CREDIT RATINGS ]
Credit Rating: Moody's A1 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2 A2
Standard & Poor's A- A- A- A- A- A- A-
Fitch A A A A A A A
Bond Rating: Moody's AA3 AA3 AA3 AA3 AA3 AA3 AA3
Standard & Poor's AA- AA- AA- AA- AA- AA- AA-
Fitch (1) A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(1) - Fitch does not currently rate

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1.

ok wd

Complete FY2017 Audit on time with clean management letter.

Strengthen Capital Bonding plan, with issuance of bonds pursuant to special legislation.
Establish internal audits and departmental reviews of revenue efforts.

Settle any major outstanding tax appeals and reduce risks to city.

Accomplish sufficient surplus for new fiscal year.

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1)

Reduce level of TANS (tax anticipation notes) needed.
6 MONTH STATUS: The TANS for summer 2016 were reduced to $15m and the TANS for
winter 2017 was reduced from $50m to $40m.

Accomplish bond financing for project needs.
6 MONTH STATUS: The city accomplished a $64 million bond issue to address all capital
needs successfully at interest rates lower than current rates.

Complete clean up of old Grant and Capital accounts.
6 MONTH STATUS: All capital accounts have been reconciled and updated with bond
counsel; ongoing efforts are underway for grant fund accounts.

Achieve cost savings through new initiatives including utility reviews.

6 MONTH STATUS: Finance achieved a rebidding of both electric utility services and of
property and other insurance services city wide, which resulted in cost savings of over
$250,000 per annum.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#  Org Description
01015 FINANCE ADMINISTRATION
51000
51034
01  PERSONNEL SERVICES
51140
51156
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
"52360
52385
52504
52917
03 FRINGE BENEFITS
53605
53610
53905
"54555
54675
"s4705
55150
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
56175
"s6250
59010
05 SPECIAL SERVICES
'01015 FINANCE ADMINISTRATION

Object#

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY
FTBONUS - CONTRACTUAL PAY

LONGEVITY PAY
UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
TRAINING SERVICES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
COMPUTER SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

SUBSCRIPTIONS

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
TRAVEL SERVICES
MAILING SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

427,091
0
427,091
3,000
5374
8374
5,774

0
55,580
84,057
145,410
60

473

583,982

FY 2016
Actuals

620,022
0
620,022
8,913
5,635
14,547
7,326
1,077
66,570
73,118
148,091
0

699

784,900

FY 2017
Budget

508,267
0
508,267
6,675

0

6,675
6,304
7,790
61,269
84,370
159,733
1,445
3,074
1,261
122
3,500
356

152
9,909
132
1,411
150
1,693
686,277

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

490,671
0
490,671
3,975

0

3,975
6,960
4,168
60,099
39,115
110,342
1,750
3,074
1,261
122
3,500
356

152
10,214
132
1,411
150
1,693
616,895

490,671
0
490,671
3,975

0

3,975
6,960
4,168
60,099
39,115
110,342
1,750
3,074
1,261
122
3,500
356

152
10,214
132
1,611
150
1,693
616,895

Variance

17,596
0
17,596
2,700
0
2,700
-656
3,622
1,170
45,255
49,391
-305

oOooocooo

-305

0

0

0

0
69,382

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT



FINANCE DIVISIONS

PRINT SHOP

MISSION STATEMENT

To provide all printing needs including typesetting, printing, binding, graphic arts and desktop design
for all City departments.

=9 CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

FINANCE
DEPARTMENT

IN-PLANT
PRINTING

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
PRINT SHOP BUDGET DETAILS

Shequilla Robertson
Acting Printing Foreman

REVENUE SUMMARY

Not Applicable
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01030 IN-PLANT PRINTING
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 310,097 318,485 326,297 366,038 366,038 -39,741
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 4,970 7,293 4,020 3,095 3,095 925
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 109,678 118,342 109,303 175,718 175,718 66,415
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 247,194 216,660 257,198 257,198 257,198 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 46,582 48,325 54,612 54,612 54,611 0
IN-PLANT PRINTING 718,520 709,105 751,430 856,661 856,660 -105,231
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017  FY18 VAC. NEW UNF. Title Modified Req d Proposed Variance
1 i 0 0 0  MESSENGER 37,333 40,085 40,085 -2,752
1 0 0 0  PRESSMAN 58,000 62,781 62,781 -4,781
1 1 0 0 0  PRINTER FOREMAN 85,573 85,156 85,156 417
1 1 0 0 0 BOOKBINDER 58,000 62,781 62,781 -4,781
1 1 0 0 0  PRINTER 58,000 62,781 62,781 -4,781
; 0.5 0.5 0 0 0  PRINTSHOP AIDE (P/T) 0 19,695 19,695 -19,695
01030000 1 1 0 0 0 ANNEX MAIL COURIER (35 HOURS) 29,391 32,759 32,759 -3,368
IN-PLANT PRINTING 6.5 6.5 0 0 0 326,297 366,038 366,038 -39,741

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

PRINT SHOP PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTH ESTIMATED
SERVICE INDICATORS 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2015-2016 2016-2017
PRINT SHOP
8 1/2 x 11 forms & letterhead 2,125,000 2,103,750 2,095,000 2,100,000 2,100,000
Black & White Copying 800,000 825,000 900,000 900,400 900,400
Color Copying 700,000 800,000 900,000 900,000 900,000
Enwelopes Printed 1,000,000 1,000,000 950,000 900,000 900,000
Index/cover/coated paper 850,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000
BINDING SERVICES
Folding 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,250,000 1,250,000
Stapling 80,000 75,000 75,000 70,000 70,000
Automatic bookletmaker 0 0 0 0 0
Numbering/Die-cutting 200,000 190,000 190,000 150,000 150,000
Scoring/perforation 50,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000
Large format Poster Printing 400 500 750 1,000 1,000
Number of Departments Senviced 72 72 72 72 72
TOTAL IMPRESSIONS/PIECES HANDLED 7,305,472 7439322 7535822 7,136,472 7,136,472
MAIL DISTRIBUTION CENTER
Mail run through postage machine 555,000 545,000 545,000 540,000 540,000
Amount Spent* $208,000 $209,000 $210,000 $234,080 200000

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1)
2)

Researching a new web-to-print system for job submission that will automate everything from
job ordering, ordering supplies, budget information and job pricing.
Working on continuing education on software and equipment for all employees.

FY2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1)

3)

To incorporate interns into our every day work force. This will incur no cost for the city and
will provide interns with school credit. Interns will come from two of our city schools: Bullard
Havens and Harding High.

6 MONTH STATUS: Working on starting this up in the new school year 2017-2018.

Implement a new web-to-print system for job submission that will automate everything from
job ordering, ordering supplies, budget information and job pricing.
6 MONTH STATUS: Still looking for a more reasonably priced software.

Continue to maintain and provide professional service in a timely manner for all of the City’'s
departments and the Board of Education.

6 MONTH STATUS: We are constantly working to get all departments work out in a
reasonable time frame.

Continue the use of our large format printer at a great cost savings.
6 MONTH STATUS: In the process of finding a vendor for a service contract on the machine
but we are constantly using the Large format to do work for all departments.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

PRINT SHOP

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#

Org Description Object#

'01030 IN-PLANT PRINTING

05

"s1000
"s1034
"51099
PERSONNEL SERVICES
51140
51156
OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
52360
’52385
52504
52917
FRINGE BENEFITS
"53605
53750
’53905
54675
54725
"sa730
"s5155
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
56170
"56175
"s9010
"s9015
SPECIAL SERVICES

'01030 IN-PLANT PRINTING

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY
FT BONUS - CONTRACTUAL PAY
CONTRACTED SALARIES

LONGEVITY PAY
UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
TRAVEL EXPENSES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
OFFICE SUPPLIES

POSTAGE

PRINTING SUPPLIES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS

OTHER MAINTENANCE & REPAIR S
OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
MAILING SERVICES

PRINTING SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

307,313
0

2,784
310,097
4970

0

4,970
4,193
670
38,388
66,427
109,678
325

0

0
12,120
199,788
4,960
30,000
247,194
8,747
7,538
7440
22,856
46,582
718,520

FY 2016
Actuals

318,485
0

0
318,485
4,160
3,133
7,293
4307
3,250
28,909
81,876
118,342
325

0

0
18,959
160,079
4,760
32,538
216,660
10,083
5,638
6,650
25,954
48,325
709,105

FY 2017
Budget

326,297
0

0
326,297
4,020

0

4,020
4,428

0
36,163
68,712
109,303
450

350
550
20,848
200,000
5,000
30,000
257,198
8,812
6,000
12,300
27,500
54,612
751,430

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

366,038
0

0
366,038
3,095

0

3,095
4,612
3,183
44,849
123,074
175,718
450
350
550
20,848
200,000
5,000
30,000
257,198
8,812
6,000
12,300
27,500
54,612
856,661

366,038
0

0
366,038
3,095

0

3,095
4,612
3,183
44,849
123,074
175,718
450
350
550
20,848
200,000
5,000
30,000
257,198
8,811
6,000
12,300
27,500
54,611
856,660

Variance

-39,741
0

0
-39,741
925

0

925
-184
-3,183
-8,686
-54,362
-66,415

oOoo0oococoo0oo0o0oo0co0oo0o0o0o

-105,231

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FINANCE DIVISIONS

PURCHASING

o MISSION STATEMENT

Provide our customers with professional services, support, and advice for the carrying out of
departmental objectives. Strive for the cost-effective procurement of quality goods and services
resulting in high quality and cost effective services to the city.

—1 CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

FINANCE
DEPARTMENT

PURCHASING

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

PURCHASING BUDGET DETAILS
Bernd Tardy
Manager
REVENUE SUMMARY
Not Applicable
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01035 PURCHASING
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 467,266 435,961 446,128 478,553 443,993 2,135
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 11,484 12,085 7,950 8,325 8,325 375
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 119,839 118,151 147,956 187,884 160,596 -12,640
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 5,091 9,617 10,910 11,576 11,576 -666
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 27,290 26,592 28,005 28,005 28,005 0
PURCHASING 630,970 602,406 640,949 714,343 652,495 11,546
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017 FY18 VAC. NEW  UNF. Title Modified Req d Proposed Variance
0 0 0 0 0 TYPISTI (35 HOURS) 0 34,560 0 0
3 0 0 0 BUYER 184,023 182,874 182,874 1,150
1 1 0 0 0  ASSISTANT PURCHASING AGENT 84,276 83,864 83,864 412
1 1 0 0 0 PURCHASING AGENT 117,624 117,050 117,050 574
1 1 1 0 0 CONTRACT COMPLIANCE OFFICER 60,205 60,205 60,205 0
'01035000 0 0 0 0 0 *(MID YEAR BUDGET TRANSFER ) -4,000 0 0 -4,000
PUBLIC PURCHASING 6 6 1 0 0 442,128 478,553 443,993 -1,865

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

PURCHASING PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6MONTH  ESTIMATED

SERWVICE INDICATORS 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017

PURCHASING

Purchase orders issued 15,849 14,933 15,398 16,000 14612 7429 15,000

Board of Education Purchase orders 3,306 4918 5,392 5,500 4117 2,021 4,000

Food & Nutrition Purchase orders 575 395 302 400 388 316 400

Board of Education Grants 2,143 e - 597 257 500

Total Board of Education Purchase orders " 6,024 5313 5,694 5900" 51027 2,594" 4,900

Board of Education Purchase orders as a % of Total 38%

PURCHASING MODIFICATIONS

Purchase Modifications done 7,124 7,783 9,904 8,000 9,726 2,313 10,000

Board of Education Modifications 1,436 2420 3,753 3,000 3,524 720 3,000

Food & Nutriion Modifications 206 215 377 300 382 114 400

Board of Education Grants Modifications 666 b - 442 66 400

Total Board of Education Modifications 4 2,308 2,635 4,130 33007 4348”7 900" 3,800

PURCHASES

Qualified 215 213 144 150 107 90 125

Emergency 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Waivers 0 0 1 2 0 0 0

Sole Source 32 25 38 40 12 1 12

State 41 56 60 60 44 30 50

ICMAINDICATORS

Percentage of Employees using the online purchasing system

Number of FTES in the purchasing department

% of purchases made by women & minority-owned businesses

Bid requests processed 121 133 110 140 86 65

Informal Bids: days from requisition to P.O. issuance 5 12 11 10 5 5

Construction Bids: days from requisition to P.O. issuance 21 5 ? 4 1 1

All other formal Bids: days from requisition to P.O. issuance 100 128 136 136 60

* due to the transistion to Munis | am unable to acquire the data that is requested.
**BOE discontinued the use of Dept899, so | can no longer distinguish between BOE & BOE Grants

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1) Continue developing relationship with Government Sourcing Solutions in identifying possible
cost savings.

Work with CAO’s and MBE office to streamline city’'s MBE process as it relates to purchasing.
To procure goods and services as efficiently as possible.

To provide continuous training and education for internal and external customers.

To process documentation within reasonable timeframes.

To minimize disputes between internal customers and suppliers.

a0 R

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1. Use Purchasing webpage to effectively, place Title 6 information, update Board of Public
Purchases information and create recurring forms library
6 MONTH STATUS - Per Finance Department, an employee is being trained and will handle
web for entire Finance Department, including Purchasing.

2. Investigate possibility of initiating P-Card program
6 MONTH STATUS - Not being implemented at this time.

3. Complete archiving
6 MONTH STATUS - On-going. A lot done but still more to do.

4. Establish relationship with EZIQ for construction projects.
6 MONTH STATUS - have successfully completed several projects using the EZIQC method
of contract delivery.

5. Work with Finance Director on Purchasing Department reorganization
6 MONTH STATUS - currently seeking new position for routine office tasks.

6. Getrevised Purchasing Ordinance back before the Common Council for approval.
6 MONTH STATUS - completed with help from Mayors Office and Legal Dept.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

PURCHASING

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#

v
01035

v
05

v
01035

Org Description Object#
PURCHASING
"s1000
"s1099
PERSONNEL SERVICES
"s1140
51156
OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
"52360
"s2385
52504
52917
FRINGE BENEFITS
"53605
"s4675
"s4705
"s5150
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
56175
"56180
SPECIAL SERVICES
PURCHASING

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY
CONTRACTED SALARIES

LONGEVITY PAY
UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
OFFICE SUPPLIES

SUBSCRIPTIONS

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
OTHER SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

358,892
108,375
467,266
7425
4,059
11,484
3,107

0
47,420
69,312
119,839
265
4673
25

129
5,091
1,751
25,539
27,290
630,970

FY 2016
Actuals

427,386
8,575
435,961
7,725
4,360
12,085
3,911
2,003
44,001
68,236
118,151
270
4310
200
4,837
9,617
416
26,175
26,592
602,406

FY 2017
Budget

442,128
4,000
446,128
7,950

0

7,950
4,033
3,116
49,540
91,267
147,956
760
4,429
421
5,300
10,910
1,800
26,205
28,005
640,949

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

478,553
0
478,553
8325

0

8325
4322
4512
54,957
124,093
187,884
855
5,000
421
5300
11,576
1,800
26,205
28,005
714,343

443,993
0
443,993
8,325

0

8,325
3,978
3,040
54,957
98,621
160,596
855
5,000
421
5,300
11,576
1,800
26,205
28,005
652,495

Variance

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FINANCE DIVISIONS

TAX COLLECTOR

MISSION STATEMENT

The overall mission of the Tax Collector is to collect all tax revenue due to the City in accordance with
Connecticut State Statutes and to provide the taxpayers of the City with information and assistance in
a prompt and courteous manner.

CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

FINANCE
DEPARTMENT

TAX COLLECTOR

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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TAX COLLECTOR

FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

BUDGET DETAILS

Veronica Jones
Tax Collector

REVENUE SUMMARY

Org# Object# Object Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 Variance
. Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01040 TAX COLLECTOR
‘21305 TAX COLLECTOR: 3030 PARK 903,269 948432 903,269 1,045,646 1,045,646 142,377
"a1346 MUNIC SHARE VEHICLE TAXES 0 0 0 0 5222,047 5,222,047
‘a1347 MUNIC SHARE LIEU OF TAXES 0 0 0 0 3,236,058 3,236,058
"a1348 MUNIC SHARE SALES TAXES FUND 0 0 9,874,826 7,757,441 9,758,441 -116,385
"a1355 TAX COLLECTOR: ATM FEES 0 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 0
"a1538 COPIES 0 0 2,500 2,500 2,500 0
"a1693 CURRENT TAXES: ALL PROPERTIES 291,238,982 293,189,637 304,061,726 303,238,863 296,312,125 -7,749,601
"a1694 ONE MILL TAX FOR LIBRARY SERVS 0 0 5,825,185 5,856,360 5,726,308 -98,877
"a1697 ARREARS TAXES 2,098,326 1,619,765 2,400,000 1,900,000 2,000,000 -400,000
"a1699 FORECLOSED PROPERTIES 0 0 0 0 0 0
21702 PENALTIES: CURRENT TAXES 1,967,984 1,840,601 1,900,000 1,900,000 1,800,000 -100,000
"a1703 PENALTIES: ARREARS TAXES 853,817 1,066,925 900,000 700,000 800,000 -100,000
"a1704 LIEN FEES 173,923 186,861 175,000 175,000 175,000 0
"aa270 JEWISH CENTER REIMB - PILOT 0 0 0 50,000 50,000 50,000
"aa301 EVENT ADMISSIONS SURCHARGE 0 0 0 -120,000 120,000 120,000
"a4320 BROAD STREET PILOT 29,417 30,299 33,274 35,655 35,655 2,381
"aa321 CITY TRUST PILOT 221,366 228,007 231,451 268,314 268314 36,863
‘aa322 EAST MAIN STREET PILOT 23,698 28273 26,650 31,347 31,347 4,697
"aa323 ARCADE PILOT 76,732 40,701 35,907 41,626 41,626 5,719
‘24324 CAPTAIN COVE PILOT 5,000 47,445 80,000 80,000 80,000 0
"aa325 CASA PILOT 14,802 15,098 14,231 16,022 16,022 1,791
"a4326 585 NORMAN ST - PILOT 0 0 0 145,496 145,496 145,496
"aa328 3336 FAIRFIELD AVE - PILOT 0 0 0 144,200 144,200 144,200
24329 525 PALISADE AVE - PILOT 0 0 0 0 0 0
"aa330 STEEL POINT PILOT 0 0 0 0 400,000 400,000
"aa340 ARTSPACE READS BUILDING PILOT 80,420 41,537 75,804 0 0 -75,804
"aa346 UNITED CEREBRAL PALSY PILOT 14,932 15231 14,932 15,846 15,846 914
:44347 144 GOLDEN HILL STREET PILOT 152,784 81,019 91,572 82,833 82,833 -8,739
44348 GOODWILL-HELMS HOUSING PILOT 9,063 10,171 9,063 6,140 6,140 2,923
"aa349 PARK CITY RCH PILOT 76,139 78,823 73,922 83,108 83,108 9,186
"aa3ss 930 MAIN STPILOT 0 85,614 82,634 82,634 82,634 0
"aa3s8 JEFFERSON SCHOOL PILOT 0 0 20,169 0 0 -20,169
"aa368 115 WASHINGTON AVE - PILOT 0 17,000 17,000 17,000 17,000 0
24370 SYCAMORE HOUSING ASSOC. PILOT 144,505 147,395 93,763 93,763 93,763 0
:44371 1795 STRATFORD AVE - PILOT 0 0 0 45,000 45,000 45,000
44372 DOMINION BPT FUEL CELL PILOT 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 0
}4373 WASHINGTON PARK PILOT 37,971 20828 39,753 39,753 39,753 0
44393 PREMIUM ON LIEN SALE 184,697 204439 0 0 0 0
44460 CLINTON COMMONS PILOT 27,583 28,411 27,583 27,583 27,583 0
34689 MISCELLANEOUS PILOTS 0 0 35,000 35,000 35,000 0
., 44698 TELECOMM. ACCESS INE TAXES 271,032 248,991 260,000 200,000 200,000 -60,000
01040 TAX COLLECTOR 298,856,441 300,471,502 327,556,714 324248630 328,390,945 834,231
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
, Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01040 TAX COLLECTOR
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 727,165 770,484 738,341 717,141 717,530 20,811
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 39,654 47,116 43 475 38,825 38,825 4,650
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 300,368 298,516 283,164 328,337 299,766 -16,602
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 24,551 25,521 35,014 35,014 35,014 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 220,628 158,857 404,596 404,616 404,616 -20
TAX COLLECTOR 1,312,365 1,300,495 1,504,590 1,523,933 1,495,751 8,839
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017 FY18 VAC. NEW  UNF. Title Modified R d Proposed Variance
1 0 0 0 -1 ACCOUNTING CLERK | (35 HOURS) 46,979 46,685 0 46,979
0 1 0 0 0 ACCOUNTING CLERK I1 (35 HOURS) 0 0 47,074 -47,074
7 7 1 0 0 TAX COLLECTOR CLERK (35 HOURS 347,792 335,557 335,557 12,235
2 2 0 0 0  TAXCOLL CLERK SPAN(35 HOURS) 101,622 100,988 100,988 634
1 b & 0 0 0 ACCOUNTANT 83,750 76,370 76,370 7,380
. 1 1 0 0 0 TAXCOLLECTOR 111,073 110,531 110,531 542
01040000 1 1 0 0 0 DATA COORDINATOR 47,125 47,010 47,010 115
TAX COLLECTOR 13 13 1 0 -1 738,341 717,141 717,530 20,811

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

TAX COLLECTOR PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL . ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTH ESTIMATED
SERVICE INDICATORS 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
TAX COLLECTOR
Total Taxes Collectible $312,560,538 $324525415 $336,641,533 $341471864 $341902548 § 359,102,847 $ 359,102,847
Total Taxes Collected $270,246,151 $281,439,779 §$289,259,683 $293,925589 §$294873395 § 181,254,854 $ 294873395
Taxes: current AR $ 7559254 § 7473927 $ 8918080 $ 5070884 $ 4973937 $179982,434 $ 4,973,937
Taxes: arrears AR $ 34755132 § 35611710 § 38463769 $ 42475391 $ 42055216 $ 1272420 $ 42055216
Interest: current (1) $ 1944056 $§ 1915545 $ 2023293 $ 1967984 $ 1841052 §$ 366,943 $ 1,841,052
Interest: arrears (1) $ 1305048 $ 1170615 § 729,705 § 972624 $ 1104732 § 666835 $ 1,104,732
Bulk Assignment: taxes current $ 7541203 $§ 7174508 $ 7711155 § 7568554 $ 7,141237 N/A $ 7,141,237
Bulk Assignment: taxes arrears N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 309,072 N/A n/a
Bulk Assignment: interest current $ 786,290 $ 715692 § 785187 § 733128 § 687,348 N/A $ 687,348
Bulk Assignment: interest arrears N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 175,350 N/A n/a
CURRENT YEAR COLLECTED
Percent collected (current year) 97.25% 97.39% 96.96% 97.46% 98.33% 57.05% 98.52%
Permits - approvals 1,895 1,900 1,850 2,300 2,066 1,033 2,200
INFORMATION REQUESTS
Telephone 7,320 7,250 7,500 7,460 7,350 7,600
Mailfax- Sent (2) 1,965 1,950 1,800 1,820 1,300 1,200
Walk-in Request (3) 16,524 16,524 16,450 16,200 17,500 18,010
Mortgage companytapes 10 10 10 10 10 10
Taxbills 209,656 173,692 165,655 169,528 176,548 132,411 176,548
Transfers to suspense 406,860 891,177 106,684 208,876 750,896 n/a 27,500
Liens filed (4) 2,514 2,153 2315 2,214 2,772 n/a 2,810
Delinquent demands and warrants (4) 48,480 45,189 58,467 42,211 48,849

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1) Continue staff development through education and cross-training to maximize the customer

service experience.

2) Continue to decrease wait time for constituents by opening all 6 windows for payment

processing during peak collection months.
3) Continue to clean up personal property records to improve collections efforts.
4) Continue to offer extending hours during peak collection months
5) Create a Reader friendly Bill. Easier to read

FY2017-2018 GOAL STATUS

1)

Continue staff development through cross-training and education opportunities to maximize

customer service experience.
6 MONTH STATUS: ongoing and continued success
7 out of 10 staffer attending or attended Tax Collection’s education courses

Streamline Tax Bill look-up/payments on-line to make it easier for constituents.
6 MONTH STATUS: Successful and completed
Online look up and payment system now user friendly

Continue efforts to clean up personal property records to enhance collection efforts.

6 MONTH STATUS: Continuing and ongoing

Liens filed on all delinquent personal property accounts

Hire collection agency to collect personal property taxes
Work with Tax Assessor to Audit Personal Property accounts
Working with City Attorney for increased collection

Continue to decrease wait time for constituents.
6 MONTH STATUS: Continuing and successful
Average wait-time reduced by 15%

Increase efficiency in payment process by sending reminder notices to include the payment stub.

6 MONTH STATUS: Continuing and Successful
Currently mailing out four statements a year

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

TAX COLLECTOR

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS/APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

FY 2017-2018 ADDITIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Staff trained in most procedures of tax collections

Increased payment processing time thereby decreasing volume of incoming calls
Online Tax bill look-up and payment options now user friendly
Reduce wait time in line by 15%
Started delinquent collection procedures for Personal Property (business) accounts

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#

Org Description Object#

'01040 TAX COLLECTOR

v
04

v
05

"s1000
51034
PERSONNEL SERVICES
51106
51108
51116
51140
51156
OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
52360
52385
52504
52917
FRINGE BENEFITS
53430
"53605
53610
53705
53710
"53905
"54675
55145
"s5155
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
"s6040
"56045
"56105
56110
"s6130
56175
"s6180
"s6225
"s9015
SPECIAL SERVICES

'01040 TAX COLLECTOR

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY
FTBONUS - CONTRACTUAL PAY

REGULAR STRAIGHT OVERTIME
REGULAR 1.5 OVERTIME PAY
HOLIDAY 2X OVERTIME PAY
LONGEVITY PAY

UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

OTHER INSURANCE
MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
TRAINING SERVICES

ADVERTISING SERVICES

OTHER COMMUNICATION SERVICES
EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
OFFICE SUPPLIES

EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEASE

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS

BOOKBINDING SERVICES
BUILDING MAINTENANCE SERVICE
BANKING SERVICES

FINANCIAL SERVICES

LEGAL SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
OTHER SERVICES

SECURITY SERVICES

PRINTING SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

727,165
0
727,165
10,052
10,293
0
16,725
2,584
39,654
8,996

0
99,240
192,133
300,368
2,550
416
1,289
4,346
340
1,550
12,173
250
1,637
24,551
0

0
23,021
50,292
56,507
23,979
0

426
66,403
220,628
1,312,365

FY 2016
Actuals

770,484
0
770,484
15,806
11,573
0
16,238
3,500
47,116
10,272
1,121
86,900
200,223
298,516
2,550
406
1,729
3,722
429
1,737
12,566
450
1,933
25,521
0

155
8,359
1,449
55,688
24,325
0

441
68,440
158,857
1,300,495

FY 2017
Budget

738,341
0
738,341
12,500
14,500
500
15,975
0
43,475
9,427
2,715
82,296
188,726
283,164
9,020
521
1,125
3,851
900
1,797
14,800
700
2,300
35,014
208

385
23,021
48,504
125,563
26,475
100,000
441
80,000
404,596
1,504,590

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

717,141
0
717,141
12,500
14,500
500
11,325
0
38,825
9,419
4,180
88,509
226,229
328,337
9,020
521
1,125
3,851
900
1,797
14,800
700
2,300
35,014
208

385
23,021
48,504
125,563
26,475
100,000
461
80,000
404,616
1,523,933

717,530
0
717,530
12,500
14,500
500
11,325
0
38,825
8,823
4,180
82,837
203,926
299,766
9,020
521
1,125
3,851
900
1,797
14,800
700
2,300
35,014
208

385
23,021
48,504
125,563
26,475
100,000
461
80,000
404,616
1,495,751

Variance

20,811

20,811
0

0

0

4,650

0

4,650
604
-1,465
-541
-15,200
-16,602

C0O00O0O0CO0O0OO0O00O0O00O0O0O0
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FINANCE DIVISIONS

TAX ASSESSOR

MISSION STATEMENT

The primary statutory responsibility of the Department of Assessment is to develop the annual Grand
List of Taxable and Exempt properties and to assure fair valuation and equitable distribution of
assessment for all property owners. The statutory obligation of the Assessment Department is to
discover, value, and list real and personal property consistent with state law. The Department of
Assessment is staffed by ten full-time employees.

Grand List includes three principal categories: 1) Real Estate; 2) Personal Property; and 3) Motor
Vehicles. The net taxable Grand List for October 1, 2016 (FY 2017-2018) was composed of
approximately 34,507 parcels of Real Estate, approximately 4,603 Personal Property accounts, and
approximately 80,015 Motor Vehicles. Included in the continuous maintenance of the Grand List is the
administration of approximately 5,131 personal exemptions, 1,266 elderly tax credits, and
approximately 173 Commercial Personal Property Exemptions. There are approximately 1,737
parcels of Tax Exempt Real Property (churches, schools, charitable organizations, etc.) totaling
approximately $2.61 Billion.

=1 CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

FINANCE
DEPARTMENT

TAX ASSESSOR
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET DETAIL

TAX ASSESSOR

REVENUE SUMMARY

Daniel Kenny
Acting City Assessor

Org# Object# Object Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 Variance
. Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01041 TAX ASESSOR
"a1538 COPIES 4,358 4,411 3,500 3,500 3,500 0
"aa679 LOCAL PROP TAX HOSP & REAL ST 0 0 0 0 20,015,970 20,015,970
"aa680 ELDERLY/DISABLEDFREEZETAXREIMB 8,000 23612 7,500 7,500 7,500 0
"aa681 DCA TAX ABATEMENT 29,641 0 0 0 0 0
"aa682 ELDERLYEXEMPTION-OWNERSPROGRAM 739,199 727,647 700,000 700,000 650,000 -50,000
"aa683 ELDERLYEXEMPTION-TOTALLYDISABL 16,291 0 15,000 15,000 15,000 0
"aa684 ELDERLYEXEMPTION-ADDITIONALVET 31,703 30,021 29,000 29,000 29,000 0
"a4686 TAX EXEMPT HOSPITALS 7,962,794 7,499 641 7,454,025 14,000,000 1,961,507 -5,492,518
"aas87 STATE-OWNED PROPERTY PILOT 3,012,598 2,353,126 2,367,096 2,367,096 2,782,383 415,287
"a4690 DISTRESSEDMUN ICIPALITYTAXEXEMP 322,834 358,073 198,975 198,975 198,975 0
"aa692 MASHANTUCKET PEQUOT/MOHEGAN FD 6,192,581 6,295,715 5,913,094 5,856,925 5,856,925 56,169
01041 TAX ASESSOR 18,320,000 17,292,246 16,688,190 23,177,996 31,520,760 14,832,570
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01041 TAX ASESSOR
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 602,310 661,059 710,501 606,523 714,542 4,041
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 25,424 26,018 57,500 56,600 56,600 900
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 188,609 190,607 194,805 196,796 214,190 -19,385
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 21,827 25,314 33,813 33,813 33,813 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 56,528 398,290 188,348 222,279 222,279 -33,931
TAX ASESSOR 894,699 1,301,288 1,184,967 1,116,011 1,241,424 -56,457
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017 FY18 VAC. NEW  UNF. Title dified Requested Proposed Variance
1 1 0 0 0  SPECIAL PROJECT COORDINATOR 74,825 76,322 76,322 -1,497
5 5 0 0 0  TAXASSESSMENT CLERK (35 HOURS 249,766 249,909 249,909 -143
2 2 0 0 0 PROPERTY APPRAISER | (35 HOURS 106,321 107,658 107,658 -1,337
1 1 0 0 0 PROPERTY APPRAISER Il (35 HOUR 60,866 60,485 60,485 381
1 1 0 0 0 TAXASSESSOR 112,699 112,149 112,149 550
'01041000 1 1 1 0 0  DEPUTY TAX ASSESSOR 106,024 0 108,019 -1,995
TAX ASSESSOR 1 11 1 0 0 710,501 606,523 714,542 -4,041

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

TAX ASSESSOR PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTHS ESTIMATED

SERVICE INDICATORS 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
TAX ASSESSOR
Real estate parcels 34,605 34634 34,682 34,624 34,600 34,550
Income and expense analysis 3,275 3,583 3,189 3,252 2,351 2400
Real estate adjustments value adds 209 114 279 273 422 450
Real estate adjustments value deletes 125 236 164 134 5 10
Real estate adjustments changes 1,681 1,720 1,152 1,150 1,307 1250
Deed transfers 5,399 6,619 6,650 6,850 6,780 6900
Fire and demolition activity reviews 157 137 136 132 190 140
Taxmap changes 131 92 110 240 115 130
New Building permits reviewed 559 727 816 852 1,039 1150
Active Building permits (open) 1,438 1,386 595 680 779 880
Exempt applications 65 72 82 80 55 55
Exemption prorates 55 52 75 75 ] 100
Certificates of occupancy/prorates 409 607 325 285 504 550
Personal Property Accounts 4,566 4,604 4,412 4,435 4,435 4600
Pers. Prop. Accts. Staff Audit 350 400 450 390 450 500
Pers. Prop. Accts. Adds (Net Change) 255 350 400 420 524 300
Pers. Prop. Accts. Value Changes 3,500 4015 4,400 4330 4,300 4600
Motor Vehicles 72,460 72,867 73,881 75,200 76,783 80000
Motor vehicles add-ons - By Referrals 198 220 297 252 310 330
Motor vehicles add-ons - By Discovery 25 30 40 25 30 35
Motor vehicles deletes 3,120 2,740 2,650 2710 2,820 2600
Motor vehicles changes Pro-rates 8,700 8,210 8,100 8,230 8,170 8250
Elderly taxrelief# of annual apps 1,296 1,310 1,289 1,180 1,265 1300
Economic development programs 64 64 61 64 53 60
Veteran exemptions, SS, & Blind 5170 5,170 4,860 4,939 2,510 2600
Information requests

Telephone 125,000 130,000 131,000 132,000 122,000 115,000

MailfaxEmail 5275 5,170 5,210 5,450 5,200 5,000

Walk-in Requests for Information 33,950 34,600 34,750 36,250 35,200 34,500
Revaluation Activity:
GRAND LIST
Assessor's Grand List $7.16 Billion $7.19 billion $6.99 Billion $7.13 Billion $6.1 Billion $6.167 Billion
Exempt property activity $3.155 Bilion $3.203 billion  $3.241 Billion $3.107 Billion $2.21 Billion $2.61 Billion
Exemptions (personal) activity $166.3 Million $174.9 million  $180.9 Milion $125.7 Million $116 Million $121 Million
Board of Assessment Appeal changes ($14 Million) ($11 million)  ($7.0 Million) ($9.6 Million) ($8.1 Million) ($6 Milion)
Increases in Grand List $65.9 Million $65.9 million  ($200 Million) $140 Million ($1 Billion)* ($2 Milion)
Final net taxable Grand List $7 Billion $7 billion $6.9 Billion $7.1 Billion $6.1 Billion $6.1 Million)

*2015 Rewaluation Decline
Please note: Changes in the Grand List, in light of the current conditions in the housing market and economy, are hard to
predict.

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1) Continue to focus on staff development via CAAO (Connecticut Association of Assessing
Officers) education offerings and conduct weekly staff meetings to foster a team approach to
problem identification and resolution.

2) Continue to assist the Board of Assessment Appeals in a timely and professional manner.

3) Continue to conduct the personal audit program for personal property, established in FY
2017-2018, that will foster accurate filings of personal property declarations by businesses
and individuals.

4) Continue to implement more efficiency processes within the department.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

TAX ASSESSOR PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1.

Continue to focus on staff development via CAAO (Connecticut Association of Assessing
Officers) education offerings and conduct weekly staff meetings to foster a team approach to
problem identification and resolution.

6 MONTH STATUS - Staff members received CCMA re-certification credits via CAAO and
workshop offerings. Others successfully completed CAAO CCMA certification classes at
Assessor School at UCONN. We continued to conduct weekly staff meetings to foster
achievement of department operational goals and objectives.

Achieve real property assessment equity and uniformity for the 2015 Revaluation by
complying with revaluation standards set forth CGS 12-62i-1 (12).

6 MONTH STATUS - The 2015 Revaluation complied with the revaluation standards set forth
CGS 12-62i-1 (12).

Continue to assist the Board of Assessment Appeals in a timely and professional manner.
6 MONTH STATUS - provide on-going assistance via posting legal notices, making appeal
applications available, collecting/recording completed appeal applications, and providing
requested assessment data necessary for the Board deliberation process.

Initiate an external audit program for personal property that will foster accurate filings of
personal property declarations by businesses and individuals.

6 MONTH STATUS — Completed the selection and hiring of certified personal property audit
companies. There were 25 personal property audits were conducted and completed to date.

Implement valuation and administrative software changes as part of other office efficiencies.
6 MONTH STATUS — Completed and implemented the replacement and conversion to a
more time efficient personal property valuation and administrative program. Completed and
implemented software to administer personal exemptions in a more time efficient manner.
Both processes enabled the completion and signing the 2016 Grand List on January 30, 2017

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT



FY 2016-201r7 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

TAX ASSESSOR

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#

Org Description Object#

01041 TAX ASESSOR

01

‘05

51000
PERSONNEL SERVICES
51106
"s1108
51140
51156
"s1403
OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
52360
"s2385
"s2399
52504
52917
FRINGE BENEFITS
"53605
53610
53705
53720
’53905
"s4555
"sas95
54675
"s4705
"sa725
55055
"s5145
"s5150
55155
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
56040
"56055
"s6095
"s6100
"s6180
SPECIAL SERVICES

'01041 TAX ASESSOR

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY

REGULAR STRAIGHT OVERTIME
REGULAR 1.5 OVERTIME PAY
LONGEVITY PAY

UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU
ASSESSMENT APPEALS STIPENDS

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP /REGISTRATION FEES
TRAINING SERVICES

ADVERTISING SERVICES

TELEPHONE SERVICES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
COMPUTER SUPPLIES
MEETING/WORKSHOP/CATERING FOOD
OFFICE SUPPLIES

SUBSCRIPTIONS

POSTAGE

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT
EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEASE

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS

BOOKBINDING SERVICES
COMPUTER SERVICES
APPRAISAL SERVICES
AUDITING SERVICES
OTHER SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

602,310
602,310
366
291
9,788
1,010
13,970
25,424
8,683
496
600
78,302
100,528
188,609
1,739
550
831

0

259

0

559
7236
1,763
6,066

0

0

0

2,825
21,827
750
25,962
6,300

0
23,516
56,528
894,699

FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018
Actuals Budget Requested PROPOSED
661,059 710,501 606,523 714,542
661,059 710,501 606,523 714,542
461 10,000 10,000 10,000
284 0 0 0
9,525 9,375 8,475 8,475
1,040 0 0 0
14,708 38,125 38,125 38,125
26,018 57,500 56,600 56,600
9,508 9,900 8,541 10,107
1,001 3,993 3,993 6,697
800 600 400 400
71,501 78,539 74,723 87,847
107,796 101,773 109,139 109,139
190,607 194,805 196,796 214,190
1,368 1,384 1384 1,384
3,253 3,393 3393 3,393
1,060 909 909 909
0 194 194 194
1,067 1,126 1,126 1,126
372 1,080 1,080 1,080
0 884 884 884
4,946 5,455 5,455 5,455
1,058 1,615 1,615 1,615
8,453 9,654 9,654 9,654
525 1,706 1,706 1,706
0 1,488 1,488 1,488
0 1,350 1350 1,350
3,212 3,575 3575 3,575
25,314 33,813 33,813 33,813
5,795 10,606 10,606 10,606
35,245 36,069 40,000 40,000
22,744 43,000 43,000 43,000
0 373 373 373
334,507 98,300 128,300 128,300
398,290 188,348 222,279 222,279
1301,288 1,184,967 1,116,011 1,241,424

Variance

900
207
2,704
200
-9,308
7,366
-19,385

Oo0oo0co0oO0O0O0O0O0OO0CODO0OO0COO0OO0

-3,931
0

0
-30,000
-33,931
-56,457

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FINANCE DIVISIONS

TREASURY

MISSION STATEMENT

Our mission is to act as the custodian of all funds belonging to the City of Bridgeport. Our objectives
include maximizing on-line Banking Services from each Financial Institution to expedite wire
transfers, stop payments, and check retention needed for research purposes. We work with Financial
Institutions to implement on-line investment practices, and deposit and invest all funds in any national
or state bank/trust company. We comply with all regulations, orders and ordinances made by the City
Council. Our activities include the distribution of all payroll and vendor checks. In addition, we make
all payments for Debt Service and prepare and maintain all records of monetary transactions for the
City of Bridgeport.

=1 CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

FINANCE
DEPARTMENT

TREASURER
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
TREASURY BUDGET DETAIL

Terri Coward
Manager

REVENUE SUMMARY

Org# Object# Object Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01045 TREASURY
"a1246 EARNINGS ON INVESTMENTS 33,020 62,160 27,000 27,000 27,000 0
01045 TREASURY 33,020 62,160 27,000 27,000 27,000 0

APPROPRIATION SUMMARY

Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed

01045 TREASURY
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 177,911 201,976 198,373 190,543 190,543 7,830
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 975 2,781 1,125 1,125 1,125 0
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 33,623 35,863 39,184 60,648 60,648 -21,464
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 4,099 8,804 13,534 13,534 13,534 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 52,483 45,004 75,800 75,800 75,800 0
TREASURY 269,090 294,429 328,016 341,650 341,650 13,634

PERSONNEL SUMMARY

FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017 FY18 VAC. NEW  UNF. Title Modified Requested Prop d Variance
1 1 0 0 0  CITY TREASURER 92,250 91,800 91,800 450
0.5 0.5 0 0 0 PAYROLL PROCESSOR (P/T) 22,373 2,373 22,373 0
61045@ 1 1 0 0 0 ACCOUNTANT 83,750 76,370 76,370 7,380
TREASURER 25 25 0 0 0 198,373 190,543 190,543 7,830

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

TREASURY PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTH ESTIMATED
SERVICE INDICATORS 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
TREASURER
Pension Checks issued 10,560 10,546 10,526 9,580 9,252 3,698 11,094
Vendor Checks mailed 19,249 18,433 18,972 17,096 19,591 11,280 18,280
Payroll Checks distributed 181,317 175,608 174,899 152,465 167,657 82,504 165,007
DEBT ISSUANCES
Total bank accounts 88 85 80 80 80 82 82
Checking 37 31 30 30 30 31 31
Savings 38 37 35 35 a5 35 35
Investment 11 14 12 12 12 13 13
ZBA 2 3 3 3 3 3 3
R & T accounts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL BANK BALANCES
Checking § 12456,200 $ 22,662,746 $ 23,000000 $ 21639242 $ 45920578 $ 30,594,217 $ 22,284,200
Savings $ 20,704,321 §$ 7,106608 $ 7,500000 $ 7,920,355 $ 2452639 $ 2450241 $ 2,450,241
Reich & Tang $0 $0 $0 0 0 0 0
Investment $117,034,387 $120,177,012 $ 122,000,000 $ 78494541 $ 132844433 $ 109,290,360 $ 112,844434

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1)
2)
3)

4)

To provide exceptional Treasury services for the City of Bridgeport to residents, pensioners,
employees, visitors and the business community.

To create new and maintain excellent relationships with our banking partners to benefit the
City of Bridgeport.

To provide financial status to the Chief Financial Officer to assist in decision-making process
for the City of Bridgeport.

Review and revise current processes for daily operations.

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1)

To provide exceptional Treasury services for the City of Bridgeport to residents, pensioners,
employees, visitors and the business community.

6 MONTH STATUS: The Treasurer’s office continues to provide exceptional service to all
constituents and stakeholders who contact our office.

To maintain excellent relationships with our banking partners to benefit the City of Bridgeport.
6 MONTH STATUS: The Treasurer’s Office continues to maintain excellent relationships with
existing banking partners. In addition, the Treasurer's office continues to seek sound

financial vehicles to benefit the City of Bridgeport.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

TREASURY

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#  Org Description
'01045 TREASURY
51000
51034
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES
51140
51156
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
52360
52385
52504
52917
03 FRINGE BENEFITS
53605
53750
53905
54555
54595
54675
55150
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
56105
56175
"56205
'05  SPECIAL SERVICES
'01045 TREASURY

Object#

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY
FT BONUS - CONTRACTUAL PAY

LONGEVITY PAY
UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
TRAVEL EXPENSES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
COMPUTER SUPPLIES
MEETING/WORKSHOP/CATERING FOOD
OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

BANKING SERVICES
OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

177,911
0
177,911
975

0

975
2,586

0
20,048
10,989
33,623
0

50

0

3,590

0

459

0

4,099
51,846
637

0
52,483
269,090

FY 2016
Actuals

201,976
0
201,976
1,050
1,731
2,781
2,922

0
19,360
13,581
35,863
65

0

0

6,981

0

1,758

0

8,804
44,204
800

0
45,004
294,429

FY 2017
Budget

198,373
0
198,373
1,125

0

1,125
2,801

0
19,324
17,059
39,184
400
600

84
9,000
200
2,500
750
13,534
65,000
800
10,000
75,800
328,016

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

190,543
0
190,543
1,125

0

1,125
2,536
4,017
20,433
33,662
60,648
400
600

84
9,000
200
2,500
750
13,534
65,000
800
10,000
75,800
341,650

190,543
0
190,543
1,125

0

1,125
2,536
4,017
20,433
33,662
60,648
400
600

84
9,000
200
2,500
750
13,534
65,000
800
10,000
75,800
341,650

Variance

7,830

7,830

0

0

0

265
-4,017
-1,109
-16,603
-21,464

OO0 o000 O0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0OO0O

-13,634

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISIONS

REGISTRAR OF VOTERS

MISSION STATEMENT

To seek better ways to provide services to encourage all eligible residents to exercise their right to
vote; conduct elections in a fair, accurate and efficient manner; maintain a continuous professional
level of service to the public; and develop new techniques to improve outreach services which
acknowledge the diversity of the city of Bridgeport.

REGISTRAR OF

VOTERS -l CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET DETAIL

REGISTRAR OF VOTERS

Santa Ayala / Linda Grace

Registrars
REVENUE SUMMARY
Org# Objecti# Object Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 Variance
. Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01050 REGISTRAR OF VOTERS
"a1260 DISKETTE FEES 75 27,240 100 100 100 0
'01050 REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 75 -27,240 100 100 100 0
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
i Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01050 REGISTRAR OF VOTERS
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 500,400 618,782 438,534 521,917 441,917 -3,383
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 36,078 49,787 43,100 43,325 43,325 -225
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 88,586 94,800 85,092 156,074 91,790 -6,698
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 62,674 75,047 84,924 84,924 84,924 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 45,250 48,616 66,515 66,515 66,515 0
REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 732,989 887,032 718,165 872,755 728,471 -10,306
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017  FY18 VAC. NEW UNF. Title Modified Requested Proposed Variance
2 2 0 0 0  REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 154,652 153,898 153,898 754
2 2 0 0 0  DEPUTY REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 116,704 116,136 116,136 568
0 0 0 0 0  CLERICAL ASSISTANT (40 HRS) 0 80,000 0 0
1 1 0 0 0  SECRETARIAL ASSISTANT 47,178 46,883 46,883 295
'01050000 0 0 0 0 0  SEASONAL EMPLOYEES UNDER GR/ 120,000 125,000 125,000 -5,000
REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 5 5 0 0 0 438,534 521,917 441,917 -3,383

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

SERVICE INDICATORS 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
ELECTION STATISTICS

Registered Voters 67,525 71,825 70,322 38,307 61,368 68630
Total Voters 12,316 37,510 8,161 5,884 20,660 39,560
Percentage Turnout 18.24%  5222% 1161% 1536% 3367% 57.64%

MANDATED SERVICES

The Registrar of Voters is responsible for registering voters and conducting Federal, State, Special
and Local elections. The Registrar prepares the published notices of elections and lists of offices for
which candidates are to be nominated. It is the Registrars’ duty to accept and check the nominating
petitions of candidates for office. The Registrar is also required to establish and revise voting
precincts, provide for the tabulation of returns on election night and conduct the official canvass of
votes cast. The Registrar is also responsible for the following:

1)

2)
)

X

Responsible for conducting hand count of machine read ballots after elections if jurisdiction is
subject to audit.

Responsible for completing and filing audit paperwork with the Secretary of State.

Able to hire additional officials on Election Day, the day after the election if the need arises.
Mandated to electronically update voter file with information as to who voted after every
election.

All challenge and provisional ballot supplies which used to be provided by the Town Clerk
must now be provided by the Registrar.

Responsible to determining the amount of ballots that will be ordered for use at each polling
place (Registrar must now pay for the printing of the ballots).

Able to determine if two shifts of election officials will be used at an election without legislative
body approval.

Assume the Town Clerk’s responsibility for providing polling place supplies to moderators on
the day before the election.

Responsible for training poll workers on the proper procedures to follow including the
procedure to accommodate an individual who is at the polls but are unable to enter the
polling place (curb-side voting).

10) Responsible for storage of all voted ballots after the election and up until the 14 day lock-

down period has expired or the audit is complete. After the 14 day lock-down the Registrar
must (1) transmit the absentee ballots for long-term storage and (2) keep all voted ballots
used at the polls for long term storage.

11) Responsible for training Absentee Ballot election officials; and poll workers on the proper

procedures to follow including the procedure to accommodate an individual who is at the polls
but are unable to enter the polling place (curb-side voting).

12) Responsible for providing supplies for a paper ballot election. An Election where no voting

tabulators are used.

13) Responsible for assisting and ensuring that the Head Moderator completes and files the

Head Moderator’'s Return with the Secretary of the State.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
REGISTRAR OF VOTERS

BUDGET DETAIL

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

The office of the Registrar of Voters serves the needs of the voting public in the municipality.
While ensuring that the voting rights of its citizens are protected, the Registrars are bound to
uphold the integrity of the office to the best of their ability.

OCONDORWN =

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Maintenance of the voter files and voter tabulators in preparation for elections.
Continue the tradition of conducting successful elections in the City of Bridgeport.
Foster a positive and well planned physical environment.
Strive to listen to and meet the needs of the voters.
Promoting and supporting professional development.
Foster a positive work environment with shared vision.
Prepare for the upcoming City wide Primary, General and Town Committee Election.
Complete certification of new Moderators and recertify our existing Moderators.
Provide a stable and productive work environment for our Staff.

Org#

Org Description Object#

'01050 REGISTRAR OF VOTERS

v
05

51000
51100
PERSONNEL SERVICES
51106
51108
51140
51156
OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
52360
"s2385
52504
52917
FRINGE BENEFITS
'53050
53605
"53705
53750
"53905
54675
"s5090
"s5155
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
56170
56180
SPECIAL SERVICES

'01050 REGISTRAR OF VOTERS

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY
PTTEMP/SEASONAL EARNED PA

REGULAR STRAIGHT OVERTIME
REGULAR 1.5 OVERTIME PAY
LONGEVITY PAY

UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

PROPERTY RENTAL/LEASE
MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
ADVERTISING SERVICES

TRAVEL EXPENSES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
OFFICE SUPPLIES

ELECTION EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS

OTHER MAINTENANCE & REPAIR S
OTHER SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

289,543
210,858
500,400
797
25,334
2,925
7,023
36,078
6,015
6383
40,634
35,554
88,586
1,428

0

0

0

464
1,070
57,489
2223
62,674
0
45,250
45,250
732,989

FY 2016
Actuals

333,589
285,194
618,782
8,625
29,804
3,825
7,534
49,787
7,510
9,519
39,303
38,469
94,800
693

0

0

331

0

5372
66,168
2,483
75,047
0
48,616
48,616
887,032

FY 2017
Budget

318,534
120,000
438,534
8,800
30,250
4,050

0
43,100
6,243
7347
35,193
36,309
85,092
2,200
550
1,100
578
6,600
6,050
63,800
4,047
84,924
2,428
64,087
66,515
718,165

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

396,917
125,000
521,917
8,800
30,250
4,275

0
43,325
7,098
10,857
48,745
89,374
156,074
2,200
550
1,100
578
6,600
6,050
63,800
4,047
84,924
2,428
64,087
66,515
872,755

316,917
125,000
441,917
8,800
30,250
4,275

0
43,325
6,278
7,347
39,025
39,140
91,790
2,200
550
1,100
578
6,600
6,050
63,800
4,047
84,924
2,428
64,087
66,515
728,471

Variance

1,617
-5,000
-3,383

-225

-225
-35

-3,832
-2,831
-6,698

o

Oocoocoocoo0oo0oo0ooo0o0o0 o0

-10,306

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISIONS

CITY CLERK

MISSION STATEMENT

To provide clerical staff and support to the City Council and their standing and special committees: to
provide accurate records of actions and proceedings of the City Council to all Council members,
municipal departments, and interested citizens under the requirements of the State of Connecticut's
Freedom of Information Act. To act as guardian of the City seal, affixing only to proper and valid
municipal documents and to accept and record all services, summonses and writs against the City.

Under the City Hall Committee division, the staff provides clerical assistance to the City Hall
Committee (a three-member board) consisting of the City Clerk, the City Council President, and the
Director of Finance. This committee is charged by Charter with the upkeep of the City Hall building,
the assignment of office space, the sale of various City owned properties, and the assignment,
questions, and complaints relating to the City Hall parking facilities.

We value: responsiveness to the needs of all customers; neutrality and professionalism; fostering
honest, open communication between the public, Council and staff, personal and professional
commitment to quality customer service; and consistency, fairness, mutual respect and courtesy in
our work environment.

CITY CLERK - -1l CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CITY CLERK BUDGET DETAIL

Lydia Martinez

City Clerk
REVENUE SUMMARY
Not Applicable
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01055 CITY CLERK
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 267,506 313,970 309,274 313,544 313,544 4,270
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 3,900 6,710 3,375 3,600 3,600 -225
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 84,078 90,978 83,938 113,754 113,754 -29,816
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 8,850 18,535 30,352 30,352 30,352 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 22,961 23,568 33,884 35,384 35,384 -1,500
CITY CLERK 387,295 453,761 460,823 496,634 496,634 -35,811
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
1 1 0 0 0  CITY CLERK 37,472 37,289 37,289 183
1 1 0 0 0  ASSISTANT CITY CLERK 84,262 83,851 83,851 a1
1 1 1 0 0  TYPISTI(35HOURS) 35,997 35,770 35,770 27
2 2 0 0 0  TYPISTIII (35 HRS) 103,839 109,163 109,163 -5,324
'01055000 1 1 0 0 0 LEGISLATIVE LIAISON 47,704 47,471 47,471 233
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 6 6 1 0 0 309,274 313,544 313,544 -4,270

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CITY CLERK PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6MONTH ESTIMATED

SERVICE INDICATORS 2011-2012  2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
CITY CLERK
Incoming files processed 271 180 193 177 234 94 210
Finalized/Outgoing files Processed 263 174 179 151 219 72 200
Council/lCommittee Agendas Processed 169 236 206 200 214 98 200
Council/Committee Minutes Processed 175 148 132 170 182 69 150
INTERDEPARTMENTAL SERVICES
Requests for records research fulfilled 984 1,001 1,063 1,153 1,254 731 1,500
Requests for certifications fulfilled 521 631 625 641 621 277 600
CONSTITUENT SERVICES
Records research requests pursuant to FOIA 563 575 544 524 522 180 500
Certified record requests 51 65 47 31 44 9 20
Filings/Postings pursuantto FOIA 1,356 1,387 1,392 1,400 1,102 618 1,200
Claims/Summonses/Writs against the City Processed 605 451 443 493 652 314 600

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1)

2)

Request that the Typist 1 position be funded in order to hire an additional full-time employee.
The prior employee was transferred to another department resulting in the office now being
short staffed. This position is needed in order to perform the day-to-day operations for the
City Council members, its committees and provide customer service to constituents and other
duties as needed.

Continue cross training of staff in all department functions.

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1)

2)

3)

To continue to provide support to the City Council, City Departments and residents by
preparing and distributing materials in a timely, efficient, and streamlined manner, with an
emphasis on electronic access initiatives that increase information availability while reducing
cost where possible.

6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing and continuous.

Begin implementing new internal forms for City Clerk Staff for processing of City Council
Submissions and resolution form for City Council members as well. The prior forms are
outdated with information having to be written or manually typed. The new forms will have
fields already entered and more user friendly for quick input of City Council Submission
items.

6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing and continuous.

Begin discussion with City Clerk on re-opening office to five days a week.
6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing and continuous.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CITY CLERK

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#
01055

v
01

v
05

v
01055

Org Description Object#

CITY CLERK
"s1000
PERSONNEL SERVICES
51140
51156
OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
"52360
"52385
52504
52917
FRINGE BENEFITS
’s3605
"53705
"s3750
"sa675
"sa700
"s4720
"s5055
"s5150
"s5155
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
"56055
"s6085
56175
"s6180
SPECIAL SERVICES
CITY CLERK

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY

LONGEVITY PAY
UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
ADVERTISING SERVICES

TRAVEL EXPENSES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

PUBLICATIONS

PAPER AND PLASTIC SUPPLIES
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS

COMPUTER SERVICES

FOOD SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
OTHER SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

267,506
267,506
3,900

0

3,900
3,830
1,015
32,997
46,237
84,078
320
3,619

0

3444

0

14

0

1452

0

8,850
4,775

0

2,007
16,179
22,961
387,295

FY 2016
Actuals

313,970
313,970
5,175
1,535
6,710
4,540

0
34,819
51,619
90,978
380
8,235

0

4,065

0

17

842
1,838
3,159
18,535
998
340
298
21,932
23,568
453,761

FY 2017
Budget

309,274
309,274
3,375

0

3,375
4,335

0
34,110
45,493
83,938
550
9,500
5,500
5,000
24

18
2,400
2,360
5,000
30,352
6,400
340
3,000
24,144
33,884
460,823

2018
Requested PROPOSED

313,544
313,544
3,600

0

3,600
4228
1,547
34,187
73,792
113,754
550
9,500
5,500
5,000
24

18
2,400
2,360
5,000
30,352
6,400
340
3,000
25,644
35384
496,634

2018

313,544
313,544
3,600

0

3,600
4,228
1,547
34,187
73,792
113,754
550
9,500
5,500
5,000
24

18
2,400
2,360
5,000
30,352
6,400
340
3,000
25,644
35,384
496,634

Variance

-4,270
-4,270
-225

0

-225
107
-1,547
-77
-28,299
-29,816

o000 O0O0OO0O0OO0OO0CO0OO0OO0O

-1,500
-1,500
-35,811

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISIONS

CITY ATTORNEY

MISSION STATEMENT

We provide legal representation in accordance with the City Charter to the City, its officers, City
Council, and its boards and commissions. We Provide prosecution and defense services for all civil
actions brought in any state or federal court or before any administrative board or agency.

CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

CITY
ATTORNEY

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET DETAIL

CITY ATTORNEY

R. Christopher Meyer

Manager
REVENUE SUMMARY
Org# Object# Object Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 Fy 2018 Variance
. Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01060 'CITY ATTORNEY
, 41543 FORECLOSURE COST RECOVERY 100 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
01060 CITY ATTORNEY 100 0 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01060 CITY ATTORNEY
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,865,527 1,876,892 2,311,603 2,355,730 2,355,730 44,128
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 50,084 57,990 13,500 13,875 13,875 -375
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 588,415 509,093 696,174 614,496 614,496 81,678
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 1,300,737 1,384,789 1,768,362 1,816,694 1,806,694 -38,332
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 774,904 696,499 708,300 1,108,300 1,008,300 -300,000
CITY ATTORNEY 4,579,666 4,525,263 5,497,938 5,909,095 5,799,095 -301,157
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017 FY18 VAC. NEW  UNF. Title Modified Ri d Proposed Variance
1 1 0 0 0  CITY ATTORNEY 127,213 126,592 126,592 621
1 0 0 0  DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY 100,981 100,487 100,487 494
2 2 3 0 0  ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY (P/T) 227,172 233,576 233,576 -6,404
2 2 0 0 0  LEGALSECRETARY (35 HOURS) 104,220 105,715 105,715 -1,495
1 1 0 0 0  LEGALASSISTANT TO CITY ATTNY 65,000 66,650 66,650 -1,650
2 2 0 0 0  COLLECTION AIDE (35 HRS) 84,030 82,400 82,400 1,630
3 3 0 0 0  PARALEGAL 159,152 167,385 167,385 -8,233
9 9 0 0 0  ASSOCIATE CITY ATTORNEY 1,213,578 1,201,790 1,201,790 11,788
'01060000 1 1 0 0 0 CLERICAL ASSISTANT (40 HRS) 41,134 41,134 41,134 0
CITY ATTORNEY 2 2 1 0 0 2,122,480 2,125,730 2,125,730 -3,250

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CITY ATTORNEY PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTH

SERVICE INDICATORS 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017
CITY ATTORNEY

Defense Claims/Litigation (Opened) 302 300 327 321 226 135
Claims/Suits Settlement/Judgment (PAID) N/A 75 125 92 45 40

Amount Paid $643,683 $2,551,302 $905,623 $1,249,783 1,302,841 $1,057,883.24
OCA Collections -GEN 40 30 23 14 27 31

8.76 Anti-blight -Collection 70 N/A NA N/A NA N/A

8.60 Unlawful Dumping - Collection N/A N/A NA N/A NA N/A

FOI Requests/Complaints 136 162 170 136 185 179

Business Dewelopment (inc/  Contract|400 425 428 347 216 63 (LRT) 67
Draft/Review) (RJP) +9
Ordinance Draft/Review 65 60 65 58 47 19

Public Meetings Attended 500 525 560 540 n/a N/A

Tax Appeals 1000* 1000*

Tax Warrants 500* 700*

WPCA COLLECTION

Legal Demand (2/3 of TOT) 2,646 2,846 2,895 3,076 3,037 2,904 2,921

Amount Collected $2,365,234 $2,752,634 $2,591,538 $2,666,436 $3,692,606 $4,073,347 $2,339,601
Civil Suits 629 576 461 606 561 1,222 867

Amount Collected $1,494,863 $1,295,357 $971,313 $1,126,112 $1,173,246 $824,261 $321,817
Foreclosures (Outside Legal Service Employed) |460 447 485 387 435 390 341

Amount Collected $1,699,324 $1,717,006 $1,607,486 $1,208,877 $1,639,565 $1,775,549 $784,263
Bank /Wage Executions 1 0 1 0 0 0 1

Amount Collected 1,540 0 300 0 0 0 250
Receivership 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Amount Collected 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

** Estimates only until Abacus system calculates.

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7

8)

9)

Accelerate collection rate to maximize arrears real property tax receipts through expanded
execution of tax warrants and transition to use of outside collection services.

Continue to dispose (via strict foreclosure) of newly acquired city inventory of vacant and
unwanted municipally owned real property through auction sales.

Reduce reliance on outside legal counsel by supplementing in-house personnel resources as
a means of reducing overall net City operating costs.

Provide Legal representation to the City of Bridgeport, its officers, employees, the City
Council and its committees, and all Board and Departments.

Continue to oversee and coordinate implementation of New FOIA Software, GOVQA.

Expand legal support to the Administration and the City’s lobbyists with respect to managing
priority City legislative initiatives.

Support major infrastructure projects that the office is partnering on with other departments
(i.e. Airports Capitol Improvements, WPCA regionalization, and Schools Building Committee
constructions).

In conjunction with the CAO and Purchasing Department, monitor amended ordinances and
propose further amendments as necessary to the City Council regarding the City’s current
Purchasing Ordinance.

Continue to reduce number and dollar amounts of payouts for claims and lawsuits filed
against the City, its officers and employees.

10) Encourage/foster professional training to improve personnel performance.
11) Promote case review procedures which require a review within 90 days of receipt of a new

file or based on the exposure of liability. When exposure is identified, complete a case review
and implement appropriate defense handling thereafter. This will significantly cut down on
backlogged cases in this department.

12) Promote team goals and team litigation and to maximize delivery of legal services.

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS (some new goals added below to departmental changes)

1)

Provide Legal representation to the City of Bridgeport, its officers, employees, the City
Council and its committees, and all Board and Departments:

6 MONTH STATUS: As always, we work to provide legal council to all interested agencies,
boards, commissions and committees whose conduct impacts the City of Bridgeport from a
legal standpoint.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CITY ATTORNEY PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

2)

6)

7)

Supplement in-house personnel resources to further reduce reliance on outside legal
counsel.
6 MONTH STATUS: Partially completed.

Promote team goals and team litigation and to maximize delivery of legal services.
6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing

Maintain improved collection rate for arrears real property taxes through expanded execution
of tax warrants.
6 MONTH STATUS: We are continuing to exceed our collection goals.

Continue to dispose (via strict foreclosure) of newly acquired city inventory of vacant and
unwanted municipally owned real property through auction sales.
6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing.

Together with the City Council's Special Rules Committee, draft and obtain adoption of
revised Rules of the City Council to facilitate efficient Council proceedings.
6 MONTH STATUS: Awaiting direction and time table from City Council leadership.

Reduce reliance on outside legal counsel by supplementing in-house personnel resources as
a means of reducing overall net City operating costs.
6 MONTH STATUS: Partially completed.

Continue to refine City’'s Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) legal review procedures to
ensure timely responsiveness to requests for access to public information.

6 MONTH STATUS: The Office has improved its FOIA response procedures by purchasing
city-wide FOI software and creating a point person in each department to help facilitate
compliance.

In conjunction with the Administration and Finance Department, analyze the viability of
procurement of excess liability insurance coverage.
6 MONTH STATUS: Continue to explore this option upon request of Finance Director.

10) Expand legal support to the Administration and the City’s lobbyists with respect to managing

priority City legislative initiatives.
6 MONTH STATUS: On Target.

11) Support major infrastructure projects that the office is partnering on with other departments

(i.e. Airports, WPCA regionalization, and Schools Building Committee).
6 MONTH STATUS: With support from City Council and Airport management, Airport
completed its runway relocation, WPCA regionalization remains ongoing; School Building
Committee’s construction receiving enhanced support from legal staff.

12) Promote case review procedures which require a review with 90 days of receipt of a new file

or based on the exposure of liability. When exposure is identified, complete a case review
and implement appropriate defense handling thereafter. This will significantly cut down
on backlogged cases in this department.

6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing

13) In conjunction with the CAO and Purchasing Department, proposed amendments to the City

Council regarding the City’s current Purchasing Ordinance.
6 MONTH STATUS: Completed, monitoring functionality.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
CITY ATTORNEY PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

14) Prioritize proper and timely reporting in accordance with State and Federal reporting
requirements.
6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing

15) Continue to reduce number and dollar amounts of payouts for claims and lawsuits filed
against the City, its officers and employees.
6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing effort, communication and coordination with departments.

16) Reorganize staff attorney work groups (litigation, business/development, administrative law
support, and legal opinion/advice) to maximize delivery of legal services.
6 MONTH STATUS: Major progress achieved.

17) Encourage/foster professional training to improve personnel performance.
6 MONTH STATUS: In process of installing a theatre useful for on-site training and video
deposition capacity.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CITY ATTORNEY

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#  Org Description Object# Object Description

'01060 CITY ATTORNEY
’51000 FULL TIME EARNED PAY
"51099 CONTRACTED SALARIES
01  PERSONNEL SERVICES
"51106 REGULAR STRAIGHT OVERTIME
"51108 REGULAR 1.5 OVERTIME PAY
"51140 LONGEVITY PAY
'51156 UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
"52360 MEDICARE
'52385 SOCIAL SECURITY
'52504 MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
'52917 HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE
03 FRINGE BENEFITS
'53005 PERSONAL PROPERTY CLAIMS AWARD
'53010 PERSONAL PROPERTY CLAIMS ATTY
'53605 MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
'53610  TRAINING SERVICES
'53705 ADVERTISING SERVICES
'53905 EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
'54675 OFFICE SUPPLIES
'54700 PUBLICATIONS
'54705 SUBSCRIPTIONS
'55155  OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
'56095 APPRAISAL SERVICES
"S6130 LEGAL SERVICES
'56131 LIMGATION SERVICES
'56175 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
'56180 OTHER SERVICES
05 SPECIAL SERVICES
'01060 CITY ATTORNEY

FY 2015
Actuals

1,707,027
158,500
1,865,527
1,712
6,575
12,450
29,347
50,084
22,142
451
222,690
343,131
588,415
83,114
1,149,237
7,552

0

477
3,860
13,881
3,133
26,855
12,628
1,300,737
0
614,941
149,737
9,617
609
774,904
4,579,666

FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Budget Requested PROPOSED

1,699,816 2,122,480 2,125,730 2,125,730 -3,250
177,076 189,123 230,000 230,000 -40,878
1,876,892 2,311,603 2,355,730 2,355,730 -44,128
3,141 0 0 0 0
10,827 0 0 0 0
14,306 13,500 13,875 13,875 -375
29,715 0 0 0 0
57,990 13,500 13,875 13,875 -375
22,323 27,912 27,634 27,634 278
2,960 28,074 10,055 10,055 18,019
182,250 239,232 259,963 259,963 -20,731
301,560 400,956 316,844 316,844 84,112
509,093 696,174 614,496 614,496 81,678
143,601 150,000 150,000 150,000 0
1,168,841 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,550,000 0
2,277 6,800 6,800 6,800 0
720 199 1,000 1,000 -801
0 0 0 0 0
2,670 7,356 30,000 20,000 -12,644
17,747 17,500 17,500 17,500 0
4,547 1,214 2,894 2,894 -1,680
31,199 22,105 40,000 40,000 -17,895
13,188 13,188 18,500 18,500 -5,312
1,384,789 1,768,362 1,816,694 1,806,694 -38,332
0 500 500 500 0
522,290 500,000 900,000 800,000 -300,000
164,064 199,000 199,000 199,000 0
8,949 7,500 7,500 7,500 0
1,197 1,300 1300 1,300 0
696,499 708,300 1,108,300 1,008,300 -300,000
4,525,263 5,497,938 5,909,095 5,799,095 -301,157

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISIONS

ARCHIVES & RECORDS

MISSION STATEMENT

This department directs the orderly and systematic maintenance, preservation, and disposition of the
records of the City of Bridgeport in compliance with State and Federal laws. To do so it operates a
records center for the storage of non-current records, and an archive for the City’'s permanent and
historical documents. The program encourages the efficient and economical organization and
retrieval of information. The Records Manager/Archivist assists other departments in solving records
and filing problems, arranges for the destruction of obsolete materials, microfilms permanent records,
and answers a variety of questions from the public about the City’s past and present operations.

MAYOR — — —| CITY COUNCIL

ASSISTANT
CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

ARCHIVES

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
ARCHIVES & RECORDS BUDGET DETAIL

Patricia P. Ulatowski

Manager
REVENUE SUMMARY
Not Applicable
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
'01065 ARCHIVES
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 55,894 68,814 0 492 0 0
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 20,282 21,929 19,591 67 0 19,591
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 4,937 2,707 5,800 5,800 5,800 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 8,231 6,085 8,780 8,780 8,780 0
ARCHIVES 89,344 99,535 34,171 15,139 14,580 19,591
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
Not Applicable

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

ARCHIVES PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6MONTH ESTIMATED
SERVICE INDICATORS 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
ARCHIVES AND RECORDS CENTER
Full box 130 51 60 60 110 44 100
Original 290 415 500 500 525 335 525
Folder 80 225 300 280 300 175 300
Microcopy 30 35 48 32 140 100 250
Photocopy 325 725 700 610 800 450 800
Other Expenses 200 200 200 200 200 200 200
Total Requests 1,055 1,651 1,808 1,682 2,075 1,304 2,175
BOXES
Received 2,030 4,025 1,495 2,150 2,025 1,012 2,025
Destroyed N/A 2,609 1,600 3,000 50 0 50
Total Boxes as of end of period 15,439 16,855 16,750 15,900 16,911 17,923 18,923
Total internal requests 1,200 1,310 1,090 1,085 1,500 790 1,500
Total requests by the public 1 7 2 15 2 0 2

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1)

A WwWN
—_ T —

Continue the update of records center database to reflect current boxes and current locations
of all city records stored at the center.

Continue to purge records as retention period is legally satisfied.

Develop written Succession Plan for center’s continuity.

Commence training of staff person on software program.

Continue serving in dual role as City Records Manager and Assistant Registrar of Vital
Records saving the City a considerable amount in salary and benefits.

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1)

Complete update of records center database to reflect current boxes and current locations of
all city records stored at the center.
6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing

Continue to purge records as retention period is legally satisfied.

6 MONTH STATUS: Inventory of Records Center has been completed. Data of record
locations and purge of box numbers information into the Record Center database is 25%
complete

Work with Information Technology Director and City Attorney to develop a formal Electronic
City Records Policy which will identify what is a record and who should be its custodian and
for how long and in what format it should be retained. The group will work in concert with the
Public Records Administrator in Hartford.

6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing

Guide departments with proper record preparation for archiving and transfer of documents to
the center.
6 MONTH STATUS: Ongoing

FY 2016-2017 ADDITIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

1)

Review, organization and preparation of records stored at the Social Services Office for
preparation to seek legal permission to destroy and purge.
6 MONTH STATUS: The process has been completed.
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

ARCHIVES & RECORDS

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#  Org Description Object#

'01065 ARCHIVES
51000
01  PERSONNEL SERVICES
52360
52504
52917
03 FRINGE BENEFITS
53710
"sa660
54675
55150
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
56055
56175
56210
05 SPECIAL SERVICES
'01065 ARCHIVES

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY

MEDICARE
MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

OTHER COMMUNICATION SERVICES
LIBRARY SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT

COMPUTER SERVICES
OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
RECYCLING SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

55,894
55,894
754
7,235
12,294
20,282
1,228
440
1,469
1,800
4,937
1,800
2,500
3,931
8,231
89,344

FY 2016
Actuals

68,814
68,814
935
7,507
13,486
21,929
1,228
0
1,480
0
2,707
1,500
595
3,990
6,085
99,535

FY 2017
Budget

0
0

656
5,404
13,531
19,591
2,000
500
1,500
1,800
5,800
1,800
2,500
4,480
8,780
34,171

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

492
492

7

60

0

67
2,000
500
1,500
1,800
5,800
1,800
2,500
4,480
8,780
15,139

oOoo0oo0oo0ooo

2,000
500
1,500
1,800
5,800
1,800
2,500
4,480
8,780
14,580

Variance
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISIONS

CIVIL SERVICE

MISSION STATEMENT

To serve as the central personnel office for the City of Bridgeport as prescribed by the City Charter.

CIVIL SERVICE

COMMISSION CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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CIVIL SERVICE

FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET DETAILS

David Dunn
Manager
REVENUE SUMMARY
Org# Object# Object Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2018 Variance
, Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01070 'CNIL SERVICE
41538 COPIES 144 0 200 200 200 0
'41517 RESIDENTAPPLICATION/ADMINISTRA 0 3,675 0 0 0 0
'61543 NON-RESIDENTAPPLICATION/ADMINI 63,194 57,224 5,000 5,000 1,000 -4,000
'01070 CIVIL SERVICE 63,338 60,899 5,200 5,200 1,200 -4,000
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
- Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01070 CIVIL SERVICE
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 444 865 489,812 448,885 439,080 439,080 9,805
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 49,077 27,016 67,275 67,350 67,350 -75
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 114,209 113,245 80,482 110,485 110,485 -30,003
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 57,320 31,017 68,968 70,468 68,968 0
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 159,836 298,815 304,587 426,587 306,587 -2,000
CIVIL SERVICE 825,307 959,905 970,197 1,113,970 992,470 -22,273
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017  FY18 VAC. NEW UNF. Title Modified Requested Proposed Variance
1 1 0 0 0  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 84,262 83,851 83,851 411
1 1 0 0 0  RETIREMENT ADMINISTRATOR 73,391 54,689 54,689 18,702
1 1 0 0 0  CLERICALASSISTANT 39,192 38,948 38,948 245
0 0 0 0 -1 PERSONNEL ASSISTANT | 63,645 0 0 63,645
1 1 0 0 0  PERSONNEL ASSISTANTII 78,752 78,261 78,261 491
1 1 1 1 0 PERSONNEL TRAINEE 0 49,410 49,410 -49,410
'01070000 1 1 0 0 0  PERSONNEL DIRECTOR 109,643 133,921 133,921 -24,278
CIVILSERVICE 6 6 1 1 -1 448,885 439,080 439,080 9,805
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CIVIL SERVICE PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTH ESTIMATED

SERVICE INDICATORS 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
CIVIL SERVICE

Purged Files Destroyed 32,000 6,000 800 780 390 780
Retirement Processing MERS and Plan A 220 443 924 1902 950 1050
Deferred Comp Processing 196 100 125
Library Hiring 21 11 15 27 12 24
Candidates tested for positions 1,182 353 1,069 975 480 800
Positions & Classifications Admimistered

Clerical, Admin, Supenisory & Technical Applications 1,900 2,560 1,815 2,120 1,000 1700
Seasonal, Crossing Guard & Custodial Applications 4,160 3,610 930 3,730 1,865 3550
Total Applications Processed/Administered 6,060 6,170 2,745 5,850 2,865 5250

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1)

Process a new Police entry level examination in compliance with the City of Bridgeport
Charter and Civil Service Rules and Regulations and Police Officer Standards and Training
(POST) requirements.

Conduct Police department promotional examinations for Sergeant and Lieutenant.
Conduct Fire department promotional exams for Captain, Assistant Chief, Fire Marshal, and
Senior Fire Marshal.

Assist with Administration efforts to expand “2™ Chance” hiring initiatives throughout the City
where appropriate.

Continue to cooperate with Labor Relations, BOE and Public Facilities to restructure the
custodial classifications.

Continue the successful restructuring of competitive and non-competitive positions.
Continue the successful use of traditional and non-traditional testing services to comply with
Administration diversity and demographic goals.

Continue Civil Service efforts to expand the use and availability of the online application
“applicant tracking” feature of MUNIS to eliminate the walk-in traffic and paper applications.
Acquire a department friendly database software to maintain accurate accounting for
demographics and positions and funding.

10) Continue and expand the use of social media such as Twitter, Facebook, Instagram etc. to

post testing and hiring opportunities.

11) Pursue opportunities to reorganize Civil Service/Human Resources to enhance

departmental and servicing efficiencies and to save money.

12) Continue department efforts to expand our technology usage including Civil Service

Commission document review.

13) Continue to streamline and restructure the pension administration, retirement processing,

including Plan A (Police and Fire), Municipal Employee Retirement System (MERS) and the
employee 457 savings deferred compensation plans.

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1)

Conduct a 2015-2016 entry level firefighter examination in compliance with Bridgeport City
Charter, Civil Service Rules and Regulations, and State of Connecticut Fire Academy CPAT
(Candidate Physical Ability Test).

6 MONTH STATUS:

Class #1: 28 candidates graduated the Training Academy and is in Field Training

Class #2: 24 candidates are in the Training Academy

Class #3: 28 expected in process to start Training Academy March 27, 2017

Class #4: queuing up for an October 2017 Training Academy which will exhaust the hiring list

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CIVIL SERVICE PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

2)

4)

o)

8)

Conduct Police department promotional exams for Lieutenant, Captain, and Deputy Chief.
6 MONTH STATUS: Completed Captain exam. Awaiting department requests for Lieutenant
and Deputy Chief

Conduct Fire department promotional exams for Lieutenant, Assistant Chief, Deputy Chief
Executive Officer, and Maintenance Mechanic.

6 MONTH STATUS:

Class #1: 24 graduated the State of CT Fire Academy

Class #2 10 new recruits sent to the State of CT Fire Academy on February 14, 2017

Conduct examinations for the Emergency Operations Center for Telecommunicators and
Supervisors.

6 MONTH STATUS: Pumper Engineer completed; 1%'3 promotions effective January 3, 2017
Lieutenant completed; 60 candidates tested; awaiting final scoring from exam company

Conduct Custodian | entry level exam and Custodian IV promotional exam.
6 MONTH STATUS: Union issues; exam scheduled to be held by June 1, 2017

Continue successful expansion of the non-competitive division through the systemic
elimination and restructuring of the competitive division for civilian jobs.
6 MONTH STATUS: No new positions added

Continue Civil Service green efforts to expand the use and availability of the online
application “applicant tracking” feature of MUNIS to eliminate the walk-in traffic and paper
applications.

6 MONTH STATUS: Awaiting budget office and Information Technology Services approval

Continue and expand the use of social media such as Twitter, Facebook, Instagram etc. to
post testing and hiring opportunities.

6 MONTH STATUS: Successfully posting department information and city vacancies on
Twitter, Facebook and Instagram

Pursue opportunities to reorganize Civil Service/Human Resources to enhance departmental
and servicing efficiencies and to save money.

6 MONTH STATUS:

Discussions on-going

FY 2016-2017 ADDITIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

1.
2.

3.

Continued integration of Police and Fire Pension Plan A members into retirement processing.
Organization of department documents and archiving and destruction to keep work
environment clean and safe. Use of more digital filing.

Continued improvement in the hiring of seasonal employees; processed large numbers
smoothly and efficiently.

Expanded use and formalization of pre-employment background process by retaining a
security vendor.

Updated and streamlined the test day registration process from 3 hours to 1 hour with use of
technology for both written and oral processes.

No legal challenge to exam content on any Police and Fire promotional exams including Fire
Pumper Engineer, Fire Lieutenant, and Police Captain.

Continued to reduce the timing backlogs from promotional exam requirement to exam
completion.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

CIVIL SERVICE PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

8.

10.

1.

12.

Exam customer feedback currently running A+; general public either in person or via
telephone has been very positive and appreciative of extended information and assistance.
Department has offered orientation sessions prior to exams to ease candidate anxiousness
and provide opportunities to ask questions and get answers.

Administered and managed an "Early Retirement Incentive" program in June 2016 and retired
a total of 50 employees.

Administered and managed the conversion of Police and Fire Plan A pensions to direct
deposit.

Provided MERS with the pension contribution breakdown report for all Fire and Police
employees transferred into MERS.

Converted retirement office to become the main point of contact for all City of Bridgeport
employees’ retirement inquiries.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#

Org Description Object#

'01070 CIVIL SERVICE

v

01

v
05

51000
PERSONNEL SERVICES
51102
51106
51108
51140
51146
51156
OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
52360
"52385
52504
52917
FRINGE BENEFITS
53050
53605
53705
53905
"sa640
54675
54700
"sa725
55155
OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
56085
56110
56155
56165
56175
56180
SPECIAL SERVICES

01070 CIVIL SERVICE

Object Description

FULL TIME EARNED PAY

ACTING PAY

REGULAR STRAIGHT OVERTIME
REGULAR 1.5 OVERTIME PAY
LONGEVITY PAY

PROCTOR PAY

UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

PROPERTY RENTAL/LEASE
MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
ADVERTISING SERVICES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
HARDWARE/TOOLS

OFFICE SUPPLIES

PUBLICATIONS

POSTAGE

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS

FOOD SERVICES

FINANCIAL SERVICES

MEDICAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
OTHER SERVICES

FY 2015
Actuals

444,865
444,865
0

0

0

1,950
43394
3,733
49,077
6,541
56
57,836
49,776
114,209
23,446
120
24,916
a7

762
2,630

0

0

5,400
57,320
4,188

0
60,713
90,490
1,459
2,986
159,836
825,307

FY 2016
Actuals

489,812
489,812
566

0

0

2,025
24,425
0
27,016
7,040

6
53,722
52,478
113,245
10,059
0
13,168
0

380
2,820
14

0

4575
31,017
5,131

0
119,058
166,206
1,995
6,425
298,815
959,905

FY 2017
Budget

448,885
448,885
0

6,000
5,000
1,275
55,000
0
67,275
3,879
1,352
30,678
44,573
80,482
18,641
350
40,000
461
1,000
3,000
100

16
5,400
68,968
10,000
87
135,000
150,000
2,000
7,500
304,587
970,197

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

439,080
439,080
0

6,000
5,000
1,350
55,000
0
67,350
6,141
2,392
53,512
48,440
110,485
18,641
350
40,000
461
1,000
4,500
100

16
5,400
70,468
10,000
87
200,000
195,000
4,000
17,500
426,587
1,113,970

439,080
439,080
0

6,000
5,000
1,350
55,000
0
67,350
6,141
2,392
53,512
48,440
110,485
18,641
350
40,000
461
1,000
3,000
100

16
5,400
68,968
10,000
87
135,000
150,000
4,000
7,500
306,587
992,470

Variance

OO0 o0OO0OO0OO0CO0ODO0OO0OCOODO0OOO

-2,000

-2,000
-22,273
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISIONS

GRANTS PERSONNEL /
BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION

MISSION STATEMENT

The Benefit Administration Office administers the group benefits and workers’ compensation
programs for the City and manages the benefits and workers’ compensation expenditures for both the
City and the Board of Education. The mission of the Benefits Office is to assure accurate, timely and
efficient administration of employee benefit programs at fair cost to both the City’s taxpayers, and its
active and retired employees and their eligible dependents and to manage the distribution of financial
resources and the delivery of these benefits with frugality, skill and professional judgment.

CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

LABOR
RELATIONS

GRANTS
PERSONNEL/
BENEFITS
ADMINISTRATION

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

GRANTS PERSONNEL/BENEFITS

BUDGET DETAIL

Richard Weiner

Manager
REVENUE SUMMARY
Not applicable.
APPROPRIATION SUMMARY
Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01075 HEALTH BENEFIT ADMINISTRATION
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 838,866 686,713 667,579 652,087 652,087 15,492
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 29,883 19,651 10,275 9,375 9,375 900
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 12,899,737 11,540,105 12,651,299 12,710,084 16,071,417  -3,420,118
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 6,069 6,417 8,950 15,450 15,450 -6,500
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 19,035 27,376 69,750 79,750 74,750 -5,000
HEALTH BENEFIT ADMINISTRATION 13,793,590 12,280,262 13,407,853 13,466,746 16,823,079  -3,415,226
01080 EMPLOYEE & ORGNZTNL DVLPMNT
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 12,290 611 30,000 60,000 50,000 -20,000
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 1,288 943 3,500 3,500 3,500 0
EMPLOYEE & ORGNZTNL DVLPMNT 13,578 1,554 33,500 63,500 53,500 -20,000
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017  FY18 VAC. NEW UNF. Title Modified Requested Proposed Variance
1 1 0 0 0  BENEFITS MANAGER 101,770 101,274 101,274 496
2 2 0 0 0  PAYROLLCLERK Il 155,222 139,038 139,038 16,184
1 1 0 0 0  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 45,926 45,926 45,926 0
3 3 0 0 0 CLERKA 80,212 81,399 81,399 -1,187
1 1 1 "o 0  BENEFITS COORDINATOR 60,966 60,967 60,967 -1
1 1 0 0 0  HUMAN RESOURCES GENERALIST (: 73,687 73,687 73,687 0
. 1 1 0 0 0  EMPLOYEE SERVICES COORDINATO 73,430 73,430 73,430 0
01075000 1 1 0 0 0 SENIOR PAYROLL ADMINISTRATOR 76,366 76,366 76,366 0
HUMAN RESOURCES/BENEFITS ADMIN. 11 11 1 0 0 667,579 652,087 652,087 15,492

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

GRANTS PERSONNEL/BENEFITS PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTH ESTIMATED

SERVICE INDICATORS 2011-2012 2012-2013  2013-2014  2014-2015  2015-2016 2016-2017  2016-2017

BENEATS OFACE

Number of plans managed 14 14 14 14 14 14 14

Annual Expenditure City and BOE, Active & Retired, Group & WC  $108,731,099  $107,723,400 $117,496,812 $111,907,038 $114,167,121 $59,053,933 $120,549,800
Annual Expenditure City and BOE, Active & Retired, Group Only $95,593,091 $96,290,446 $106,632,399 $100,473 447 $104 277526 $54,163,642 $110,875,500

Annual Expenditure City and BOE, Active & Retired, WC Only $13,138,008 $11432,954 $10,829,401 $11433,591 $9,889,595 $4,890292 $9,674,300
Annual group benefit expenses for City & BOE Employees Only ~ $58,358,120  $57982,605 $64,211,931 $60968,548 $64,995924 $34,954267 $72,191,200
Cityand BOE Employees under administration (excludes buy-out 4,208 3,783 3783 3,809 $3,523 3,469 3,469
Annual benefit cost per active employee $13,868 $15,327 $16,974 $16,006 $18,449" $20,152 $20810
Annual group benefit expenses for Non-Medicare retired employe $10,874,837 39,125,914 $42 470,468 $39,504,898 $39,339,558 $19274,888 $38,815500
Annual benefit cost per Medicare-eligible retired employee $4,390 $4,963 $3,942 $5,182 $5,360 $5,694 $5691
Annual benefit cost per non-Medicare retired employee $22 607 $22,061 $23,974 $23,255 $22,896 $21,142 $21,390
Medicare-Eligible Retirees 2477 2,594 2639 2,656 2654 2675 2675
Non-Medicare Eligible Retirees 1,261 1,190 1148 1,107 1,097 1,103 1,103
Retirees Receiving Medicare-B reimbursements 796 814 825 880 844 862 882
Retiree Drug Subsidy Payments Received $1,183,000 $305,352 $300,000 $190,789 $198,735 $99,164 $306,200
Employer Group Waiver Plan Subsidy $389,574 $1945512  $2,000,000 $2,083,486 $2,611812  $17327,289  $2,600,000
Worker's Compensation Open Claims: start of year 578 537 526 530 343 317 325
Worker's Compensation Open Claims: end of year 534 526 530 343 317 327 300
WC Indemnityclaims active at start of year 365 337 298 300 245 227 225
WC Indemnityclaims filed (new) 133 71 100 114 109 71 100
WC Indemnityclaims active at year end 332 298 300 245 227 227 200
WC Medical claims active at start of year 213 200 228 250 98 90 100
WC Medical claims filed (new) 454 528 500 561 424 214 400
WC Medical claims active at year end 200 228 250 98 90 100 100
WC Indemnitypayments $2,899,788 $3432,993 $2944,164 $3,114837 $2,819473  $1361,437 $2,638400
WC Medical payments $5,915,880 $4,496,045 $4,046,086 $3,640668 $3,694946  $1,846,006 $3,714600
H & H Medical claims active at start of year 55 51 47 47 33 32 35
H&H Medical claims filed (new) 0 0 0 1 2 1 2
H&H Medical claims active at year end 51 47 47 33 32 37 30
H&H Indemnity claims active at start of year 248 234 227 250 224 212 225
H&H Indemnity claims filed (new) 1 7 5 5 1 2 3
H&H Indemnity claims active at year end 234 227 250 224 212 209 210
Heart & Hypertension Payments $3,385,931 $2685843 $2909,087 $3580,998 $2,589392  $1,185995  $2,500,000

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1)

2)

Conduct RFP on Medical Plan: Hire a consultant to coordinate medical plan RFP, draft RFP
language for medical plan, including a selection panel, publish RFP, review credentials of
bidders and award a contract commencing 7/1/18.

Implement a consumer driven health plan for each of the City's unions: Serve on the City
team to implement a high deductible health plan with a health savings account; coordinate
carrier transition and education of employees. This objective is contingent on the City
successfully negotiating these programs with its unions.

Conduct RFP for Long Term/Short Term Disability Insurance: The existing carrier has been
in place for a number of years.

Complete transition to a self-insured administration of City/BOE Medicare: With the
appointment of a self-insured third party administrator effective 3/1/17, claims monitoring
measures need to be implemented to assure an efficiently run program during FY-18.
Determine feasibility of an efficient administration of Medicare-B reimbursement for eligible
retirees on MERS and Pension Plans B: The number of retirees eligible for this benefit who
are presently reimbursed through the AP system has made this approach too labor intensive.
Investigate the feasibility of purchasing stop-loss insurance for our workers’ compensation
program.

FY 2016-2017 GOAL STATUS

1)

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Compliance: Undertake initiatives to expedite reporting
requirements and evolving regulations under the Act. ACA reporting for 1095-C forms is a
labor-intensive project requiring substantial manual intervention. Excise Tax: The effective
date of the tax was postponed from 2018 to 2020 however this merely postpones the

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
GRANTS PERSONNEL/BENEFITS PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

development of strategies to deal with the huge cost of the tax if it is not repealed or modified.
We will need to begin planning for the onset of this tax.

6 MONTH STATUS: Payroll has effectively prepared the 1095-C forms update for CY-16.
Having a year of experience under our belt as well as getting an early start on this project
enabled the process to be completed on a timely basis. With the status of the ACA unsettled,
we will have to keep abreast of what may happen to the excise tax.

2) Data acquisition for actuarial report on “Post Employment Benefits Other than Pensions:”
This is a biennial project that is labor intensive and time consuming. We will investigate
initiatives that will speed the acquisition of this data.

6 MONTH STATUS: Completion of the FY-16 update was postponed to allow the City to
update the OPEB report with the inclusion of additional EGWP prescription coverage.

3) RFPs: The following RFPs are scheduled for the coming fiscal year: vision benefits, short
term/long term disability benefits, dental benefits and possibly medical benefits.
6 MONTH STATUS: Vision benefit RFP was published and awarded. Medical benefit RFP
will be conducted during FY-18. Favorable renewal on dental benefits eliminated a need for
an RFP at this time. Disability benefit renewal for FY-17 was frozen at current rates allowing
the postponement of an RFP for consideration in FY-18.

4) Medicare medical benefits: We will investigate the feasibility of moving our Medicare retirees
to a self-insured format beginning in January, 2017.
6 MONTH STATUS: RFP to self-insure Medicare medical was conducted and a contract was
awarded to commence on 3/1/17. Savings from the change are estimated at $450,000.

5) Medicare prescription benefits: We will evaluate the success of the recent additions to the
federally subsidized Employer Group Waiver Plan (EGWP) as well as consider feasibility of
adding new retiree groups to the program.

6 MONTH STATUS: New EGWP groups were added for Police and Fire groups and BOE
groups in January-2016. This effort significantly expanded the number of retirees in the
EGWP and significantly increased the subsidies by approximately 30% from the federal
government.

FY 2016-2017 ADDITIONAL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

1) Planning for a Consumer-Driven Health Plan: Work was done on a plan design and a various
financial analyses were prepared. Employee meetings were held in an effort to assess
employee interest in a high deductible health plan.Work will continue on this project in FY-18.

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
GRANTS PERSONNEL/BENEFITS

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org#  Org Description

Object#

Object Description

'01075 HEALTH BENEFIT ADMINISTRATION

51000
51034
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES
51106
"s1108
51140
51156
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
"s2008
52024
52129
52166
"s2258
52260
52262
52270
52286
52360
"s2385
52436
"s2504
52704
"52890
"s2891
52892
"52899
52916
52917
03 FRINGE BENEFITS
"s3605
"s3705
"s3905
"sas595
"sa675
"s5155
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
"56090
56115
"s6165
"s6175
05 SPECIAL SERVICES

FULL TIME EARNED PAY
FTBONUS - CONTRACTUAL PAY

REGULAR STRAIGHT OVERTIME
REGULAR 1.5 OVERTIME PAY
LONGEVITY PAY

UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU

DENTAL HMO - COBRA/RETIREE
DENTAL PPO - COBRA/RETIREE
VISION CLMS-CITY RETIREES

CLMS DNTL- CITY RETIREES

STATE OF CT ANNUAL ASMT FEE
CT 2ND INJURY FUND ASSESSM
WORKERS' COMP ADM FEE
WORKERS' COMP INDM - GEN G
WORKERS' COMP MED - GEN GO
MEDICARE

SOCIAL SECURITY

RX CLAIMS - CITY RET & COBRA
MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
HEALTH ASO FEES: CITY RETIREES
CLAIMS DR/HSPTLS-CITY RETIREES
MEDICAL MEDICARE RETIREES F/P
MEDICAL MEDICARE CSG

ASO FEES:MEDICAL MEDICARE CSG
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE

MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
ADVERTISING SERVICES

EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
MEETING/WORKSHOP/CATERING FOOD
OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT RENTAL/LEAS

ACTUARIAL SERVICES

HUMAN SERVICES
MANAGEMENT SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS

'01075 HEALTH BENEFIT ADMINISTRATION

FY 2015
Actuals

838,866
0
838,866
20

0

16,506
13,356
29,883
3,000
2,300
4,400
69,600
162,000
264,000
455,000
110,100
115,200
10,347
1,483
2,183,130
107,523
251,600
5,290,492
460,284
3,151,866
69,400
32,067
155,944
12,899,737
0

0

52

0

4,425
1,592
6,069
10,000
8,840

0

195
19,035
13,793,590

FY 2016
Actuals

686,713
0

686,713
38

58

12,250
7,305
19,651
2,000
2,600
4,100
72,200
188,510
245,100
455,000
472,155

0

9,319
4,342
1,909,957
69,247
262,500
3,998,010
460,284
3,151,866
69,400
32,068
131,447
11,540,105
0

0

63

0

4,290
2,064
6,417
11,900
8,098
7,283

95
27,376
12,280,262

FY 2017
Budget

667,579
0

667,579
0

0

10,275

0

10,275
2,000
2,600
4,100
72,200
188,510
245,100
455,000
672,155

0

8,781
9,799
1,909,957
75,916
262,500
4,909,962
460,284
3,151,866
69,400
35,000
116,169
12,651,299
500
2,500
450

500
5,000

0

8,950
25,000
15,000
27,000
2,750
69,750
13,407,853

2018

2018

Requested PROPOSED

652,087
0
652,087
0

0

9,375

0

9,375
2,000
2,600
4,100
72,200
188,510
245,100
455,000
672,155
0

8,740
3,088
1,909,957
80,367
262,500
4,909,962
460,284
3,151,866
69,400
35,000
177,255
12,710,084
500
2,500
450
3,000
5,000
4,000
15,450
25,000
25,000
27,000
2,750
79,750
13,466,746

652,087
0
652,087
0

0

9,375

0

9,375
8,100
4,000
4,300
72,200
188,510
245,100
468,500
900,000
0

8,740
3,088
2,866,773
80,367
262,500
6,507,300
660,284
3,510,000
69,400
35,000
177,255
16,071,417
500
2,500
450
3,000
5,000
4,000
15,450
25,000
20,000
27,000
2,750
74,750
16,823,079

Variance

15,492
0

15,492

0

0

900

0

900
-6,100
-1,400
-200

0

0

0
-13,500
227,845
0

a1

6,711
-956,816
4,451

0
-1,597,338
-200,000
-358,134
0

0
61,086
-3,420,118
0

0

0

-2,500

0

4,000
6,500

0

-5,000

0

0

-5,000
-3,415,226

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISIONS

LABOR RELATIONS

MISSION STATEMENT

The responsibilities of the Office of Labor Relations Department are to negotiate and administer the
collective bargaining agreements between the City of Bridgeport and all Unions and Associations. We
manage and/or coordinate human resources activities, counsel and advise management on labor
relations and human resources issues, and resolve grievances and labor relations disputes. In
addition, we handle arbitrations, SLRB hearings and related or similar proceedings. Our objectives
include: negotiating open collective bargaining agreements on time and within budget. Arbitration, if
necessary, to achieve an acceptable collective bargaining agreement, reducing the number of
grievances filed, increasing the number of successful grievance arbitrations, and improving
coordination and management of human resources issues.

—1 CITY COUNCIL

CHIEF
ADMINISTRATIVE
OFFICER

LABOR
RELATIONS

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
BUDGET DETAILS

LABOR RELATIONS

REVENUE SUMMARY

Janene Hawkins

Manager

APPROPRIATION SUMMARY

Not Applicable

Org# Org Description FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 Variance
Actuals Actuals Budget Requested Proposed
01085 LABOR RELATIONS
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES 539,724 574,256 567,158 561,628 561,628 5,530
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV 13,711 7,288 3,075 1,650 1,650 1,425
03 FRINGE BENEFITS 172,277 165,496 162,594 167,696 210,490 47,896
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 6,467 5,202 9,975 11,061 11,061 -1,086
05 SPECIAL SERVICES 291,470 221,773 305,434 355,434 345,434 -40,000
LABOR RELATIONS 1,023,649 974,015 1,048,236 1,097,469 1,130,263 82,027
PERSONNEL SUMMARY
FTE FTE FY2017 FY2018 FY2018
ORG. CODE/DEPARTMENT 2017 FY18  VAC. EW  UNF. Title dified Req d posed Variance
1 1 1 0 0  DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF LABOR RELA1 111,998 112,149 112,149 -151
1 0 0 0 -1 SECRETARY 53,750 0 0 53,750
0 1 1 1 0 LABOR MANAGEMENT COORDINA1 0 65,610 65,610 -65,610
& 1 0 0 0  DIRECTOR LABOR RELATIONS 127,213 126,592 126,592 621
1 1 0 0 0  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 82,610 66,625 66,625 15,985
 § 1 0 0 0  LABOR RELATIONS OFFICER 89,819 89,381 89,381 438
'01085000 1 1 0 0 0 SENIOR LABOR RELATIO 101,768 101,271 101,271 497
LABOR RELATIONS 6 6 2 1 -1 567,158 561,628 561,628 5,530

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

LABOR RELATIONS PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL 6 MONTH ESTIMATED
SERVICE INDICATORS 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2016-2017
LABOR RELATIONS
Total contracts processed 14 5 2 7 8 12
Open 3 2 6 6 6 5 5
Settied 7 5 2 1 2 6
Average length of ime to settle 9 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months
Total grievances processed 185 140 130 139 78 135 83
# of State Labor Relations Board Complaints 31 25 57 65 31 47 10
# of other Complaints/Investigations 35 31 54 42 73 60 30
# of Disciplinary Hearings 73 98 108 82 35 42 22
# of Policies Deweloped 2 0 0 0 0 2 0

FY 2017-2018 GOALS

1)
2)

3)

10)

1)

Negotiate remaining open collective bargaining contracts and/or issues and resolve those
contracts/issues in a manner consistent with the goals and objectives of City management.
Utilize the binding interest arbitration process to achieve an acceptable resolution of
outstanding contracts/issues if necessary.

Utilize mediation to resolve outstanding grievances and/or complaints before the Connecticut
State Board of Labor Relations in a manner acceptable to the City.

Work with Human Resources and other departments to implement and train supervisors and
other employees in the major city policies.

Successfully represent the City's interests in arbitrations and Connecticut State Board of
Labor Relations hearings.

Work with Benefits and other City departments and manage Workers Compensation
expenses.

Continue to monitor the enforcement by departments of the City’s Attendance Policies.
Continue to aggressively handle, where needed, grievances, complaints, investigations, and
disciplinary hearings.

Continue training new employees on City policies and procedures and continuation of Sexual
Harassment training to all employees.

Continue to implement aggressively wellness programs with unions to create efficiencies and
contain costs.

Review current policies and procedures and update them accordingly.

FY 2016-2017 GOALS STATUS

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET
LABOR RELATIONS PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS

Strengths:
Our ability to work in a timely and efficient manner to cover all areas of oversight in Labor and the
Benefits Department. The ability to develop relationships with employees to ensure proper

communication and expectations throughout the City. Our ability to effectively work as a team and
reorganize the department.

Challenges: Limited staff

Successes/Accomplishments:

We have been able to settle several grievances over the past year in favor of the City. Presently we
have 135 grievances. Additionally, we have been able to receive a zero increase from at least three
unions. We have also benefitted from having the Fire Union re-open their contract with an extension
and also taking a zero increase. We are presently in negotiation with four unions. Due to team
management style and ability to use resources efficiently we have handled a great deal of the work in
house that was previously given to outside counsel. We have hired a Human Resource Generalist
that handles our ADA and FMLA and several human resources challenges. Additionally, we are in
the process of computerizing all of our files to be brought up to the 21 century. Lastly, we have met
with Housatonic Community College to discuss training for the following topics: (Microsoft Office -
Excel, Word, Outlook, Cultural & Diversity Sensitivity Training, Constituent Customer Service, Social
Media, Supervisor Training, etc.) We have also met with Brainstorm, Inc. for computer related
software training. They would supplement digitally (online user support and access to videos,
etc.) what Housatonic Community College does in-person. The plan is to roll out training starting
early spring. We will start with assessment of our employee populations in order to gage their skill
levels and then we can determine what level of training we need. MUNIS will come after the update
this June. At that point we will access employee/department needs through assessment and
questionnaire. MUNIS will come in during the update and "train the trainer." These trainers will be
COB employees, who we hope will offer their time to hold trainings quarterly dependent on
department needs.

Recommendations of Support Needs:

Suggestion of additional Clerk A
Floater positions
Labor Management Coordinator

CITY OF BRIDGEPORT, CONNECTICUT
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FY 2017-2018 PROPOSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET

LABOR RELATIONS

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

APPROPRIATION SUPPLEMENT

Org# Org Description Object# Object Description

'01085 LABOR RELATIONS
’51000 FULL TIME EARNED PAY
'51034 FTBONUS- CONTRACTUAL PAY
01 PERSONNEL SERVICES
'$1140 LONGEVITY PAY
'51156 UNUSED VACATION TIME PAYOU
02 OTHER PERSONNEL SERV
"52360 MEDICARE
'52385  SOCIAL SECURITY
'52504 MERF PENSION EMPLOYER CONT
'52917 HEALTH INSURANCE CITY SHARE
03 FRINGE BENEFITS
"53605 MEMBERSHIP/REGISTRATION FEES
’53905 EMP TUITION AND/OR TRAVEL REIM
’54675 OFFICE SUPPLIES
'54705 SUBSCRIPTIONS
04 OPERATIONAL EXPENSES
’56055 COMPUTER SERVICES
"56175 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINT SRVCS
"56180 OTHER SERVICES
05 SPECIAL SERVICES
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